
Hermantown City Council Meeting – November 21, 2022 

Because of attendance considerations at the regular meeting location due to the 
health pandemic, Hermantown’s upcoming, City Council Meeting will be conducted 
both remotely and with in-person access to Council Chambers.  

The City Council meeting will utilize the platform “Zoom,” which allows the public to 
view and/or hear the meeting from their phone or computer. Interested parties can 
also choose to attend the City Council Meeting in person at City Hall. Current 
Minnesota Department of Health guidelines regarding the health pandemic will be 
observed during this meeting. 

The 6:30 p.m. City Council Meeting will be available at: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89427926114?pwd=VERySW5HSWNpeGtGcG43NWZtcnVBQT09 

and/or by calling the number (312) 626-6799 and utilizing the meeting ID number of 
894-2792-6114 and the passcode of 614195.

Public comment may be possible, but difficult, during the meeting, but any public 
comments, questions, or concerns can be e-mailed to Community Engagement 
Manager, Joe Wicklund, at jwicklund@hermantownmn.com up to 3:30 p.m. the day of 
the meeting with the e-mail title “City Council Meeting.” It is important to note that all 
comments regarding this meeting are public data.  

A few important tips regarding the Zoom platform: 

• If your computer does not support audio, you can still watch the meeting on
your computer and call in on your phone to hear the meeting

• It is a challenging situation for all, so grace and understanding are appreciated

The 4:30 p.m. Pre-Agenda Meeting will be available in-person only at City Hall. Public 
comment is not a factor in the pre-agenda meeting, but the meeting is open and 
members of the public are invited and welcome to attend to this meeting. Attendees 
of the Pre-Agenda Meeting should expect to follow the current social distancing and 
mask guidelines. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89427926114?pwd=VERySW5HSWNpeGtGcG43NWZtcnVBQT09


 

This agenda has been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the Hermantown City Council. This document does not 
claim to be complete and is subject to change at any time. 

 
AGENDA 

 
Pre-Agenda Meeting November 21, 2022 at 4:30 p.m. 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - Hermantown Governmental Services Building 

 
Pre-agenda:  The Pre-agenda meeting is a work session between the City Council 
and City staff to review the upcoming City Council meeting and future meetings.  
The agenda is the same document as the upcoming City Council meeting, but does 
not follow the same format as the City Council meeting.  It is a time for the City 
Council and City staff to have discussions about the agenda items, and asking and 
answering questions.  Traditionally it is not a time for public comment on the 
agenda items, as the public can listen to the conversation and ask questions or 
provide input at the upcoming City Council meeting.   

 
 

City Council Meeting November 21, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers 

City Hall - Hermantown Governmental Services Building 
 

Invitation to participate: 
The Hermantown City Council welcomes your thoughts, input and opinions to this 
meeting. The agenda for this meeting contains a brief description of each item to 
be considered, and the City Council encourages your participation. If you wish to 
speak on an item contained in the agenda, you will be allowed to address the 
Council when a motion is on the floor. If you wish to speak on a matter that does 
not appear on the agenda, you may do so during the public comment period 
regularly scheduled and set for the beginning of the meeting.  
 
When addressing the City Council, please state your name and address for the 
record. Please address the City Council as a whole through the Mayor. Comments 
to individual Council Members or staff are not permitted. Speakers will be limited to 
three (3) minutes. 
 
Order of discussion 

1. Reading of the resolution title by Mayor 
2. Motion/Second 
3. Staff Explanation 
4. Initial Discussion by City Council 
5. Mayor invites public to speak to the motion (3-minute rule) 
6. Follow up staff explanation and/or discussion by City Council 
7. Call of the vote 



This agenda has been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the Hermantown City Council. This document does not 
claim to be complete and is subject to change at any time. 

CITY OF HERMANTOWN 
AGENDA 

Pre-Agenda Meeting November 21, 2022 at 4:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers 

Hermantown Governmental Services Building 

City Council Meeting November 21, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers 

Hermantown Governmental Services Building 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS (Council Members may make announcements as needed.)

5. PUBLIC HEARING – (Only when necessary. The rule adopted three minutes per person if
necessary. Any action required after the public hearing will be taken immediately following
the closing of the public hearing.)

6. COMMUNICATIONS

A. Correspondence 22-116 through 22-121 placed on file

B. 22-121 Kimberly Brzezinski, Attorney, Hanft Fride 
TO:  Mayor Wayne Boucher 
RE:  Porter Business Development Group, LLC 
        Vacation of Portion of Cemetery Plan 

7. PRESENTATIONS (Department Heads may give reports if necessary.)

A. Kevin Orme, Director of Finance & Administration
RE:  Budget Book (Pre-Agenda Only)

B. Eric Johnson, Community Development Director
RE: Boulder Trail Furniture (Pre-Agenda Only)

C. Paul Senst, Public Works Director
RE: Water Modeling Report (Pre-Agenda Only)

D. John Mulder, City Administrator
RE:  Legislative Agenda Update (Pre-Agenda Only)

E. John Mulder, City Administrator
RE:  Council Transition Timing & Onboarding of New City Council Members (Pre-Agenda
Only)



8. PUBLIC DISCUSSION (This is the time for individuals to address the Council about any item not 
on the agenda. The time limit is three minutes per person.) 

 
9. CONSENT AGENDA (All items on the Consent Agenda are items which are considered routine by 

the City Council and will be approved by one motion via voice vote. There will be no discussion of 
these items unless a Council Member or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and considered at the end of the Consent Agenda.) 
 
A. Minutes - Approval or correction of November 7, 2022 City Council Continuation Minutes 
 
B. Accounts Payable – Approve general city warrants from November 1, 2022 through 

November 15, 2022 in the amount of $410,925.52 
 

10. MOTIONS 
 
11. ORDINANCES 
 
12. RESOLUTIONS (Roll call will be taken only on items required by law and items requiring 4/5’s 

votes, all others can be done by voice vote.) 
 

A. 2022-128 Resolution Approving the City of Hermantown Policy for Contractor Water 
and Sewer Hookup Process and Repairs to Lateral Lines 

 (motion, roll call) 

B. 2022-129 Resolution Awarding Contract For A Plow Truck Package From Towmaster 
Truck Equipment Not To Exceed $175,248 

 (motion, roll call) 

C. 2022-130 Resolution Adopting Assessment Roll for Delinquent Utility Charges for 
2022 

 (motion, roll call) 

D. 2022-131 Resolution Accepting An Amended Proposal From Northland Consulting 
Engineers For Engineering Services For Design And Construct Engineering 
For The Sanitary Sewer Trunkline Spur From Oak Ridge Drive To The 
Trunkline Under The City Engineers Contract With The City 

 (motion, roll call) 

13. RECESS 
 
 
 



Date: 

To: 

From:  

RE: 

November 15, 2022 

City Council 

John Mulder, City Administrator 

Correspondence 

In your agenda packet is a correspondence summary log.  This briefly summarizes 
and assigns a log number for written correspondence received at City Hall. 

You are provided with the summary so that you may request a full copy of any 
correspondence article of interest to you. 

I have included in the agenda packet only the correspondence that we believe to 
be of special interest. 



 2022 CORRESPONDENCE

DATE LOG # FROM TO REGARDING FILED

10/31/2022 22-116 Eric Johnson, Comm. Dev. 
Dir.

Dale Siemsen, 4993 
Thompson Rd.

395-09014-00095 10/28/2022

11/9/2022 22-117 Mary Caruso, FEMA Wayne Boucher, 
Mayor

National Flood 
Insurance Program`

10/28/2022

11/14/2022 22-118 MN Power City of Hermantown Open House at 
Midway Town Hall 
11/2/2022, 6:00 - 
8:00 pm

11/14/2022

11/15/2022 22-119 Quinn Horvath, Stantec John Mulder, City 
Administrator

FEMA Re: Morris 
Thomas 
Rd/Okerstrom Rd. 
Culvert - Flooding 
Source - Keene 
Creek

11/14/2022

11/16/2022 22-120 Eric Johnson,Comm. Dev. 
Dir.

Park Board Proposed Trail 
Funiture

11/15/2022

11/18/2022 22-121 Kimberly Brzezinski, Hanft 
Fride

Wayne Boucher, 
Mayor

Porter Business Dev. 
Group, LLC - Order 
to Show Cause

11/8/2022

2022 Log Book



OUUJt'fd OiJf,CE� 
1000 U.S. l\ANK PLAOE 
130 W£Kr· S'tJPERlOR STRl:F.T

DVUftH, MiNNESdtA 55802�2094 
TEU\JHO.NF.: 218/722-4766 
TAX� 218/$Z9�2.401 
-CLO.Q!;J..ET''Off.lC�,·
:1219A:4TH StRfET 
CLOQlJF.t MINNESOTA S5720 
TEJ;EPH(}�H:.: 418./879-3tf33 
.'FAX: 218/879�:3201 
CJRE'PLY TQ·ClOQ!).tT OFFICE 

�VW.HANt'r.tAW:c.oM 
HMAIL: :l(l!B@HANPTLA W,CO.M 

.HAND DELIVERED 

·wayne· Boucher
·Mayor - City of Hennantown
.SI 05 Maple Grove Rd"'
Hermantowu; tv!N' 5S8J 0

22-121 

· ·. . . . .  . · . ·  : . · • ,  . · . · . .  · ·. · . · . . · - · . ·  · . , · 

··tt· ,·A··.,. N· .. · 'F".·T:·. ·F· .. ·R·· .. 1 .. ,·o·· .. �E· .. · ..

AP1t6rEssr6�ALAssOCIAT1Q� 

Re: Porter Business De\relop1ne1it Gro.up� LL.C 
Vacation of Portion of Cemetery P:lat 
Our File No .. ; :H227;003 

.:Dear May.or Boucher: 

WunAM M. BtJ1�s

. •JOHN·[). Krt.r:i•
·F(zOJEittcK_A. DVI>PERAK, Ji.

· R. 1)tOMAS T6RCl:llS6N"
. CttERYl •. M. \iRiNCt 
Rnl\t:N C. MHtl:U'.fl'·* 
)ENN}Ftl� L CA�Y�, MARK l). PJtON-'

}ACOU J, BAKl:R�
kon A. Wn:rr 

ltAf.t L FISHER BR.ENT w 'MAIVICK 
JOHN :s:. S'cHutrt 

KIMBERiY E. BklEZlNSKJ
HOU�' E. HAI.Jf.ll
Itssi W, s.i�hH 

C:bl�:rrf: �:�����: ?: �:::.� 
':A1,mA1:1/\{1tn:o IH· \A/istdN5tN· 

B.nefosed herewith- :for servic� Qll the -City of He.tmantown pursuant to .Mittn. Stat. § 5:05 .14, pl�ase find 
an Order to Show Ca:U$e issued by the St Louis County District Court in th� abov��ct�scrlbed matter. I 
have also �nclosed.Jtcopy ofthe A1nended Petition (or Vacation ofl'ortion :of a Cemetery. Plat. My. client,. 
!orter �usiness Development Group., LLn, is seeking to vacate a.portitm of a cem.eteey ;plat erteun1berint
1ts land.

JfyoµJ1ave any questions.,. please do not hesitate to contact me or to have your legal com1sel d:o so. Thank 
y.ou. 

Very ttuljr youts, 

Enclosures 



Rev. April 2020 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS 

In the Matter of the Petition of 

69DU·CV-22·2178 

No. 69DU-CV-22-2178 

Porter Business Development Group, LLC 
a Minnesota limited liability company, 

for the vacation of a portion of Block A, 
Arrowhead Memorial Park, contained m 
Certificate of Title No. 361040. 

DISTRICT COURT 
SIXTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE 

TO: Cellular Inc. Netw_ork Corporation d/b/a Verizon Wireless; Centricity Credit Union, and 
Occupants, if any. 

A Petition and Report of Examiner of Titles are ·filed in the above entitled case, brought under 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 508. You were identified in the Petition or the Report of Examiner of 
Titles as a party who may have an interest in the above-described land affected by the Order below. 
If you object to entry of the Order, you must show cause, ifthere is any, why this Court should not 
enter the Order. To object to entry of the Order, you must file an Answer, and pay the filing fee or 
obtain an order waiving the filing fee, by December 2, 2022 ("the deadline.") No response or 
action is required if you have no objection to the Order. If you do not file an Answer, the Order 
may issue with no further notice to you. 

ORDER: 

Determining that the plat of Arrowhead Memorial Park, and various sub-divisions and 
rearrangements thereof, bearing Document Nos. 107578, 111819, 112505, 112953, 113117, 
114180, 114577, 116033, 116953, and 116954, are vacated to the extent they encumber and affect 
the following described land: 

PARCEL A 
The W'ly 208.72 feet of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the NWI/4 of the NWl/4 of Section 13, Township 
50 North, Range 15 West. 

PARCELB 
That part of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the W'ly 417.44 feet of the NWl/4 of the NWl/4 of Section 
13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West, which lies E'ly of the W'ly 208.72 feet thereof; 

and directing the St. Louis County Registrar of Titles to memorialize a certified copy of the Order 
issued herein on Certificate of Title No. 361040, and to delete the following Document Nos. as 
memorials from any future certificates of title issued in lieu thereof: Document Nos. 107578, 

DOCS\031227\00003\823485.vl 



690U-CV-22-2178 

111819, 112505, 112953, 113117, 114180.114577, 116033, 116953, 116954,204572,204573 
and 975986. 

lfyoil choose to object, your Answer must be e-filed by your attomey. If you do not have an 
attorney, the Answer may be filed by mailing it to: Cou11 Administration, 100 N. 5111 Ave. W., 
Room 320, Duluth, MN 55802, with a check payable to District Couit Administrator for $300.00 
for the filing fee, or with an order waiving the fee: or the Answer and check or order waiving the 
fee may be deposited in the District Court drop box at the same location or filed in-person at the 
same location if the otlice is open to walk-in public. If you have questions about these procedures, 
you may contact the Examiner of Titles office by phone at 218-726-2572. or by email at 
binderm(£L),stloui scountymn. gov. Please note, however, that the Examiner of Titles does not 
represent you and cannot provide you with legal advice. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that a copy of this Order to Show Cause be served: 

(a) at least 24 days before the deadline upon parties named herein, unless otherwise expressly
stated. by first class mail; 

(b) upon the Mayor of the City of Hermantown personally at least 1 O days before the deadline,
pursuant to Minn. Stat. §505.14; 

(c) by two weeks published notice, the last publication to be at least 10 days before the
deadline, pursuant to Minn. Stat. §505.14; and 

(d) by two weeks posted notice, as required by Minn. Stat.§ 505.14.

Approved: Thomas W. Reed 
Examiner of Titles 

\ 

<.�./tC:<·'r,; i l /.c.c.-c� 

!c.'®.Wtl. �·)f;j,�4) 
� ... JJ ••• ,. '!... ��,. ·; 

JUDGE OF THE DISTRICT COURT 

Attorney for Petitioner (name and contact information): 
Kimberly E. Brzezinski 
HANFT FRIDE, P.A. 
1000 U.S. Bank Place 
130 W. Superior Street 
Duluth, MN 55802 
(218) 722-4766

DOCS\03 I 2:?7\00003\823485.v 1 



Filed in Distri 

State of Mi 

10/25/2022 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS 

Case Type: 14. Other Civil (Torrens) 

DISTRICT COURT 

In the Matter of the Petition of 

Porter Business Development Group, LLC, a 
Minnesota limited liability company, 

for vacation of a portion of Block A, Arrowhead 
Memorial Park. 

TO THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY EXAMINER OF TITLES: 

SIXTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

AMENDED PETITION FOR 
VACATION OF PORTION 

OF CEMETERY PLAT 

Petitioner Porter Business Development Group, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability 

company ( collectively "Petitioner"), states and alleges as follows: 

l. That on September 9, 2022, the Registrar of Titles for St. Louis County, Minnesota,

duly entered Certificate of Title No. 361040 certifying Porter Business Development Group, LLC, 

a Minnesota limited liability company, to be the owner in fee simple of the following described 

land situated in the County of St. Louis, State of Minnesota: 

PARCEL A 
The W1ly 208.72 feet of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the NWl/4 of the NWl/4 of Section 
13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West. 

PARCELB 
That part of the N'ly 208. 72 feet of the W'ly 417.44 feet of the NWl/4 of the NWI/4 
of Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West, which lies E'ly of the W'ly 
208. 72 feet thereof.

("Petitioner's Property"). 

D0CS\031227\00003\821718.v2- I 0/25/22 



69DU-CV-22-2178 Filed in Dlstri 
State of Mi, 

10/25/2022 

Said Certificate of Title No. 361040 remains uncanceled, a copy of which is attached hereto 

as Exhibit A. 

2. Memorialized on Certificate of Title No. 361040 are the following documents

relative to the subject of this proceeding: 

a. Document No. 107578, which is the plat of Arrowhead Memorial Park;

1. This document affects the land contained in Certificate of Title No. 361040,

which is included in Block A of the plat of Arrowhead Memorial Park.

b. Document No. 111819, which is the plat of Sub-division of a portion of blocks A

and B known as Block 15 of Arrowhead Memorial Park;

i. As is the case with the documents contained in sub-paragraphs c., d., e., f.,

g., h., i. andj. below, this document purports to reflect a subdivision of part

of the original plat of Arrowhead Memorial Park. The legal description of

the land used in the dedication, however, is the entire legal description for

the land included in the original plat of Arrowhead Memorial Park. The

dedications in the plats control, which creates an issue as it seems

inconsistent with the presumed intent of the subdivisions. Regardless,

Petitioner seeks vacation of all of the plats contained in this Paragraph 2,

sub-paragraphs a. throughj., to the extent they encumber and affect the land

contained in Certificate of Title No. 361040.

c. Document No. 112505, which is the plat of Sub-division of a portion of blocks A

and B known as Block 22 of Arrowhead Memorial Park;

i. See sub-paragraph b.i. above.

DOCS\031227\00003\8217 l 8. v2· l 0/25/22 



69DU-CV-22-2178 Filed in Distri 

State of Mi 

10/25/2022 

d. Document No. 112953, which is the plat of Sub-division of a Portion of blocks A

and B known as Block 21 of Arrowhead Memorial Park;

i. See sub-paragraph b.i. above.

e. Document No. 113117, which is the plat of Sub-division of block A known as

Block 16 of Arrowhead Memorial Park;

i. See sub-paragraph b.i. above.

f. Document No. 114180, which is the plat of Sub-division of block A known as

Block 19 of Arrowhead Memorial Park;

i. See sub-paragraph b.i. above.

g. Document No. 114577, which is the plat of Sub-division of block A known as

Block 20 of Arrowhead Memorial Park;

i. See sub-paragraph b.i. above.

h. Document No. 116033, which is the plat of Sub-division of block A known as

Block 3 of Arrowhead Memorial Park;

i. See sub-paragraph b.i. above.

i. Document No. 116953, which is the plat of Sub-division of a Portion of blocks A

and B known as Block 4 of Arrowhead Memorial Park;

i. See sub-paragraph b.i. above.

J. Document No. 116954, which is the plat of Sub-division of a Portion of blocks A

and B known as Block 33 of Arrowhead Memorial Park;

i. See sub-paragraph b.i. above.

k. Document No. 204572, which is the plat of Block 14 of Sunrise Memorial Park;

DOCS\03 l 227\00003\8217 I 8. v2-10/25/22 



69DU-CV-22-2178 Filed in Distri 

State of Mi 

10/25/2022 

1. This document does not affect the land contained in Certificate of Title No.

361040, and should be dropped from any new certificate of title issued as a

result of this proceeding.

1. Document No. 204573, which is the plat of Block 5 of Sunrise Memorial Park.

1. This document does not affect the land contained in Certificate of Title No.

361040, and should be dropped from any new certificate of title issued as a

result of this proceeding.

m. Document No. 975986, which is a Memorandum of Land Lease Agreement running

in favor of Cellular Inc. Network Corporation d/b/a Verizon Wireless. Although the

Memorandum identifies the land.contained in Certificate of Title No. 361040 as

real property owned by the Lessor, the actual "Premises" subject to the Lease is

described on Exhibit B to the Memorandum and is located in the adjacent NEI/4

of NWl/4, Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West. In other words, the

actual leased Premises is land not contained in Certificate of Title No. 361040 (the

leased Premises is contained in Certificate of Title No. 361041, and Document No.

975986 is also memorialized thereon). For this reason, Petitioner requests that

Document No. 975986 be dropped from future certificates of title for the land

contained in Certificate of Title No. 361040.

3. The plats described in Paragraph 2 above are cemetery plats governed by the

provisions of Minn. Stat.§ 307.01. Minn. Stat.§ 307.02 provides that any conveyance oflots shall 

be expressly for burial purposes. Petitioner has not historically used the land contained in 

Certificate of Title No. 361040 for cemetery purposes, and intends to convey said land to a third 

DOCS\03 l 227\00003\82 l 7 I 8. v2-l 0/25/22 



69DU-CV-22-2178 
Filed in Distri 

State of Mi1 

10/25/2022 

party who will not use the land for cemetery purposes. For these reasons, the plats are useless for 

the purpose for which they were laid out, as to the land contained in Certificate of Title No. 361040. 

4. Pursuant to 'Minn. Stat. § 307 .10, the owner of a cemetery may apply to the District

Court of the county in which the cemetery is situated to alter or vacate the cemetery plat, as in the 

case of town plats. Vacation of town plats by the District Court is governed by Minn. Stat. § 

505.14. Based on these authorities, Petitioner seeks vacation of the plats described in Paragraphs 

2 a. through j. above, to the extent said plats encumber or affect the land contained in Certificate 

of Title No. 361040. Petitioner also seeks removal of the plats described in Paragraphs 2 k. and I., 

as those plats do not affect the land contained in said Certificate of Title (they affect a different 

quarter-quarter). 

5. Minn. Stat. § 505.14 includes the following procedural requirements for vacation

thereunder: 

a. Proof that all assessed truces against the land have been paid;

b. Service of notice to the Commissioner of Natural Resources at least 60 days before

the hearing, if any part of the road "terminates at, abuts upon, or is adjacent to any

public water";

c. 2 weeks published and posted notice, with the last date of publication being at least

10 days before the hearing; and

d. Personal service on the mayor of the city, at least 10 days before the hearing.

6. The land Petitioner seeks to vacate is exempt from taxation and there are no taxes

due thereon. 

DOCS\031227\00003\8217 I 8. v2-10/25/22 



690U-CV-22-2178 Filed in Distri 

State of Mi 

10/25/2022 

7. Petitioner asserts that service of notice to the Commissioner of Natural Resources

is not necessary, because no streets, alleys or public grounds contained within the plats terminates 

at, abuts upon, or is adjacent to any public water. 

8. Petitioner will comply with the publication, posting and service requirements set

forth in Minn. Stat.§ 505.14 once an Order to Show Cause is issued herein. 

9. Service of notice on all record landowners and affected parties within the plats to

be vacated is also required. Petitioner is the owner of all of the land within the plat of Arrowhead 

Memorial Park, and the rearrangements thereto described in Paragraph 2 above. 

WHEREFORE, your Petitioner prays for an Order from the Court: 

1. Determining that the plat of Arrowhead Memorial Park, bearing Document No.

107578, is vacated to the extent is encumbers and affects the following described land: 

PARCEL A 
The W'ly 208.72 feet of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the NWl/4 of the NWl/4 of 
Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West. 

PARCELB 
That part of the N'ly 208. 72 feet of the W'ly 417.44 feet of the NWl/4 of 
the NWI/4 of Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West, which lies 
E'ly of the W'ly 208. 72 feet thereof. 

2. Determining that the plat of Sub-division of a portion of blocks A and B known as

Block 15 of Arrowhead Memorial Park, bearing Document No. 111819, is vacated to the extent is 

encumbers and affects the following described land: 

PARCEL A 
The W'ly 208.72 feet of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the NWl/4 of the NWI/4 of 
Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West. 

PARCELS 

That part of the N'ly 208. 72 feet of the W'ly 417.44 feet of the NWl/4 of 
the NWl/4 of Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West, which lies 
E'ly of the W'ly 208. 72 feet thereof. 

DOCS\031227\00003\8217 I 8. v2- I 0/25/22 



69DU-CV-22-2178 
Filed in Dlstri 

State of Mi 

10/25/2022 

3. Determining that the plat of Sub-division of a portion of blocks A and B known as

Block 22 of Arrowhead Memorial Park, bearing Document No. 112505, is vacated to the extent is 

encumbers and affects the following described land: 

PARCEL A 
The W'ly 208.72 feet of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the NWl/4 of the NWl/4 of 
Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West. 

PARCELB 
That part of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the W'ly 417.44 feet of the NWl/4 of 
the NWl/4 of Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West, which lies 
E'ly of the W'ly 208. 72 feet thereof. 

4. Determining that the plat of Sub-division of a Portion of blocks A and B known as

Block 21 of Arrowhead Memorial Park, bearing Document No. 112953, is vacated to the extent is 

encumbers and affects the following described land: 

PARCEL A 
The W'ly 208.72 feet of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the NWl/4 of the NWI/4 of 
Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West. 

PARCELB 
That part of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the W'ly 417.44 feet of the NWl/4 of 
the NWl/4 of Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West, which lies 
E'ly of the W'ly 208. 72 feet thereof. 

5. Determining that the plat of Sub-division of block A known as Block 16 of

Arrowhead Memorial Park, bearing Document No. 113117, is vacated to the extent is encumbers 

and affects the following described land: 

PARCEL A 
The W'ly 208.72 feet of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the NWl/4 of the NWl/4 of 
Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West. 

PARCEL B 
That part of the N'ly 208. 72 f

e

et of the W'ly 417 .44 feet of the NW 1/4 of 
the NWI/4 of Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West, which lies 
E'ly of the W'ly 208. 72 feet thereof. 

7 
DOCS\031227\00003\8217 I 8. v2-10/25/22 



69DU-CV-22-2178 
Filed in Distri 

State of Mi 

10/25/2022 

6. Determining that the plat of Sub-division of block A known as Block 19 of

Arrowhead Memorial Park, bearing Document No. I 14180, is vacated to the extent is encumbers 

and affects the following described land: 

PARCEL A 
The W'ly 208.72 feet of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the NWl/4 of the NWl/4 of 
Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West. 

PARCELB 
That part of the N'ly 208. 72 feet of the W'ly 417.44 feet of the NWl/4 of 
the NWI/4 of Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West, which lies 
E'ly of the W'ly 208.72 feet thereof. 

7. Determining that the plat of Sub-division of block A known as Block 20 of

Arrowhead Memorial Park, bearing Document No. 114577, is vacated to the extent is encumbers 

and affects the following described land: 

PARCELA 
The W'ly 208.72 feet of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the NWl/4 of the NWl/4 of 
Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West. 

PARCELB 
That part of the N'ly 208. 72 feet of the W'ly 417.44 feet of the NW 1 /4 of 
the NWl/4 of Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West, which lies 
E'ly of the W'ly 208. 72 feet thereof. 

8. Determining that the plat of Sub-division of block A known as Block 3 of

Arrowhead Memorial Park, bearing Document No. 116033, is vacated to the extent is encumbers 

and affects the following described land: 

PARCEL A 
The W'ly 208.72 feet of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the NWl/4 of the NWI/4 of 
Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West. 

PARCEL B 
That part of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the W'ly 417.44 feet of the NWl/4 of 
the NWl/4 of Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West, which lies 
E'ly of the W'ly 208. 72 feet thereof. 

8 
DOCS\031227\00003\8217 I 8. v2-I 0/25/22 



69DU-CV-22-2178 Filed in Dlstri 

State of Mi 

10/25/2022 

9. Determining that the plat of Sub-division of a Portion of blocks A and B known as

Block 4 of Arrowhead Memorial Park, bearing Document No. 116953, is vacated to the extent is 

encumbers and affects the following described land: 

PARCEL A 

The W'ly 208.72 feet of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the NWl/4 of the NWl/4 of 
Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West. 

PARCELB 

That part of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the W'ly 417.44 feet of the NWl/4 of 
the NWl/4 of Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West, which lies 
E'ly of the W'ly 208.72 feet thereof. 

10. Determining that the plat of Sub-division of a Portion of blocks A and B known as

Block 33 of Arrowhead Memorial Park, bearing Document No. 116954, is vacated to the extent is 

encumbers and affects the following described land: 

PARCEL A 

The W'ly 208.72 feet of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the NWl/4 of the NWl/4 of 
Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West. 

PARCELB 

That part of the N'ly 208.72 feet of the W'ly 417.44 feet of the NWl/4 of 
the NWl/4 of Section 13, Township 50 North, Range 15 West, which lies 
E'ly of the W'ly 208. 72 feet thereof. 

11. Directing the St. Louis County Registrar of Titles to memorialize a certified copy

of the Order issued herein on Certificate ofTitle No. 361040, and to delete the following Document 

Nos. as memorials from any future certificates of title issued in lieu thereof: Document Nos. 

107578, 111819, 112505, 112953, 113117, 114180, 114577, 116033, 116953, 116954, 204572, 

204573 and 975986. 

DOCS\031227\00003\82 I 7 I 8. v2-10/25/22 



Dated: October 2$� 2022� HAN:11!.FRIDE� 
A l>ROFESSIO.NAL ASSOCIATIO

N

By; _·
.(.I. 
. .u·

wa
: �··�·��{J..· '�· �· �·�··· ��---

.. kimbe : .··· ii Brz :: ·.· > · ·. i · (38:8617) 
1000 · : �\:� Bank Place 
130 W. Superior Street 
.o.utut11, MN·5:s;so2 
·(218) 722-.4766
11ttorn.eyJc>r Pe:titioner

lO 

Filed. 1n .Olsfrl 
State.ofMi 

10/2512022 



VER.lFlCA"tION 

STA re OF.MINNESOTA } 
) ss� 

COUNTY OF S1'. LOUIS ) 

F'iied in Olstrl 
· S�teofMi.
10/25/202'2

Kin1betly E� Brzezinski_, -being first duly sworn on oath� depose and say that she is· the attor.n�y for 
,the P-etitfoner ht the a.bove-et1titled ·ptoceeding, that she has read the foregoing .Petition, and that 
the sarne is true o f her· own knowledge,. except those 1natters therein st�ted on information and 
belief,. which ntatt�rs she believe$ to be true-. 

Signe? an� sw<>m to before me on the 7,5 day of·.· CtJt>fuqa,, ..
Brze.zmsk1. 

KAT�INAt, PHELPS 
•· NOTARY Ptiatic -MINNESOTA 
t.trt��pi, .. Jan. -ii. 2�1._

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY: 
Kiniberly .J3. llrzezit.1aki (:188617) 
ATTORNEY FOR f>EtfTlQN[{R 

. . · . . . . . . .. . . .  - · · · · . . . 

HANF;r•FRmE ·pA 
. . . . . . . . . . .  · ' 
lOOO U.S .. Bank ·Place 
13 .. '.o· ·w·· ·-..:est· ·. · ---s. '· . __..,_ · ·s· ,:t· . �;. . . . • up.enor reet
Duluth, MN 55802 
E1t1aih :kebla1hanftla:w.,co.m 
Telephone: (218) 722-4766 

11 

, 2022l by Kimberly E. 



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 
 

City Statistics .............................................................................................................................................. 7 

Diversity in Hermantown, MN (2020 US Census) ...................................................................................... 8 

2020 Principal Employers .......................................................................................................................... 9 

2022 Larger Taxpayers ............................................................................................................................... 9 

Community History .................................................................................................................................. 12 

The Organization.................................................................................................................................... 14 

Elected Officials ....................................................................................................................................... 14 

Appointed Officials .................................................................................................................................. 14 

Mission Statement ................................................................................................................................... 15 

Budget Message ...................................................................................................................................... 16 

Council Priorities ...................................................................................................................................... 20 

2022 Highlights: ....................................................................................................................................... 23 

Distinguished Budget Presentation Award ............................................................................................. 25 

2023 Financial Summary Information...................................................................................................... 26 

City of Hermantown Org Chart ................................................................................................................ 29 

City of Hermantown Fund Structure........................................................................................................ 30 

Fund Accounting ...................................................................................................................................... 31 

Departmental/Fund Relationship - Governmental Funds ....................................................................... 36 

Basis of Accounting and Basis of Budgeting ............................................................................................ 38 

Financial Management Policies ............................................................................................................... 39 

Budget Policy & Financial Control ............................................................................................................ 54 

Budget Calendar ...................................................................................................................................... 55 

Financial Summary ................................................................................................................................... 56 

Major Funds and Non-Major Funds by Fund Type .................................................................................. 58 

2023 Budget Summary – All Funds Budgeted Revenues ......................................................................... 59 

2023 Budget Summary – All Funds Budgeted Expenditures ................................................................... 60 

Changes in Budgeted Fund Balance ......................................................................................................... 64 

Long Range Financial Management Plan – General Fund – ..................................................................... 66 

Revenue Categories & Trends ................................................................................................................. 67 

Tax Information ....................................................................................................................................... 73 

General Fund Summary – Fund 101 ....................................................................................................... 79 



3 

 

 

 

2023 General Fund Revenues .................................................................................................................. 79 

2023 General Fund Revenue Sources – Detail ......................................................................................... 81 

2023 General Fund Expenditures ............................................................................................................ 83 

2023 General Fund Expenditures – Detail by Category ........................................................................... 84 

Trend in Expenditures – General Fund .................................................................................................... 85 

Capital Improvement Plan ....................................................................................................................... 86 

Impact of Capital Investments on Operating Budget .............................................................................. 87 

Projects & Funding Sources by Department ............................................................................................ 88 

Five Year Plan for Municipal State Aid – MSA Roads ............................................................................... 92 

City Debt Overview ................................................................................................................................ 93 

Debt Margin ............................................................................................................................................. 93 

Debt Issuance and Refinancing ................................................................................................................ 94 

Debt Service Direct Tax Levy (Next 5 Years) ............................................................................................ 94 

Existing Debt Overview ............................................................................................................................ 94 

Debt Issuance Details ............................................................................................................................... 94 

Staffing .................................................................................................................................................. 96 

2023 Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Summary by Position Count ................................................................. 96 

General Fund ......................................................................................................................................... 97 

City Council - 411100 ............................................................................................................................... 97 

Ordinance, Public Notice, and Proceedings - 411300 .............................................................................. 99 

Mayor – 413100 ..................................................................................................................................... 100 

Elections - 414100 ................................................................................................................................. 102 

Administration & Finance - 415300 ....................................................................................................... 104 

Performance Measure- Administration ................................................................................................. 105 

Performance Measure- Finance ............................................................................................................ 106 

Performance Measure- City Clerk .......................................................................................................... 107 

City Attorney – 416100 - Contracted ..................................................................................................... 110 

Communications - 417200 ..................................................................................................................... 111 

Performance Measure- Communications .............................................................................................. 112 

Community Development – 419100 ...................................................................................................... 113 

Performance Measure- Community Development ............................................................................... 115 

City Hall/Police Building Maintenance - 419901 ................................................................................... 118 

Police 421100 ........................................................................................................................................ 120 



4 

 

 

 

Performance Measure- Police ............................................................................................................... 122 

Fire Protection – 422100 - Contracted .................................................................................................. 125 

Fire Hall #1 – 422901 ............................................................................................................................. 127 

Fire Halls #2 & #3 – 422902/422903...................................................................................................... 128 

Building Inspection – 424100................................................................................................................. 129 

Performance Measure- Building Official ................................................................................................ 130 

Poundmaster - 427100 .......................................................................................................................... 132 

Street – 431100 ..................................................................................................................................... 133 

Performance Measure- Public Works .................................................................................................... 134 

City Engineer - 431130 - Contracted ...................................................................................................... 137 

City Garage Maintenance - 431901 ....................................................................................................... 138 

Parks - 452100 ....................................................................................................................................... 139 

Community Building - 452200 ............................................................................................................... 141 

Cemetery - 490100 ................................................................................................................................ 142 

Insurance- General- 492200 .................................................................................................................. 143 

Transfer Out - 495000 ............................................................................................................................ 143 

Special Revenue Funds ......................................................................................................................... 144 

Fund 230 – Hermantown Economic Development Authority ............................................................... 144 

Fund 235 – Park Dedication Fund .......................................................................................................... 145 

Fund 236 - Wetland Mitigation Fund ..................................................................................................... 146 

Fund 240 - City Sales Tax Fund .............................................................................................................. 147 

Fund 245 – COVID – ARPA ..................................................................................................................... 149 

Fund 251 - Police Program Fund ............................................................................................................ 150 

Fund 260 - Cable Television Fund .......................................................................................................... 151 

Fund 275 – Essentia Wellness Center .................................................................................................... 152 

Debt Service Funds .............................................................................................................................. 153 

Fund 301 – Equipment Debt Service ..................................................................................................... 153 

Fund 315 – 2016B GO Bonds ................................................................................................................. 154 

Fund 318 – 2016A GO Bonds ................................................................................................................. 155 

Fund 320 – 2012A GO Bonds ................................................................................................................. 156 

Fund 321 – 2012B GO Bonds ................................................................................................................. 157 

Fund 322 – 2014A GO Bonds ................................................................................................................. 158 

Fund 323 – 2018A GO Bonds – Fire Halls #2 & #3 ................................................................................. 159 



5 

 

 

 

Fund 324 – 2018B GO Bonds – Wellness Center & Rose Rd Softball Fields .......................................... 160 

Fund 325 – 2019A GO Bonds – Wellness Center ................................................................................... 161 

Fund 326 – 2020A GO Bonds – Road Improvements and Refinance 2010A ......................................... 162 

Fund 327 – 2020B GO Bonds – Section 24 Sewer Trunkline .................................................................. 163 

Fund 328 – 2021A GO Bonds - Road Improvements and Refinance 2012B .......................................... 164 

Fund 350 - Special Assessment Deficiency Fund ................................................................................... 165 

Capital Projects Funds .......................................................................................................................... 166 

Fund 401 – General Capital Projects ...................................................................................................... 166 

Enterprise Funds .................................................................................................................................. 167 

Fund 601 - Water Enterprise Fund ........................................................................................................ 167 

Fund 602 - Sewer Enterprise Fund ......................................................................................................... 173 

Fund 603 – Storm Water Fund .............................................................................................................. 177 

Fund 605 - Street Lighting & Traffic Signalization Fund ......................................................................... 180 

Glossary ............................................................................................................................................... 181 

Acronyms ............................................................................................................................................. 185 

 

  



6 

 

 

 

City of Hermantown 

 

 

 

The City of Hermantown is located in northeastern Minnesota near the shores of Lake 

Superior. Situated adjacent to the City of Duluth, in St. Louis County, the community of 

Hermantown has the advantage of being close to major shopping (Miller Hill Mall) and 

entertainment facilities of a larger city, while maintaining a rural setting.  This advantage has 

served the community well with its thriving economy, quality educational system and 

growing population, while helping provide a quality of life unequalled elsewhere in this 

region.   

 

 

 



7 

 

 

 

City Statistics 
 
Area - 34.35 square miles* 

Persons per square mile – 297.5* 

FIPS Code – 2728682* 

County – St Louis* 

Population – 10,221*  

Males - 5,407* 

Females – 4,814* 

Under 5 years – 5.2%* 

Under 18 years – 22.3%*  

65 years and older – 18.7%* 

Estimated median household income (2015-2019):  

Hermantown: $73,865* 

US:     $62,843* 

Estimated median house owner occupied (2022): 

Hermantown: $288,100** 

US (2015-2019):     $217,500* 

Median gross rent: $1,095* 

Households 2015-2019 – 3,660* 

Persons per household – 2.42* 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Data Source: 2020 US Census 

**Data Source: St. Louis County Deputy Assessor 

 

 

 

 



8 

 

 

 

 

Diversity in Hermantown, MN (2020 US Census) 
 

 
 

 

Public Schools in Hermantown: 

  Hermantown Elementary K-4 (5365 W. Arrowhead Rd.) 

Hermantown Middle 5-8 (4335 Hawk Circle Dr.) 

Hermantown Senior High 9-12 (4335 Hawk Circle Dr.) 

 

Educational Attainment – Age 25+ 

 High School Graduate or higher – 97.6% 

Bachelor’s degree or higher – 34.4% 
  

Diversity

White

Black

Hispanic

American Indian

Hawaiian

Multiracial

Asian



9 

 

 

 

 
FIRM TYPE OF BUSINESS/PRODUCT EST. # OF EMPLOYEES 

I.S.D. 700 (HERMANTOWN PUBLIC 

SCHOOLS 

ELEMENTARY & SECONDARY 

EDUCATION 

444 

WAL-MART DISCOUNT RETAIL STORE 400 

SAM’S CLUB WAREHOUSE MEMBERSHIP 

STORE 

220 

STEPPING STONES FOR LIVING SERVICES & HOUSING FOR 

ADULTS WITH DISABILITIES 

200 

MENARDS HOME IMPROVEMENT STORE 185 

EDGEWOOD VISTA ASSISTED LIVING FACILITY 130 

NRRI-UMD ENVIRONMENTAL PRODUCTS 

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT 

70 

MILLER HILL SUBARU JEEP AUTO DEALERSHIP 60 

 

2023 Larger Taxpayers 
TAXPAYER TYPE OF PROPERTY 2020/21 NET TAX 

CAPACITY 

% OF CITY’S TOTAL NET 

TAX CAPACITY 

AMERICAN 

TRANSMISSION CO., LLC 

UTILITY 756,242 4.60% 

ALLETE / MINNESOTA 

POWER 

COMMERCIAL/UTILITY 553,006 3.37% 

WAL-MART COMMERCIAL 287,346 1.75% 

HERMANTOWN 

APARTMENTS LLC 

APARTMENT 282,325 1.72% 

FLEET FARM 

PROPERTIES, LLC 

COMMERCIAL 274,008 1.67% 

CS DULUTH OWNER, LLC APARTMENT 249,762 1.52% 

INDIVIDUAL APARTMENT 211,356 1.29% 

MENARDS COMMERCIAL 171,520 1.04% 

BDP ENTERPRISES, LLC COMMERCIAL 170,142 1.04% 

PATRIOT PROPERTIES OF 

HERMANTOWN 

COMMERCIAL 153,992 .937% 

TOTAL  3,109,699 18.93% 

 

 

2023 Principal Employers



10 

 

 

 

Elections 

2016 - General Elections - Registered Voters - 6,508 

   Early Voters - 1,159 

                                                Ballots Cast – 5,263 

     81% Voting   

2018 - State Elections -     Registered Voters – 5,864 

                New Registers – 449 

                Absentee Voters – 1,072 

                                              Ballots Cast – 4,763 

                                              76% Voting  

2020 - General Elections –  

                                              Registered Voters – 6,326 

                New Registers (In person) – 312 

                Absentee Voters – 3,575 

                                              Ballots Cast – 5,974 

                                              94% Voting  

 

 

Public Safety 

Fire Protection –     3 Stations 

                                   25 Active members 

                                   ISO Class 5/10 

Police Protection – 1 Station 

                                  16 Sworn Officers 

 

Public Works 

53 Miles of Asphalt Streets Maintained 
19 Miles of Gravel Roads Maintained 
37 Cul-de-sacs 
Streets – 72 Miles 
 

 

Recreation 

325.95 Acres of City Parks, Playgrounds, Playfields  
3 miles of paved trails 
4 Parks, which encompass 3 playgrounds, 8 baseball/softball fields, 5 soccer fields, 1 skate park and 2 soft 
surface walking/skiing trails 
 

 

Utilities Data 

Municipal Water System – purchases all drinkable water from City of Duluth 

  2,385 Connections 

 64.75 Miles  

 435,616 Gallon Average Daily Usage 



11 

 

 

 

 545 Hydrants for fire control 

 750,000 Gallons system capacity – 2 water storage tanks 

 

Municipal Sewer System – Western Lake Superior Sanitary District 

 2,195 Connections 

 70.85 Miles of Sanitary Sewer Mains 

 432,876 Gallons Average Daily Usage 

 805 Manholes 

 14 Lift Stations 

 

City Bond Ratings  

      AA Standard & Poor’s - 2014A, 2016A, 2016B, 2018A, 2018B, 2019A, 2020A, 2020B, and 2021A G.O. Bonds 

      AA- Standard & Poor’s - 2012A General Obligation Bonds 

  



12 

 

 

 

Community History 
 

The history of Hermantown is a story of independent people interacting with big government.  It started at the 

very beginning, with pioneers who were granted a piece of the wilderness by the government after living on it, 

working it, and improving it.  August Kohlts was granted the first homestead in the Town of Herman in 1872 

after living on the land for five years.  He and a friend hauled supplies to their land west of the Midway Road by 

hitching two St. Bernard dogs to a homemade wagon and following a crooked trail (now the Hermantown and 

Five Corners Roads) through the woods.   

Much has been said about where the town got its name.  Unfortunately, this cannot be proven, but we know 

from county records that it was referred to as the Town of Herman in 1873 when taxes were received from the 

town.  At this time there were very few people living in the town.  The man who headed the survey crew in the 

town was named August Herman and the town derived its name from him.   

By the turn of the century the Town of Herman had a population of 625.  There was rail passenger service into 

Duluth from Adolph, named after Adolph Bjorlin, who had a general store at the corner of Midway and Morris 

Thomas.  Herman had its first land boom, the result of rumors that the government would be building a new 

seaway connecting Duluth with the East Coast.  Herman land sold for $250 an acre in 1897, compared to prices 

of $12.50 an acre forty years later. 

Ten years later, the township had grown by 300 people, built three new two-room schools, and had a town hall 

in an old one-room school at Lavaque and Hermantown Roads.  There were several sawmills, a Herman Ice 

Company cutting ice from Mogie Lake and selling it for cold storage to nearby dairies, a slaughterhouse at 

Haines and Hermantown Roads, and carrier mail service in the township. 

But the growth of the township was set back by the great forest fire of 1918, which swept through Herman and 

36 other townships, including Cloquet and Moose Lake.  Hardly a building in town was left standing.  Among 

the few that did survive were the three two-room schools, the church at Maple Grove and Midway, the town 

hall and the Woodmen Hall (the center of all activity in the township at the time).  With help from the Red 

Cross, the town was quickly rebuilt, but the 1920 population was down to 842. 

Herman's population would soon get a boost from a new wave of homesteaders.  During the hard times of the 

Depression the federal government built nearly a hundred "subsistence homestead" projects designed to move 

people trapped in poverty in the cities to new homes in rural or suburban locations.  One of the two Minnesota 

projects was assigned to Herman. 

The Jackson Project was completed in 1937.  Each of the 84 homesteads had a brick veneer farmhouse; half 

also had a garage/barn combination.  Each had five or ten acres of land. The family also received a pig, a cow, 

and 35 chickens.  The idea was that the family would be able to raise its own food and use the profits from 

selling any surplus to work off its debt to the government.  The units were sold to homesteaders on very liberal 

terms.  The average price for the home and property was $2,687.40 plus interest.  Plumbing and electrical 

wiring were required.  The project marked the start of a transition from rural to suburban for the Town of 

Herman. 

Twenty years later it was time for a third wave to come to the township.  They were the suburbanites of the 

1950's, who came from Duluth to the rural township with its low taxes, country living space, and good school 

district.   

The Air Force became a factor beginning in 1953.  In 1957, the construction of a 105-family housing unit on 

base brought 120 new students to the school district.  By 1959, the original brick schoolhouse had been added 

to five times, and a brand-new elementary school built. 



13 

 

 

 

Form of Government 

The Town of Herman was profoundly influenced by a more local form of government in 1974.  A few days after 

the 4th of July, the neighboring city of Duluth announced its intention to annex two-thirds of the township in 

order to keep its population over the 100,000 mark and retain first class city status. 

 

Herman, which had already applied to be designated a city, was outraged.  Thousands of citizens turned out for 

public hearings on the matter. They posted signs, organized committees, sent telegrams, and planned 

strategies. 

 

The fate of Herman, whether it would be split in two, keep its grass roots democracy township organization, or 

become a city, was in the hands of the Minnesota Municipal Commission.  The town board told the commission 

that its 7,000 citizens needed more services that it could provide with the limited taxing power of a 

township.  Some of the citizens wanted to remain a township and have a direct vote at annual town 

meetings.  Duluth claimed that Herman was actually an outgrowth of Duluth anyway, and would benefit by 

becoming part of the larger municipality.  As a township, Herman could be annexed at any time by the city of 

Duluth, whether the township residents agreed or not.  As a city, that would not be possible.  On February 11, 

1975, the Municipal Commission declared that the Town of Herman could become the City of Hermantown on 

December 31 of that year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



14 

 

 

 

The Organization 
 

Elected Officials 
 

Mayor – Wayne Boucher   January 2021 to December 2024 

City Councilors 

John Geissler     January 2021 to December 2024 
Brian LeBlanc     January 2023 to December 2026 
Andy Hjelle     January 2023 to December 2026 
TBD      January 2021 to December 2024 
 
 

Appointed Officials 
 

City Administrator   City Department Heads 

 

John Mulder    Dir. Finance & Admin. Kevin Orme 
     Building Official  Adam Schminski   
City Attorney    Public Works Director Paul Senst 
     Police Chief  Jim Crace 
Overom Law, PLLC   Comm. Dev. Director Eric Johnson 
 
City Auditor    City Clerk 

 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP   Jackie Dolentz 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



15 

 

 

 

Mission Statement 

MISSION OF THE HERMANTOWN CITY COUNCIL  

W o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r  t o  s e r v e  a n d  b u i l d  o u r  

c o m m u n i t y .  

SHARED VALUES AND GUIDING PRINCIPLES  

The Hermantown City Council and Staff share the following core values and guiding principles as we fulfill our 

mission for the community. 

Good Governance and Stewardship… We operate honestly, ethically, and with integrity, civility, and 

professionalism.  We pride ourselves in listening and making informed decisions to set policy, manage limited 

resources, and provide a strong voice for the community as a whole. 

Innovative, Creative, and Transformative… We fulfill our potential by embracing change that respects our 

community culture and heritage.  We are open to new ideas, approaches, and best practices and will take risks 

that support continuous improvement. 

Approachable Leadership… We are approachable leaders who are open minded, think independently and are 

future driven as we set a clear vision and strategy for the community. 

Fiscal Responsibility… We build trust and confidence through accountable and transparent stewardship of the 

public funds and resources entrusted to us. 

Inclusive and Respectful… We practice civility and share a mutual respect for the diversity of community 

interests as we make timely decisions based on broad engagement and communication.  

Relationships and Alliances…We collaborate with our citizens, businesses, and other partners to build strong, 

sustainable alliances.  We also communicate and demonstrate our values and strengths in order to achieve 

better outcomes together.  

Quality Services…We are committed to delivering exceptional service to the community through our valued 

employees.  Our team is empowered to act, find solutions, and respectfully serve our citizens and businesses in 

a timely, flexible, friendly, and professional manner. 

Quality of Life… We are an intergenerational, safe, and caring community of choice that will protect our 

cultural and natural resources and celebrate our successes. 

 

 

 

 



16 

 

 

 

 

Budget Message 
 

2023 Budget 

November 15, 2022   

 

The 2023 City of Hermantown Budget: 

 

The adoption of the annual budget is one of the most important actions taken by the City Council each year. At 

the base level it is a legal document that gives authority to incur obligations and pay expenditures. However, it 

is more than just numbers and financial data. It reflects the priorities, values, principles, goals, and the 

overarching mission of the Council in part by allocating limited resources among departments. In short, it is 

intended to further the mission of “Working together to serve and build our community.”   

 

Council Priorities:  

 

Since 2011, the City Council has met in the beginning of each odd numbered year to create a list of priorities for 

the next two to four years (the remainder of their current terms).  Individual Council members have an 

opportunity to communicate their goals.   

 

On January 25, 2021, the City Council reviewed the results from the planning discussion in January 2019 and 

the progress made on the issues that had been identified. Council members were then asked what they would 

like to see accomplished over the next 2-4 years.  

 

Community Recreation Initiative. bonding and sales tax    

 3 components (Ice Arena, Trails, Fichtner Park)  

Trails as part of the Community Recreation    

Hermantown Dog Park 

 

 

 



17 

 

 

 

Broadband  

Zip code – as it relates to Sales Tax    

LGA dollars – change formula   

Comp community strategic plan (heavy community involvement)  

Re-start Advance Hermantown – create new destiny drivers   

Blandin Leadership Program  

Recruit business proactively  

Housing – PUD, different options/standards for developers 

Exempt seasonal agriculture watering from sewer charges (swimming pool) 

Public safety resources  

Water/Sewer extensions 

Affordable housing 

 

Following the creation of the list, each member was asked to vote on their top 4 priorities with 4 being the 

most important of their top priority and 1-0 being the least important priority. The individual results follow the 

item on the list below. 

 

City Council Priority Planning Total Total 
 

January 25, 2021 Votes Vote Average 

 
Cast Value Score 

Community Rec int.  bonding and sales tax 4 16 3.2 

Broadband 4 11 2.2 

Zip code – as it relates to Sales Tax 3 6 1.2 

Comp community strategic plan (heavy community involvement) 2 6 1.2 

Trails as part of the Community Recreation 1 4 0.8 

LGA dollars – change formula 3 3 0.6 

Recruit business proactively 2 3 0.6 

RE-start Advance Hermantown – create new destiny drivers 1 1 0.2 

(The average score is based on the total vote value divided by the number of members on the City Council.)   

 
Our mission, values, and guiding principles convey how budget decisions relate to the vision for the future of 
Hermantown. Resources are a limited commodity. Because of this fact, saying “no” to some issues, while not 
desirable, is imperative to narrowing our focus and accomplishing the current City Council Priorities and overall 
mission. Tony Blair once said, “The art of leadership is saying no, not saying yes. It is very easy to say yes.” 
Saying no will help us be focused and succeed in accomplishing our priorities. 



18 

 

 

 

Expenditures: At this time, expenditures in the 2023 General Fund Budget are increasing 7.92% or 

$533,233. As a measure of comparison, the expenditures increased 7% last year.  As a general rule in 2023 

approximately $72,000 in expenditures is the equivalent of 1% of tax levy.  This increase is due in part to the 

following factors: 

∙Normal personnel expenditure increases (cost of living, step increases, health insurance) 

∙Travelers Insurance rate increase 

∙Funding for City communications department 

∙Inflationary expenditure increases such as the price of gasoline 

∙Funding for park dedication fund  

∙Increase in funding for capital equipment  

Revenues:  Revenues in the 2023 General Fund Budget are $7,266,219 an increase of $533,233 from 2022.  

The General Fund budget relies heavily on local property tax (levy) to fund the expenditures.  The levy makes 

up 92% of the total revenue.  The statutory formula eliminated Local Government Aid to the City of 

Hermantown and transferred that burden to the property tax base.  Local Government Aid is again zero for 

2023.   

 

Levy:   The total levy under this preliminary general fund budget is projected to increase 6.91%.  The main 

components of this increase are the general fund levy, debt levy, and the HEDA levy.  

General Fund Levy:  The general fund levy is increasing 8.83%. This is an increase from the previous 

year.  

HEDA Levy:  The HEDA levy is staying the same. This is consistent with our Financial Management Plan. 

Debt Levy:   The debt levy is decreasing 17.25% due to no new debt in 2022 and a levy supported piece 

of an old bond issue no longer needed. 

 

For 2022, exclusive of the Fleet Farm and Holiday Inn developments, the Net Tax Capacity grew by 

approximately 11%.  With the total levy growing less than this, it causes an decrease in the tax rate, so that an 

individual homeowner will pay less for the same value of home.  The rate decreases from .4666 to .4544, a 

2.62% decrease.  

 

Financial Management Plan: 

The City is becoming increasingly proactive in planning farther in advance and planning in a comprehensive 

way. Towards that end, in January 2019, the City adopted a Financial Management Plan which integrates 

existing debt, Capital Improvement Plan, future planned debt, tax base growth, future operating expenses, staff 

additions, actual financial results, current and proposed budgets, and financial policies. A long-term Road 

Improvement Plan and how to finance road improvements is included in this plan. Some of the tangible 

benefits of this plan include: Implementing a Road Improvement Plan, additional staff, additional funding for 

parks, additional funding for municipal buildings, additional funding for HEDA, additional funding for capital 

improvements, and maintaining adequate Fund Balance reserves. During the 2021 budget process the City 



19 

 

 

 

made a conscious decision to materially deviate from the Financial Management Plan due to the COVID-19 

pandemic. The City accomplished this with delaying and/or changing planned new hires, reducing capital 

equipment, reducing the HEDA levy, and reducing saving for long term building repairs. This has changed the 

Financial Management Plan. This City is currently in the process of redoing the Financial Management Plan in 

2022 which should be adopted in early 2023. This will continue to help the City maintain fiscal responsibility 

while striving to achieve stated priorities.  

 

Departmental Goals and Performance Measures: 

 

In 2020, the Budget Book included goals and performance measures for each department. These are included 

in each year’s budget book now.  These goals and performance measures are reviewed and updated each year 

to ensure continued relevance, accuracy and improvement.     

 

Conclusion:  

This budget is a comprehensive and detailed document. Once again, the City received the Distinguished Budget 

Presentation Award for its annual budget for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2022. We look forward to the 

process and the results of focusing on our mission and Council Priorities in 2023. Ultimately it is through the 

combination of the leadership of the Mayor and City Council along with the work ethic and stewardship of the 

employees that we will together serve and build our community in 2023.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

John Mulder 

City Administrator 

 

 

Kevin Orme 

Director of Finance & Administration 

 

 

 

 

 

 



20 

 

 

 

Council Priorities 
 

Since 2011, the City Council has met in the beginning of each odd numbered year to create a list of priorities for 

the next two to four years (the remainder of their current terms).  Individual Council members have an 

opportunity to communicate their goals.   

 

On January 25, 2021, the City Council reviewed the results from the planning discussion in January 2019 and 

the progress made on the issues that had been identified. Council members were then asked what they would 

like to see accomplished over the next 2-4 years.  

A “priority statement” was then developed for each category as seen below.  The statement was intended to 

identify why the items in that category are important to the City Council.   

Substantial progress has been made on most of the below priorities.   

Parks:  Create new recreational and wellness opportunities for city residents 

Topic Plan of Action/ Status 

Community Rec initiative.  Bonding and sales tax            

(3 components: Ice Arena, Trails, Fichtner Park) 

• Legislative approval was granted pending the 

outcome of referendum on the issue in 

November of 2022. The referendum passed 

for all 3 projects on November 8, 2022. 

• In 2022, hired Kraus Anderson as the 

construction manager and DSGW as the 

architect for the ice arena expansion 

• Hired Northland Consulting Engineers and 

SAS Architect to create plan for Fichtner 

Park. 

Trails as part of the Community Recreation • Two segments of the trail were opened in 

2021.  Boulder Trial from Stebner Park to 

Hermantown Road; and part of North Keene 

Creek Trail from Morris Thomas to the 

parking lot of Keene Creek Park.  

• City Staff created an informational video of 

the City’s Master Trail Plan as part of the 

educational process for the referendum.  

 

 

 

 

 



21 

 

 

 

Utilities:  Strategically expand utilities in the city to meet needs of the 

community. 

Topic Plan of Action/ Status 

Broadband The City Council took the following actions: 

1. Saw Fiber to the Home project by 

Mediacom completed providing up to 1 gig 

service to over 200 homes.  

2. Creation of a Broadband Taskforce in 2021. 

3. Set aside $200,000 of American Rescue 

Funds money toward this project 

4. Approved and received a planning grant 

application to St. Louis County 

5. Hired Hometown Fiber as a planning 

consultant for Broadband  

6. Provided a letter of support to Mediacom 

for a second State Broadband Grant 

 

 

Financial Management Plan:  Ensure the City is receiving revenue allowed for 

under law  

Topic Plan of Action/ Status 

Zip code – as it relates to Sales Tax City made a request for a separate zip code; 1998; 

2012; and 2016.  Each time it was denied, stating in 

part that that separate zip code would be inefficient 

and that zip codes were never intended to be the 

basis for a tax collection system.  

LGA dollars – change formula In 2022, there are 110 cities out of 854 that do not 

receive local government aid based on the State’s 

formula for distributing Local Government Aid.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



22 

 

 

 

Planning for Growth:  Take active steps to ensure community growth  

Topic Plan of Action/ Status 

Comprehensive community strategic plan (heavy 

community involvement) 

Hired HKGI to conduct lead the comprehensive 

planning process. Project was funded using one-time 

American Rescue Plan funding.  

 

Recruit business proactively The Hermantown Economic Development Authority 

(HEDA) approved 

• Contract with Braun to conduct an 

Alternative Urban Area Review for a 

potential Hwy 53 Business Park  

• Contract with Mammoth Sports for a 

development of conceptual plan in the 

Hermantown Marketplace 

• Contract with Northspan to conduct a 

business retention and expansion survey of 

local businesses.   

 

Re-start Advance Hermantown – create new destiny 

drivers 

Further discussion is needed on how this might fit 

into the comprehensive planning process.  

 



23 

 

 

 

2022 Highlights: 
 

Local Option Sales Tax Referendum Passes 

By a substantial margin, Hermantown voters decided to leverage local option sales tax to fund a trio of projects 

focused on community, recreation, and improved health outcomes. The overall referendum – dubbed the 

Community Recreation Initiative – included three component projects; a reimagining of Fichtner Park, the 

completion of the city-wide trail system, and the addition of a second indoor sheet of ice.  

The process for reaching the ballot was lengthy, as city officials originally made the first request for 

consideration at the state level in 2019 before the COVID-19 pandemic halted the process. The Minnesota 

legislature deemed the three projects of regional significance, which allowed Hermantown voters to make the 

final decision on the November ballot. 

With more than 4,700 voters weighing in on the three individual questions, the trails project passed with more 

than 3,300 supporting votes. The park and the indoor sheet of ice were a bit closer, as Fichtner Park garnered 

more than 3,100 positive tallies, and the potential new ice arena passed with more than 2,700 votes. 

New Duo Joins City Council* 

Another critical outcome from Hermantown’s 2022 ballot was the election of a pair of new city councilors. With 

incumbent Gloria Nelson choosing not to run and Natalie Peterson’s move out of Hermantown, four candidates 

were vying for two open positions.  

Hermantown voters elected Brian LeBlanc and Andy Hjelle, who will join the council in January.  

The asterisk above represents a third council member that will likely be appointed in the initial days of 2023. 

Grant Hauschild, who has served on Hermantown’s city council since his election in 2020, was victorious in his 

efforts to secure the region’s state senate seat. 

ARPA Helps Fund Continued Pandemic Efforts 

While the impact of the COVID-19 global health pandemic was undoubtedly more manageable in 2022 than in 

the previous two years, additional support was still crucial in Hermantown’s successful navigation of the 

challenging circumstances. Hermantown received approximately $1,000,000 in funding through the American 

Rescue Plan Act (ARPA).  

This additional funding helped the City fund significant one-time projects, such as improved video technology in 

the Hermantown Police Department for body cameras and updating the City’s comprehensive plan.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



24 

 

 

 

Several vital developments broke ground or came online within Hermantown in 2022. The most noticeable 

project to begin is the addition of The Pillars, a senior-living community located in the heart of Hermantown 

that will house several hundred residents when it opens in the coming years. The developer – Oppidan – 

worked with city officials to help create the much-needed housing stock addition to Hermantown.  

Along with the future senior-living complex, a vibrant new apartment complex continued growing and filling 

along the Highway 53 corridor of Hermantown. The Aery – a P&R Properties project – has added additionally-

needed housing stock to the community in the form of high-quality apartment living. The 100+ unit apartment 

complex reached capacity quickly and continued to thrive in 2022. 

Growth continued on the commercial front in the Hermantown Marketplace in 2022, with several more 

businesses joining a series of multi-use buildings opened by Patriot Properties.  

Additional housing permits – single and twin-style homes – showed that growth in Hermantown has not slowed 

despite the challenges presented by the pandemic over the last several years. 

Water Tower Update 

After rejuvenating its brand over the last few years, another Hermantown landmark was updated in 2022. 

Hermantown’s second water tower, located just off Highway 53, received updated branding and necessary 

functional refinishing and updates to continue serving the community. Although the project included taking the 

water tower offline for several months in 2022, the efforts of Hermantown’s Public Works team allowed for no 

water service interruptions in the community. 

Safety Continues to Be a Hallmark 

Long recognized as a safe, family-friendly community, Hermantown has set a high bar for safety marks over the 

last several years of the community survey. Following three years of feedback where 96%, 95%, and 97% of 

responding residents felt Hermantown was a safe city, estimates were that the rate inevitably had to dip in this 

year’s survey. Led by the Hermantown Police Department, the percentage of respondents ticked up to 98% this 

past year.  

Areas of focus remained the condition of streets and the quality of parks and trails, which have been a fitting 

focus of both the Community Recreation Initiative for 2022 and the multi-year Road Improvement Plan. 

dcunningham
Placed Image



25 

 

 

 

 

Distinguished Budget Presentation Award 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) presented a 

Distinguished Budget Presentation Award to the City of Hermantown, Minnesota for its annual budget for the 

fiscal year beginning January 1, 2022.  To receive this award, a governmental unit must publish a budget 

document that meets program criteria as a policy document, as an operations guide, as a financial plan, and as 

a communications device. This award is valid for a period of one year only.  The City believes our current 

budget continues to conform to program requirements, and are submitting it to GFOA to determine its 

eligibility for another award.  



26 

 

 

 

2023 Financial Summary Information 
 

 

 

Balanced Budget 

Per the City Operating Budget Policy, appropriations shall not exceed the total of the estimated revenues and 

available fund balance.  The City of Hermantown’s 2023 budget is a balanced budget. 

General Fund:   

2023 budgeted revenues are $533,233 higher than 2022 budgeted revenues, while 2023 budgeted 

expenditures are $533,233 higher than the 2022 budgeted expenditures.   

Special Revenue Funds: 

2023 budgeted revenues are $9,046 less than 2022 budgeted revenues and expenditures are $430,791 less 

than last year.  This decrease is mainly due to less budgeted capital improvements in the Sales Tax Fund. 

Debt Service Funds: 

Debt Service Funds are budgeting revenues of $3,709,992 and expenditures of $3,845,126 in 2023. This is 

$165,325 less in revenue and $58,776 more in expenditures than budgeted in 2022. In 2022 we did not issue 

any additional bonds or incur additional debt. 

Capital Project Funds: 

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or 

assigned to expenditures for capital outlays including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and 

other capital assets.  The City does not budget for all Capital Projects Funds; however, the City does budget for 

the General Capital Projects Fund (Fund 401). Therefore, in the above financial summary information, the 

actual column includes all Capital Project Funds while the Budgeted columns only include the General Capital 

Projects Fund (Fund 401) 

 

 

Revenues Expenditures Revenues Expenditures Revenues Expenditures

General Fund 6,954,560          6,301,722          6,732,986          6,732,986          7,266,219    7,266,219     

Special Revenue Funds 5,322,498          5,097,611          4,100,318          4,741,121          4,091,272    4,310,330     

Debt Service Funds 8,076,914          7,215,437          3,875,317          3,786,350          3,709,992    3,845,126     

Capital Project Funds 3,913,899          4,153,018          510,000             308,470             773,500       502,720        

Enterprise Funds 5,571,210          4,395,444          4,070,733          4,389,230          4,481,241    4,857,632     

Total 29,839,081       27,163,232       19,289,354       19,958,157       20,322,224 20,782,027   

2021 Actual 2022 Original Budget 2023 Budget



27 

 

 

 

Enterprise Funds: 

2023 budgeted revenues are $410,508 more than 2022 budgeted revenues. 2023 budgeted expenditures are 

$468,402 more than 2022 budgeted expenditures due to a budgeted increase in utility usage and water cost 

and a slight increase in capital equipment. 



28 

 

 

 

Financial Structure, Policy, and Process 

 

Organization Structure  

 

The City of Hermantown was incorporated on December 31, 1975.  The City is a Plan A form of government.  A 

five-member council consists of a mayor and four councilors.  Councilors serve four-year terms; the mayor is 

elected to a four-year term.  City elections are held in even years.  The council may appoint independent boards 

and commissions, such as a utilities commission, and advisory bodies, such as a planning commission.  The 

council appoints the City Administrator, City Attorney, City Engineer and department heads.  The council has all 

the administrative and legislative authority for governance of the city.   

 

The City Administrator controls and directs the administration of the City’s affairs and supervises all 

departments.  Activities are managed through five departments (Police, Finance, Community Development, 

Building Inspection and Public Works), each with a Director appointed by City Council and reporting to the City 

Administrator.  In addition, there are other employees hired by the City Administrator including the city clerk 

and general administration. 

 

A description of the departments and their functions is included in this document.  

 



29 

 

 

 

City of Hermantown Org Chart 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

People of 
Hermantown

Mayor & City 
Council

City 
Administrator

City Clerk

Elections

Records

Licensing

Finance

Accounting

Budget

Utility Billing

Capital 
Improvement 

Plan

Information     
Systems

Police

Clerical

Administration

Investigations

School 
Resources & 

DARE

K9

Patrol

Public Works

Utility       
Maintenance

Street       
Maintenance

Park         
Maintenance

Building    
Maintenance

Cemetery

Community 
Development

Building        
Inspection

Clerical

Infrastructure 
Manager

Communications 
Director

Consultants:Legal, 
Engineer, Planning & 

Zoning

Board of Appeals, Planning 
& Zoning Commission, 

Park Board, Utility 
Commission



30 

 

 

 

 

City of Hermantown Fund Structure 
 

 

  

City of 
Hermantown  

Fund Structure

Governmental
Funds

General

Fund

General 
Government

Public Safety

Public 
Works

Comm 
Development

Other

Special 
Revenue

Funds

HEDA

Park 
Dedication

Wetland 
Mitigation

Sales Tax

Police 
Program

Cable TV

Soccer 
Association

EWC

ARPA

Debt Service 
Funds

Equipment 
Debt Service

2016B Bond

2016A Bond

2012A Bond

2014A Bond

2018A Bond 

2018B Bond

2019A Bond

2020A Bond

2020B Bond

2021A Bond

Special 
Deficiency

Capital 
Projects Funds

General 
Capital 

Muncipal State 
Aid Streets

Municipal 
Building

Abatement

TIF District #1 
Improvements

Special 
Assessment

Construction

Munger Trail

Proprietary 
Funds

Enterprise 
Funds

Water

Sewer

Street Lighting 
& Traffic 

Signalization

Storm Water



31 

 

 

 

Fund Accounting 
 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is considered a 

separate accounting entity.  The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing 

accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues, and expenditures as appropriate.   

Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for 

which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.  The various funds are 

grouped, for budgeting purposes, into two broad fund categories: Governmental Funds and Enterprise 

(Proprietary) Funds. 

 

Governmental Funds include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, and Capital Project 

Funds. 

 

Fund Description Major  

Budgeted 

Non-

Major 

Budgeted 

General 

Fund 

The general fund is the primary revenue source and operating 

fund for most services cities typically offer.  These include 

public safety (police, fire and building inspection) and street 

maintenance and parks.  In addition, the City Council, 

Administration, Finance, Community Development, City 

Attorney, City Engineer, Planning & Zoning are predominately 

funded by the General Fund. It is used to account for all 

financial resources except those reported in another fund. 

X  

 

 



32 

 

 

 

Special Revenue Funds 
 

Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 

restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. 

 

Fund Description Major 

Budgeted 

Non-

Major 

Budgeted 

Sales Tax 

Fund 

Accounts for the local sales tax collected that is authorized by 

the Minnesota State Legislature to fund: construction of a 

Wellness Center, extending a sewer interceptor line, 

construction of a booster pump station, reservoirs, and related 

improvements to the water system, and construction of a 

building containing a police station, fire station and an 

administrative services facility.   

X  

Hermantown 

Economic 

Development 

Authority 

Created to preserve and create jobs, enhance tax base, and 

promote the general welfare of the people of the City.  (Board 

comprises of entire City Council, Mayor, and two community 

representatives). 

 X 

Park 

Dedication 

Fund 

Accounts for the collection of revenues dedicated to the 

acquisition and capital improvement of City parks. 
 X 

Wetland 

Mitigation 

Fund  

Accounts for the collection of revenues from landowners who 

disturb wetlands in connection with the development of a 

parcel of land. 

 X 

Police 

Program 

Accounts for revenue and expenditures for special police 

programs. 
 X 

Cable 

Television 

Accounts for the revenues and expenditures associated with 

administering a franchise agreement to provide cable television 

to Hermantown residents. 

 X 

Soccer 

Association  

Accounts for the revenue from the Soccer Association for the 

development of the Hermantown Stebner Soccer Park 
 X 

EWC Lease Accounts for the revenue and expenditures from leasing space 

in the EWC to Essentia 
 X 

COVID-ARPA Accounts for revenue received from Federal Government for 

Covid related purposes and corresponding expenditures. 
 X 

 

 



33 

 

 

 

Debt Service Funds 

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general 

long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. 

 

 

Fund Description Major 

Budgeted 

Non-Major 

Budgeted 

Fund 301 

Equipment Debt Service 

Accounts for the accumulated resources to pay 

the interest and principal payments on any 

Certificate of Indebtedness  

 X 

Fund 315 

2016B (Was 2006A) General 

Obligation Bonds 

Accounts for the accumulated resources to pay 

the interest and principal payments on the 

2016B GO Bonds.  

X  

Fund 318 

2016A (Was 2003A and 2009A) 

General Obligation Bonds  

Accounts for the accumulated resources to pay 

the interest and principal payments on the 

2016A GO Bonds. 

X  

Fund 320 

2012A General Obligation Bonds 

Accounts for the accumulated resources to pay 

the interest and principal payments on the 

2012A GO Bonds. 

 X 

Fund 322 

2014A General Obligation Bonds 

Accounts for the accumulated resources to pay 

the interest and principal payments on the 

2014A GO Bonds.    

X  

Fund 323 

2018A General Obligation Bonds 

Accounts for the accumulated resources to pay 

the interest and principal payments on the 

2018A GO Bonds.    

X  

Fund 324 

2018B General Obligation Bonds 

Accounts for the accumulated resources to pay 

the interest and principal payments on the 

2018B GO Bonds.    

X  

Fund 325 

2019A General Obligation Bonds 

Accounts for the accumulated resources to pay 

the interest and principal payments on the 

2019A GO Bonds.    

X  

Fund 350 

Special Assessment Deficiency  

Accounts for the accumulated resources to 

ensure debt service payments of bonds in cases 

where special assessments have been deferred 

or collections are not sufficient. 

 X 

 

 

 

Fund 326 

2020A General Obligation Bonds 

Accounts for the accumulated resources to pay 

the interest and principal payments on the 

2020A GO Bonds.    

X  

Fund 327 

2020B General Obligation Bonds 

Accounts for the accumulated resources to pay 

the interest and principal payments on the 

2020B GO Bonds.    

X  

Fund 328 

2021A General Obligation Bonds 

Accounts for the accumulated resources to pay 

the interest and principal payments on the 

2021A GO Bonds. 

X  



34 

 

 

 

Capital Projects Funds 

 

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or 

assigned to expenditures for capital outlays including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and 

other capital assets.  The City does not budget for all Capital Projects Funds; however, the City does budget for 

the General Capital Projects Fund (Fund 401). A summary of Projects and Funding sources can be found later in 

this document. 

 

Enterprise Funds – In addition to the Governmental Funds, the City maintains several separate enterprise 

funds.  These enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner 

similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, 

including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 

recovered primarily through user charges. 

 

 

Fund Description Major 

Budgeted 

Non-Major 

Budgeted 

Water Fund 

 

The City provides water service to its 

citizens and commercial entities. This 

fund accounts for the activity of 

providing water services to the public. 

X  

Sewer Fund 

 

The City’s sewers protect public health 

and preserve water quality.  The City is 

connected to Western Lakes Sanitary 

Sewer District’s sewer system.  This fund 

provides sewer disposal services to the 

public. 

X  

Street Lighting & Traffic 

Signalization Fund 

 

The City maintains the street lighting and 

traffic signals owned by the City. This 

fund accounts for the activity of lighting 

and signalizing public streets. 

 X 

Storm Water Fund 

 

The City maintains the storm water 

infrastructure of the City.  This fund 

maintains that infrastructure throughout 

the City. 

X  

 

 

 



35 

 

 

 

Expenditure Object Classifications 

Personnel Services 

This object of expenditure classification includes expenses for salaries, wages, and related employee 

benefits provided for persons employed by the City.  Employee benefits include employer 

contributions to social security, Medicare, PERA, MSRS, health insurance, life insurance, disability 

insurance, health care savings plan and worker’s compensation. 

Supplies 

This object of expenditure classification includes articles and commodities that are consumed or 

materially altered when used, such as office supplies, operating supplies, repair and maintenance 

supplies, and tools and small equipment. 

Other Services & Charges 

This object of expenditure classification includes expenses for services other than personal services. 

Examples of such charges include professional services, communication, training, insurance, utility 

services, repair and maintenance, rentals and depreciation.   

Capital Outlay 

This object of expenditure classification includes outlays that result in the acquisition of or additions to 

capital assets. 

Debt Service 

This object of expenditure classification includes interest, principal payments and related charges of 

the city’s bond payments and certificates of indebtedness.   

Other Financing Uses  

 This object of expenditure classification includes transfers to other funds.  

  



36 

 

 

 

Departmental/Fund Relationship - Governmental Funds 
The following matrix illustrates the relationship between the City of Hermantown’s functional units, major 

funds, and non-major funds in the aggregate. For example, the Police function has some authorized operations 

in the General Fund and in the Police Program Fund.  

 

  

Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Debt 

Service 

Funds

Capital 

Project 

Fund

GEN
ER

AL F
UND

HED
A FU

ND

PA
RK D

ED
ICA

TIO
N FU

ND

W
ET

LA
ND M

ITI
GATIO

N FU
ND

CIT
Y S

ALE
S T

AX FU
ND

PO
LIC

E P
ROGRAM

 FU
ND

CA
BL

E T
V FU

ND

ES
SE

NTIA
 W

EL
LN

ES
S F

UND

DEB
T S

ER
VICE

 FU
NDS

GEN
ER

AL C
APIT

AL P
ROJEC

TS
 

FU
ND

Elected Officials x

City Clerk x

City Administrator x x

Elections x

Finance x

Legal x x x x x x

Community Development x x x x

Communitcations x

General Government Buildings x x

Customer Service x

Debt Service x

Police x x

Building Inspection x

Public Works x

Parks x x

Public Works Buildings x

Economic Incentives x x

Interfund Transfers x x x x x



37 

 

 

 

Departmental/Fund Relationship – Enterprise Funds 

The following matrix illustrates the relationship between the City of Hermantown’s functional units, major 

funds, and non-major funds in the aggregate. For example, the City Administrator has some authorized 

operations in the water fund, sewer fund, and stormwater fund. 

 

 

  

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds

W
ATE

R FU
ND

SE
W

ER
 FU

ND

ST
ORM

 W
ATE

R F
UND

ST
RE

ET
 LI

GHTIN
G &

 TR
AFF

IC 

SIG
NALIZ

ATIO
N FU

ND

Elected Officials

City Clerk

City Administrator x x x

Elections

Finance x x x

Legal x x x x

Community Development

Communications

General Government Buildings

Customer Service x x x

Debt Service

Police

Building Inspection

Public Works x x x x

Parks

Public Works Buildings x x

Economic Incentives

Interfund Transfers x x x



38 

 

 

 

Basis of Accounting and Basis of Budgeting 
 

The Basis of Budgeting is identical to the Basis of Accounting used in the audited financial statements for all 

funds.  The principles set forth as the Basis of Accounting are strictly observed in the budgeting process.  All 

budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).  There are no 

budgets adopted for Capital Projects Funds other than the General Capital Projects Fund (Fund 401).  

Governmental funds are budgeted for and accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.  

Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount 

of the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon 

enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. 

 

Major revenues that are susceptible to accrual include property taxes (excluding delinquent taxes received over 

60 days after year-end), special assessments, intergovernmental revenues, charges for services, and interest on 

investments.  Property tax and special assessment revenue is recognized when it becomes measurable and 

available to finance expenditures of the current period.  State revenue is recognized in the year in which it 

applies, according to Minnesota Statutes.  Special assessment revenue is recognized in the year it is received.  

Other revenues are considered measurable and available only when cash is received. 

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund 

liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, which is recognized when due.   

Enterprise (Proprietary) funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are 

recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.     

 

  



39 

 

 

 

Financial Management Policies 
 

Financial Management Policies Adoption 

The Financial Management Policies were adopted by resolution #2010-72 on July 19, 2010 by the City Council. 

The policies shall be reviewed by the Finance and Accounting staff on an ongoing basis and any modifications 

made thereto must be approved by the City Council. 

 

Financial Management Policies serve two main purposes: they draw together in a single document all of the 

City’s major financial policies.  Also, the plan establishes principles to guide both staff and City Council to make 

consistent and informed financial decisions. 

 

The City of Hermantown strives to ensure that it is capable of adequately funding and providing local 

government services needed by the City’s residents. The City will maintain or improve its infrastructure on a 

systematic basis to ensure quality living in Hermantown.  This responsibility includes providing and maintaining 

public facilities, managing municipal finances wisely, and carefully accounting for public funds.   

The Financial Policies establishes City policy in the following areas: 

1. Revenue Management 

2. Cash and Investments 

3. Reserves 

4. Operating Budget   

5. Capital Improvements Plan 

6. Economic Development Authority Fund 

7. Debt Management 

8. Accounting, Auditing and Financial Reporting 

9. Risk Management 

10. Fund Balance 

 

The objectives of these Financial Policies are: 

• To provide both short term and long-term future financial stability by ensuring adequate funding 

for providing services needed by the community; 

• To protect the City Council’s policy-making ability by ensuring that important policy decisions are 

not dictated by financial problems or emergencies to prevent financial difficulties in the future; 

• To provide sound principles to guide the decisions of the City Council and staff; 

• To employ revenue policies which prevent undue or unbalanced reliance on certain revenues, 

distribute the cost of municipal services fairly, and provide adequate funding to operate desired 

programs; 

• To provide essential public facilities and prevent deterioration of the City’s public facilities and 

infrastructure; 

• To protect and enhance the City’s credit rating and prevent default on any municipal debt; 

• To create a document that staff and Councilor’s can refer to during financial planning, budget 

preparation and other financial management issues; 

• To ensure the legal use and protection of all City funds through a good system of financial and 

accounting controls; 



40 

 

 

 

• To assist sound management of the City government by providing accurate and timely information 

on financial condition.   

 

The main policies most significant to the development of the budget are: Revenue Management; Operating 

Budget; Capital Improvements Plan; Debt Management; and Accounting, Auditing and Financial Reporting.   

 

The Revenue Management policy is designed to ensure diversified and stable revenue sources, and adequate 

long-term funding by using specific revenue sources to fund related programs and services.  The Operating 

Budget policy is the annual financial plan for funding the costs of City services and programs.  The Capital 

Improvements Plan policy states that the Capital Improvements Plan should be reviewed annually by the City 

Council to decide on the following: project prioritization, funding source acceptability, acceptable financial 

impact, and whether the issuing of certificates of indebtedness are appropriate to meet capital needs.  The 

Debt Management policy states that during the budget process the Council may review whether a debt study is 

necessary to be prepared in conjunction with the Capital Improvements Plan to provide information about the 

City’s debt structure.  The Accounting, Auditing and Financial Reporting policy states that the budget will be 

prepared in a manner to maximize its understanding by residents and elected officials.  The budget is available 

on the City’s website www.hermantownmn.com . 

 

1.   REVENUE MANAGEMENT 

It is essential to responsibly manage the City’s revenue sources to provide maximum value to the community.  

The City will maintain a diversified and stable revenue system in order to avoid short term fluctuations in a 

single revenue source.  The City will conservatively estimate its annual revenues.  All existing and potential 

revenue sources will be examined annually.  

 

The most important revenue policy guidelines established by the City Council are for the two major sources of 

city revenue:  property taxes and service fees/charges. 

 

A.  Property Taxes 

When possible, property tax increases should accommodate incremental adjustments.  Further, when 

discussing property taxes, the City should simultaneously explore other revenue and expenditure alternatives 

that will maximize the City’s future financial flexibility and ability to provide services.  This may include 

considering options such as debt management, fees and charges, cost allocation, use of reserves, and 

expenditure cuts. 

Possible factors for considering an increase in property tax include: 

• Maintenance of City services. 

• Long-term protection of the City’s infrastructure. 

• Meeting legal mandates imposed by outside agencies. 

• Maintaining adequate fund balance and reserve funds sufficient to maintain or improve the City’s 

bond rating. 

Property tax increases to meet other purposes will be based on the following criteria: 

• A clear expression of community need. 

• The existence of community partnerships willing to share resources. 

 

http://www.hermantownmn.com/


41 

 

 

 

B. Service Fees and Charges  

The City may consider service fees and charges wherever appropriate for the dual purposes of keeping the 

property tax rate at a minimum and to fairly allocate the full cost of services to the users of those services.  As 

an example of appropriate cost allocation, service fees and charges broaden the base to include tax exempt 

properties, which still have municipal costs associated with the property.  Specifically, the City may: 

• Establish utility rates sufficient to fund both the operating costs and the long-term depreciation 

and replacement of the utility systems. 

• Find community-based partners to share in service delivery. 

• Make services financially self-supporting. 

• Annually review City services and identify those for which charging user fees are appropriate.  

Initial review will be to determine whether the fees cover the cost of the service. Also included as 

part of this process may be a market analysis that compares our fees to comparable market cities. 

• Identify some enterprise services as entrepreneurial in nature.  The intent of entrepreneurial 

services will be to maximize revenues to the extent the market and the law allows. 

• Review the full cost of activities supported by fees and charges to identify the impact of inflation 

and other cost increases. 

 

C. Non-recurring Revenues  

Several revenue sources, such as intergovernmental transfers, one-time grants, court fines and other non-

recurring revenues are outside of direct City control and must be relied upon conservatively.   The City 

Administrator shall ensure that the budget preparation process includes an evaluation of all major non-

recurring revenues, in order to minimize reliance on unpredictable revenues for on-going operating costs.    

2.  CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Effective cash management is essential to good fiscal management.  Investment returns on funds not 

immediately required can provide a significant source of revenue for the City.  Investment policies must be well 

founded and uncompromisingly applied in their legal and administrative aspects in order to protect the City 

funds being invested. 

I. Investment Policy 

It is the policy of the City of Hermantown to invest public funds in a manner which will provide the highest 

investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow requirements of the City and in 

conformance to all state and local statutes governing the investment of public funds.   

The purpose of this Policy is to: 

a. Develop an overall program for cash investments, designed and managed with a high degree of 
professionalism, worthy of the public trust;  

b. Establish that elected and appointed officials and employees are custodians of a portfolio which 
shall be subject to public review;  

c. Establish cash investment objectives, delegation of authority, standards of prudence, internal 
controls, authorized investments, selection process for investments, and broker representations. 

 

 

 

 



42 

 

 

 

II. Scope 

This Policy applies to the investment and deposit of all funds of the City.  

A.  Pooling of Funds 

Except for cash in certain restricted and special funds, the City will consolidate cash and reserve balances from 

all funds to maximize investment earnings and to increase efficiencies with regard to investment pricing, 

safekeeping, and administration. Investment income will be allocated to the various funds based on their 

respective participation and in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.   

III. Objective 

At all times, investments of the City shall be in accordance with Minnesota Statutes Chapter 118A and 

amendments thereto.  The primary objectives of the City's investment activities shall be in the following order 

of priority: 

A.  Safety 

Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment portfolio.  Investments shall be undertaken in a 

manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The objective will be to mitigate 

credit risk, interest rate risk, and custodial risk. 

Credit Risk:  Credit Risk is the risk of loss due to failure of the security issuer or backer.  Thus, designated 

depositories shall have insurance through the FDIC (Federal Insurance) or the SIPC (Securities Investor 

Protection Corporation).  To ensure safety, it is the policy of the City that when considering an investment, all 

depositories under consideration be cross-checked against existing investments to make certain that funds in 

excess of insurance limits are not made in the same institution unless collateralized as outlined below.  

Furthermore, the City Council will approve all financial institutions, brokers, and advisers with which the City 

will do business. 

Interest Rate Risk:  Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due 

to changes in general interest rates.  The City will minimize Interest Rate Risk by structuring the investment 

portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the 

need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity. 

Custodial Risk:  The City will minimize deposit Custodial Risk, which is the risk of loss due to failure of the 

depository bank (or credit union), by obtaining collateral or bond for all uninsured amounts on deposit, and by 

obtaining necessary documentation to show compliance with state law and a perfected security interest under 

federal law. 

B.  Liquidity 

The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet projected disbursement requirements.  This is 

accomplished by structuring the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with cash needs to meet 

anticipated demands.  Generally, investments shall have “laddered” maturities so that money becomes 

available on a regular schedule.  Liquid funds will allow the City to meet possible cash emergencies without 

being penalized on investments. 

C.  Yield 

The investment portfolio shall be designed to manage the funds to maximize returns consistent with items A 

and B above and within the requirements set forth in this Policy.  Subject to the requirements of the above 

objectives, it is the policy of the City to offer financial institutions and companies within the City the 

opportunity to bid on investments; however, the City will seek the best investment yields.  



43 

 

 

 

IV. Delegation of Authority 

Responsibility for the investment program is hereby delegated by the City Council to the Finance Director.  

Authority to conduct actual investment transactions may be delegated to the Finance Director who shall act in 

accordance with procedures as established with this investment policy.  The authorized individuals, when 

acting in accordance with this Policy and exercising due diligence, shall not be held responsible for losses, 

provided that the losses are reported immediately and that appropriate action is taken to control further 

losses. 

V. Prudence 

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the “prudent investor”, and shall be 

applied in the context of managing the investments.  All investment transactions shall be made in good faith 

with the degree of judgment and care, under the circumstances, that a person of prudence, discretion and 

intelligence would exercise in the management of their own affairs.  This standard of prudence shall mean not 

for speculation, and with consideration of the probable safety of the capital as well as the probable investment 

return derived from assets. 

VI. Internal Controls 

Internal controls are designed to prevent loss of public funds due to fraud, error, misrepresentation, 

unanticipated market changes, or imprudent actions.  Before the City invests any surplus funds, competitive 

quotations shall be obtained.  Written quotations from local financial institutions shall be obtained via fax, 

email, or other form of written documentation, with all of them receiving the exact same rate request.  Verbal 

quotations shall be received from all other brokers, along with a subsequent confirmation.  If a specific maturity 

date is required, either for cash flow purposes or for conformance to maturity guidelines, quotations will be 

requested for instruments that meet the maturity requirement.  If no specific maturity is required, a yield 

analysis will be conducted to determine which maturities would be most advantageous.  Quotations will be 

requested from financial institutions for various options with regard to term and investment type.  The City will 

accept the quotation, which provides the highest rate of return within the maturity required and within the 

limits of this Policy. 

The Finance Director will report periodically to the City Council on the total of all funds invested and the total 

interest received on all securities year to date. 

 VII. Authorized Investments and Collateralization 

All City investments and deposits shall be those allowable by Minnesota Statutes Chapter 118A and 

amendments thereto.  In accordance with MN Statutes 118A, collateralization will be required on all demand 

deposit accounts, including checking, savings, and money market accounts, and non-negotiable certificates of 

deposit in excess of federal deposit insurance. 

State law defines the types of securities that a financial institution may pledge as collateral for public deposits.  

These securities include: 

• United States Treasury Issues 

• Issues of US Government Agencies and Instrumentalities  

• Obligations of State and Local Governments 

• Time Deposits (Certificates of Deposits fully insured by the federal deposit insurance company or 

federal agency).  

    



44 

 

 

 

Since the amount a public entity has on deposit will vary from time to time, the financial institution needs 

sufficient amounts of pledged collateral to cover 110% of the uninsured amount on deposit during peak deposit 

times.   

VIII. Diversification 

The City will attempt to diversify its investments according to type and maturity.  The portfolio, as much as 

possible, will contain both short-term and long-term investments.  The City will attempt to match its 

investments with anticipated cash flow requirements.  Extended maturities may be utilized to take advantage 

of higher yields. 

IX. Conflict of Interest 

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that 

could conflict with the proper execution and management of the investment program, or that could impair 

their ability to make impartial decisions.      

X. Broker Representations 

Municipalities must obtain from their brokers certain representations regarding future investments.   Pursuant 

to Minnesota Statutes 118A, the City shall provide each broker with the City’s investment policy, and the 

securities broker shall submit a certification annually to the City stating that the officer has reviewed the 

investment policies and objectives, as well as applicable state law, and agrees to disclose potential conflicts of 

interest or risk to public funds that might arise out of business transactions between the firm and the City.  All 

financial institutions shall agree to undertake reasonable efforts to preclude imprudent transactions involving 

the City’s funds.  

 3.   RESERVES 

It is important for the financial stability of the City to maintain reserve funds for unanticipated expenditures or 

unforeseen emergencies, as well as to provide adequate working capital for current operating needs so as to 

avoid short-term borrowing.  The Reserve Policy of the City is managed closely with the City’s Debt 

Management Policy.  The City may choose to consider paying cash for capital projects that can be anticipated 

and planned for in advance. Therefore, the City’s reserve levels fluctuate, in part, based on capital project 

plans. 

Policy Statement 

1. At year-end the City’s goal is to maintain an unreserved fund balance in the General and 

Special Revenue Funds of approximately 35 to 50 percent of the fund operating revenues or 

no less than five months of operating expenditures, which should provide the City with 

adequate funds until the next property tax revenue collection cycle (the level which will avoid 

issuing short-term debt to meet the cash flow needs of the current operating budget).  This 

need could fluctuate with each year’s budget objectives and appropriations such as large 

capital expenditures, and variations in the collection of revenues. 

a. The City will strive to maintain a fund balance within the HEDA Fund, a Special Revenue 

Fund, in order to meet both anticipated and unanticipated future economic development 

needs.  The City will annually evaluate the level of fund balance for its appropriateness.  

The Financial Management Plan includes a policy for the collection of revenue for the 

HEDA Fund.  

2. The City will maintain reserves in the Enterprise and Capital Funds at a minimum level 

sufficient to provide adequate working capital for current expenditure needs.  Generally, the 



45 

 

 

 

City shall strive for a minimum of 3-months operating cash in these funds.  (This minimum 

shall be calculated based on the approved budget multiplied by 25-percent).  The maximum 

amount of reserves in the Enterprise and Capital Funds shall be limited to the 3-months 

operating cash plus an amount of cash that is estimated to be needed to pay for future capital 

projects.  Future capital projects must be identified and quantified in a written finance plan 

for the fund which shall be included in the City’s annual budget document. 

3. The City will annually review the adequacy of all reserve balances.   

4. Judicious use of reserves within funds can be used to moderate fluctuations in capital projects 

and infrastructure maintenance expenses (i.e., Capital Projects Fund). 

4.   OPERATING BUDGET 

The Operating Budget is the annual financial plan for funding the costs of City services and programs.  The 

General Operating Budget includes the General, Special Revenue and Capital Funds.  Enterprise operations are 

budgeted in separate Enterprise Funds. 

1. The City Administrator shall submit a balanced budget in which appropriations shall not 

exceed the total of the estimated revenues and available fund balance. 

2. The City will provide for all current expenditures with current revenues.  The City will avoid 

budgetary procedures that balance current expenditures at the expense of meeting future 

years’ budgets. 

3. The City Administrator will coordinate the development of the capital improvement budget 

with the development of the operating budget.  Operating costs associated with new capital 

improvements will be projected and included in future operating budget forecasts. 

4. The budget will provide for adequate maintenance of the capital plant and equipment, and 

for their orderly replacement. 

5. The impact on the operating budget from any new programs or activities being proposed 

should be minimized by providing funding with newly created revenues whenever possible. 

6. The City Administrator will insure that a budgetary control system is in place to adhere to the 

adopted budget. 

7. The Finance Department will provide regular monthly reports comparing actual revenues and 

expenditures to the budgeted amounts. 

8. The operating budget will describe the major goals to be achieved and the services and 

programs to be delivered for the level of funding provided. 

9. In addition to operating expenses, Enterprise funds shall be budgeted to provide for 

replacement costs of property, plant, and equipment, if appropriate, when establishing rates 

and charges for services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



46 

 

 

 

 

5.  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (CIP) 

The demand for services and the cost of building and maintaining the City’s infrastructure continues to 

increase.  No city can afford to accomplish every project or meet every service demand.  Therefore, a 

methodology must be employed that provides a realistic projection of community needs, the meeting of those 

needs, and a framework to support City Council prioritization of those needs.  That is the broad purpose of the 

CIP. 

The CIP includes the scheduling of public improvements for the community over a five-year period and 

considers the community’s financial capabilities as well as its goals and priorities.  A “capital improvement” is 

defined as any major nonrecurring expenditure for physical facilities of government.  Typical expenditures are 

the cost of land acquisition or interest in land, construction of roads, utilities and parks.  Vehicles and 

equipment can be covered in a CIP or covered separately under an equipment schedule.  The CIP is directly 

linked to goals and policies, land use, and community facility sections of the Comprehensive Plan since these 

sections indicate general policy of development, redevelopment, and the maintenance of the community. 

 

CIP Development Process 

• Compile and prioritize projects.  Staff will consolidate and prioritize recommended projects into 

the proposed Capital Improvement Plan. 

• Devise proposed funding sources for proposed projects.  Recommended funding sources will be 

clearly stated for each project. 

• Project and analyze total debt service related to the total debt of the City. A debt study will 

summarize the combined impact of all the existing and proposed debt. 

 

On an annual basis, the City Council will evaluate the proposed CIP and decide on the following: 

• Project Prioritization 

• Funding Source Acceptability 

• Acceptable Financial Impact on Tax Levy, Total Debt, and Utility Rate Levels 

 

6.  HERMANTOWN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

The Hermantown Economic Development Authority (HEDA) was created by the City Council on April 6, 1992.  

The City Council acted to appoint the City Councilors, Mayor and two public members to serve as the Board of 

Commissioners.  Under Minnesota Statutes Chapter 469-Economic Development, cities are permitted to 

establish an EDA, including approval for the EDA to serve as a Housing & Redevelopment Authority (HRA).  

When the City created the EDA, it approved HRA authority for possible use in the future.  

Among the HRA powers in Minnesota law is the authority to collect a “special benefits” tax up to 0.0185 

percent of taxable market value in the City (Resolution 91-29 authorizes HEDA’s maximum levy at .01813) 

Approval of the City Council is required before the HEDA may levy the tax.  The Revenue Management Policy of 

the City, as included in this Financial Management Plan, sets policy for when a tax levy may be considered.  Of 

note, the HRA is a separate levy, and is not subject to the statutory levy limits.  The HEDA is subject to the 

statutory levy limits, except for a debt levy. 

This policy section sets policy for the “amount” of tax levy that will be considered for the HEDA. 



47 

 

 

 

 

Funding 

The HEDA, with approval by the City Council, shall annually appropriate money to the HEDA from a tax levy or 

other available source.  The appropriation shall be equivalent to the “maximum” that could be provided by a 

tax levy for economic development purposes.  The annual tax levy shall be set based on the amount needed 

when combined with other available sources achieves the funding level set by this policy.   

To provide other sources (non-tax) of funding to the HEDA, the City Council shall annually review the fund 

balance in the General Fund to determine whether sufficient unreserved fund balance is available for transfer 

from the General Fund to the HEDA.  The decision on transfer of funds shall be made at the time the annual 

HEDA tax levy is established.  If other sources of revenue are not available, the HEDA may set the tax levy at the 

maximum allowed. 

Procedure for Using Funds 

Expenditures may be made from the HEDA based on the following criteria: 

A. The HEDA appropriates the funds as part of the annual budget, or 

B. The HEDA authorizes an amendment to the HEDA budget outside of the annual appropriation 

process.  

 

7.  DEBT MANAGEMENT 

The use of borrowing and debt is an important and flexible revenue source available to the City.  Debt is a 

mechanism which allows capital improvements to proceed when needed, in advance of when it would 

otherwise be possible.  It can reduce long-term costs due to inflation, prevent lost opportunities, and equalize 

the costs of improvements to present and future constituencies. 

Debt management is an integral part of the financial management of the City.  Adequate resources must be 

provided for the repayment of debt, and the level of debt incurred by the City must be effectively controlled to 

amounts that are manageable and within levels that will maintain or enhance the City’s credit rating.  A goal of 

debt management is to stabilize the overall debt burden and future tax levy requirements to ensure that issued 

debt can be repaid and prevent default on any municipal debt.  A debt level which is too high places a financial 

burden on taxpayers and can create problems for the community’s economy as a whole. 

 

Policy Statement  

Wise and prudent use of debt provides fiscal and service advantages.  Overuse of debt places a burden on the 

fiscal resources of the City and its taxpayers.  The following guidelines provide a framework and limit on debt 

utilization: 

1. The City will weigh the benefits and costs of long-term borrowing for planned capital improvements 

(see CIP Policy) and short-term debt for capital outlay. 

2. The City should strive to avoid using long-term debt for current operations. 

3. When considering financing of capital expenditures, the City may consider paying cash for capital 

financing as well as debt financing.    

4. The City will pay back debt within a period not to exceed the expected useful life of the projects, with 

at least 50% of the principal retired within 2/3 of the term of the bond issue. 

5. The City will maintain good communications with bond rating agencies regarding its financial 

condition.  The City will follow a policy of full disclosure in every financial report and bond prospectus. 



48 

 

 

 

6. The City (by itself or with a financial advisor) will track and identify opportunities for restructuring or 

refinancing debt. 

7. When feasible, the City will use refunding mechanisms to reduce interest cost and evaluate the use of 

debt reserves to lower overall annual debt service where possible. 

8. The City’s goal is to:    

a. Maintain the level of annual debt service at or below the current debt levy. 

b. Maintain a debt service levy that is up to 7% of general fund operating expenditures. 

c. Quantify the impact of potential future debt on the debt service levy, and on various 

categories of property taxpayers (or other revenue derived customers).   

 

During the budget process, the Council may review whether a debt study is necessary to be prepared in 

conjunction with the Capital Improvements Plan to provide information about the City’s debt structure.  In 

deciding whether to include a Debt Study, the Council will consider such factors as how long it has been since 

the last Debt Study, if there have been material changes to the CIP, or if a large amount of debt is expected in 

the near future. 

 

8.   ACCOUNTING, AUDITING, AND FINANCIAL REPORTING 

The key to effective financial management is to provide accurate, current, and meaningful information about 

the City’s operations to guide decision making and enhance and protect the City’s financial position. 

 

Policy Statement 

1. The City’s accounting system will maintain records on a basis consistent with generally accepted 

accounting standards and principles for local government accounting as set forth by the Government 

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and in conformance with the State Auditor’s requirements per 

State Statutes.  This allows for modified accrual for populations exceeding 2,500. 

2. The City will establish and maintain a high standard of accounting practices. 

3. The City will follow a policy of full disclosure written in clear and understandable language in all 

reports on its financial condition. 

4. The budget will be prepared in a manner to maximize its understanding by residents and elected 

officials.  The budget will be available on the City’s website.   

5. The Finance Department will provide timely monthly and annual financial reports to users. 

6. An independent public accounting firm will perform an annual audit and issue an opinion on the City’s 

financial statements. 

7. Annually the City Council and staff will meet with the Auditors to review the audit report. 

8. Periodic financial reports on budget performance will be provided to the City Council quarterly. 

 

9.   RISK MANAGEMENT 

A comprehensive risk management plan seeks to manage the risks of loss encountered in the everyday 

operations of an organization.  Risk management involves such key components as risk avoidance, risk 

reduction, risk assumption, and risk transfers through the purchase of insurance.  The purpose of establishing a 

risk management policy is to help maintain the integrity and financial stability of the City, protect its employees 

from injury, and reduce overall costs of operations. 

 



49 

 

 

 

Policy Statement 

1. The City will maintain a risk management program that will minimize the impact of legal liabilities, natural 

disasters, or other emergencies through the following activities: 

a) Loss prevention - prevent losses where possible 

b) Loss control - reduce or mitigate losses 

c) Loss financing - provide a means to finance losses 

d) Loss information management - collect and analyze data to make prudent prevention, control, and 

financing decisions. 

2. The City will review and analyze all areas of risk in order to, whenever possible, avoid and reduce risks or 

transfer risks to other entities.  Of the risks that must be retained, it shall be the policy to fund the risks 

which the City can afford and transfer all other risks to insurers. 

3. The City will maintain an active safety committee comprised of City employees. 

4. The City will periodically conduct educational safety and risk avoidance programs within its various 

divisions. 

5. The City will, on an ongoing basis, analyze the feasibility of self-funding and other cooperative funding 

options in lieu of purchasing outside insurance in order to provide the best coverage at the most 

economical cost. 

6. Staff will report to the Council, annually on the results of the City’s risk management program for the 

preceding year. 

 

10.    FUND BALANCE 

I.  Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is to establish specific guidelines the City of Hermantown will use to maintain an 

adequate level of fund balance to provide for cash flow requirements and contingency needs because major 

revenues, including property taxes and other government aids are received in the second half of the City’s fiscal 

year.   

The purpose of this policy is to also establish specific guidelines the City of Hermantown will use to classify fund 

balances into categories based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the 

specific purposes for which amounts in these funds can be spent. 

  



50 

 

 

 

II. Classification of Fund Balance/Procedures 

Fund Balance Reporting  

Classification  Definition  Examples  

Non-spendable  “Amounts that cannot be spent because 

they are either (a) not in spendable form 

or (b) legally or contractually required to 

be maintained intact.”3  

• Inventories,  

• Prepaid items, and 

• Long-term receivables 

• Land held for resale 

Restricted  “Fund balance should be reported as 

restricted when constraints placed on the 

use of resources are either:  

a. Externally imposed by creditors 

(such as through debt covenants), 

grantors, contributors, or laws or 

regulations of other governments; 

or  

b. Imposed by law through 

constitutional provisions or 

enabling legislation.”4  

 

• Restricted by state statute,  

• Unspent bond proceeds,  

• Grants earned but not 

spent,  

• Debt covenants,  

• Taxes dedicated to a 

specific purpose, and  

• Revenues restricted by 

enabling legislation.  

U
n

re
st

ri
ct

e
d

 

Committed  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“Used for specific purposes pursuant to 

constraints imposed by formal action of 

the government’s highest level of 

decision-making authority”5  

Cannot be a negative number. 

The City Council will annually or as 

deemed necessary commit specific 

revenue sources for specified purpose by 

resolution.  This formal action must occur 

prior to the end of the reporting period, 

however, the amount to be subject to the 

constraint, may be determined in the 

subsequent period.   

To remove the constraint on specified use 

of committed resources, the City Council 

shall pass a resolution.   

• The City Council has 

decided to set aside $x for 

a project. 

• Property tax levies set for 

a specific purpose by 

resolution.  

• Amounts transferred to 

Capital Project Fund for a 

specific purpose. 

• Internal Reserves for a 

specific purpose such as a 

large capital purchase. 

 



51 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 Governmental fund reporting focuses primarily on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial 

resources and often has a budgetary orientation. The governmental fund category includes the general 

fund, special revenue funds, capital projects funds, debt service funds, and permanent funds. (Codification 

of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards § 1300.102).  

3 GASB Statement No. 54, ¶ 6  

4 GASB Statement No. 54, ¶ 8  

5 GASB Statement No. 54, ¶ 10  

6 GASB Statement No. 54, ¶ 13 

7 GASB Statement No. 54, ¶ 17   

 

 

 

 

 

Assigned  “Amounts that are constrained by the 

government’s intent to be used for 

specific purposes, but are neither 

restricted nor committed”6  

Cannot be a negative number.  

The City Council has delegated the 

authority to assign and remove 

assignments of fund balance for specified 

purposes to the Finance Director. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• City Council can set aside 

specific funds the City’s 

Finance Director may 

amend up to specified 

amount.  

• City Council delegates the 

authority to assign fund 

balance to the Finance 

Director. 

• City Council has 

appropriated fund balance 

usually titled “subsequent 

year’s expenditures”    

• Positive residual balances 

in government funds other 

than the general fund. 

 

 Unassigned 

 

 

Unassigned fund balance in the residual classification for the General Fund. 

This is fund balance that has not been reported in any other classification.  

The General Fund is the only fund that can report a positive unassigned fund 

balance.  Other government funds would report deficit fund balances as 

unassigned. 7 

 



52 

 

 

 

III. Minimum Fund Balance 

The City’s revenue stream is not evenly distributed throughout the year (i.e. property tax and state aid) and will 

need sufficient beginning fund balances to pay expenditures until these revenues are received.  In order to 

avoid service disruptions that otherwise could arise from revenue shortfalls or unanticipated expenditures, 

governmental fund balances will be managed in such a way as to maintain unrestricted fund balance on the last 

day of each fiscal year equal to the following:    

1. Up to 50% of Property Tax Levy – Budgeted in following year     

2. Up to 50% of State Aid Revenues – Local Government Aid and Municipal State Aid for Roads: Budgeted 

in following year    

3. Up to 10% of Annual Expenditures and Transfers Out – Budgeted in following year 

 

IV. Order of Resource Use 

Restricted fund balance resources are normally used first when an expenditure is incurred for purposes of 

which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance are available.  Also, for unrestricted fund balance, the City 

will spend in the following order; committed, assigned and unassigned, when an expenditure is incurred for 

purposes for which amounts in any of these unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.    

V. Stabilization Arrangements 

Stabilization arrangements are defined as formally setting aside amounts for use in emergency situations or 

when revenue shortages or budgetary imbalances arise. The City will set aside amounts by resolution as 

deemed necessary that can only be expended when certain specific circumstances exist.  The resolution will 

identify and describe the specific circumstances under which a need for stabilization arises.  The need for 

stabilization will only be utilized for situations that are not expected to occur routinely. 

VI. Committing Fund Balance 

The City Council has the authority to set aside funds for a specific purpose.  Any funds set aside as Committed 

Fund Balance requires the passage of a resolution prior to December 31st of the applicable fiscal year.  If the 

actual amount of the commitment is not available by December 31st, the resolution must state the process or 

formula necessary to calculate the actual amount as soon as information is available. 

VII. Assigning Fund Balance 

Upon passage of the Fund Balance Policy, authority is given to the City’s Finance Director to assign funds for 

specific purposes.  Any funds set aside as Assigned Fund Balance must be reported to the City Council and be 

recorded in the council minutes.  The City Council has the authority to remove or change the assignment of the 

funds by motion or resolution.   

The City Council has the authority to set aside funds for the intended use of a specific purpose.  Any funds set 

aside as Assigned Fund Balance requires a motion or resolution and recorded in the council minutes.  The same 

action is required to change or remove the assignment.  Examples include: Appropriation of existing fund 

balance to be used to balance the subsequent year’s budget and budget carry-overs for specific items, such as 

election funding and capital improvement funding. 

 

 

 

 



53 

 

 

 

VIII. Appropriate Fund Balance Levels 

The City will maintain an unrestricted fund balance in the General Fund of 35- 50% or no less than five months 

of the next year’s budgeted expenditures of the General Fund.  This will assist in maintaining an adequate level 

of fund balance to provide for cash flow requirements and contingency needs because major revenues, 

including property taxes and other government aids, are received in the second half of the City’s fiscal year.   

IX. Monitoring and Reporting 

The City Administrator and Finance Director shall annually prepare the status of fund balances in relation to this 

policy and present to the City Council in conjunction with the development of the annual budget. 

X. Responsibility and Authority 

Administrative implementation of policies is the responsibility of staff and council. 



54 

 

 

 

Budget Policy & Financial Control 
 

Budgets are financial plans for future events.  As better information becomes available, the budget may be 

amended by the City Council.  Annual budgets are prepared per Section 220.03.1.7 of the Hermantown Code of 

Ordinances.  The budget requests help to meet overall City goals.   

 

Ordinary operating expenditures are subdivided into personal services, supplies, other services and charges, 

capital outlay, and other financing uses. 

 

Budget Process 

Annual budgets are adopted for the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, General Capital Projects Fund, and 

Enterprise Funds.  Within the General fund, budgets are prepared for each major department.  For example, 

Finance and Administration is a department within the General fund.   

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.  Formal budgets are 

not adopted for the Capital Project funds except the CIP plan which is included in the General Capital Projects 

Fund and funded primarily through transfers from other funds. Budgetary control is accomplished through use 

of project controls. 

The City follows the procedures below in establishing the budget. Budget forms are supplied to all City 

departments.  The City Administrator and Director of Finance & Administration conduct budget assistance 

meetings (if necessary) with each department.  Budget requests and supplementary information from all city 

departments must be received by the end of June.  The Director of Finance & Administration prepares the 

budgeted personnel expenses and revenue portions of the budget.  Per the City Operating Budget Policy, 

appropriations shall not exceed the total of the estimated revenues and available fund balance.  The City 

Administrator and Director of Finance & Administration meet with departments to discuss and review 

proposed budgets.  The Director of Finance & Administration presents to the City Council a consolidated budget 

for the general fund in early fall for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1.  The City sets the 

preliminary levy and the public hearing information, which is forwarded to the County Auditor by September 

15th each year.  The County mails parcel specific tax notices to property owners detailing taxes due the 

following year based on the preliminary levy.  A budget and levy hearing are held in December in accordance 

with State law.  The budget and tax levy are adopted through passage of resolutions.   

Budgeted amounts are reported as originally adopted.  Budgeted expenditure appropriations lapse at year-end.  

The government’s department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department.  The City 

Council may authorize budget amendments for transfer of budgeted amounts between funds.  The budgetary 

level of control is at the department level.  The City adopted an Operating Budget Policy in July of 2010. 

  



55 

 

 

 

Budget Calendar 
 

2022 BUDGET CALENDAR (for 2023 Budget) 

 

Date  Task 

April 19th Recap of distributed CIP Instructions and Forms – DUE MAY 2nd 

May 13th PERSONNEL COSTS COMPLETED by the Finance Department 

June 1st Budget forms supplied to all city departments & consultants 

Review CIP  

June 13th-17th Budget assistance meetings (if necessary) with each department 

June 20th Staffing Report Presented to City Council 

June 27th FINAL DATE to receive budget requests & supplementary information from all city 

departments & consultants 

July 5th CIP – Presented to City Council 

3rd Week of July Finance Department prepares Special Revenue and Utility Budgets 

July 29th Liability insurance allocated by Finance Department 

August 1st two weeks Finance prepares Preliminary Revenue Estimates.  

During August Park Budget presented to Parks and Planning  

August 15th PRELIMINARY GENERAL FUND BUDGET - Presented to the City Council 

September 19th  City Council to pass a levy and city certifies the proposed property tax levy to the 

County Auditor due on September 30th and certify the Truth-In-Taxation hearing 

date (Special Meeting) 

October 3rd PRELIMINARY DEBT SERVICE BUDGETS COMPLETED by Finance Department– 

Presented to the City Council  

During October Utility Budget presented to Utility Commission 

November 7th PRELIMINARY SPECIAL REVENUE & UTILITY BUDGETS Presented to the City Council 

November 21st Budget booklet presented to the City Council 

December 5th Initial Hearing on budget & levy 

December 5th or 19th Adoption of Final Levy and Budget 



56 

 

 

 

Financial Summary 
2022 Statement of Accounts (All Funds January 1, 2022 through October 14, 2022) 

Fund Description Beginning Receipts Disbursements End

101 General 4,748,463          4,697,359     5,013,755            4,432,068              

230 HEDA 756,160             87,025          138,205                704,980                  

235 Park Dedication (5,000)                94,350          45,730                  43,620                    

236 Wetland Mitigation 39,464               -                 11,000                  28,464                    

240 City Sales Tax 8,579,077          2,828,670     524,194                10,883,552            

245 COVID-ARPA -                      526,576        166,406                360,170                  

251 Police Program 214,110             12,233          32,945                  193,399                  

260 Cable 432,984             21,507          9,313                    445,178                  

270 Soccer 73,168               -                 -                         73,168                    

275 Essentia Wellness Center 295,858             198,581        223,384                271,055                  

301 Equipment Debt Service 38,425               4                     -                         38,428                    

315 2016B G.O. Bonds 312,390             -                 624,245                (311,855)                

318 2016A G.O. Bonds 363,523             108,612        420,970                51,164                    

320 2012A G.O. Bonds 143,811             23,609          188,805                (21,385)                   

321 2012B G.O. Bonds -                      -                           

322 2014A G.O. Bonds 225,143             32,200          144,570                112,774                  

323 2018A G.O. Bonds 199,738             80,841          137,795                142,784                  

324 2018B G.O. Bonds 469,228             27,585          535,345                (38,533)                   

325 2019A G.O. Bonds 75,540               -                 609,251                (533,711)                

326 2020A G.O. Bonds 685,451             116,440        578,220                223,671                  

327 2020B G.O. Bonds 61,636               -                 278,970                (217,334)                

328 2021A G.O. Bonds 1,893,833          126,148        232,872                1,787,109              

350 Special Assessment Deficiency 301,097             17,999          390                        318,706                  

401 General Capital Projects 596,337             -                 60,970                  535,367                  

402 MSA (344,819)            -                 33,947                  (378,766)                

409 Municipal Building Reserve 275,296             -                 -                         275,296                  

411 EWC 277,871             -                 -                         277,871                  

412 Munger Trail  (292,050)            179,998        86                          (112,138)                

460 TIF District 630,258             66,197          40,684                  655,772                  

461 HEDA Fleet Farm Project 100,759             72,355          72,630                  100,484                  

475 Sp Assess Constr./Roads (21,853)              16,288          63,598                  (69,162)                   

601 Water Enterprise 13,975,716       1,407,481     1,003,003            14,380,194            

602 Sewer Enterprise 34,722,266       1,326,657     817,192                35,231,730            

603 Storm Water Enterprise 555,825             296,118        155,063                696,880                  

605 Street Lighting Util ity 1,232,304          70,963          29,219                  1,274,049              

Total All Funds 71,612,011       12,435,796  12,192,757          71,855,049            



57 

 

 

 

City of Hermantown 

Budgeted Funds 
 

Minnesota Statute 412.711 CONSIDERATION OF BUDGET; TAX LEVY. 

 
The annual budget finally agreed upon shall set forth in detail the complete financial plan of the city for the 
ensuing fiscal year for the funds budgeted and shall be signed by the majority of the council when adopted. 
 

Fund revenues and expenditures are budgeted using modified accrual where expenditures are recognized 
when incurred and payment is due, and revenues are recognized when they are measurable and available.  This 
is the same basis as used in the City’s audited financial statements. 
 
In addition to the General Fund (the City’s primary operating fund) the City has various separate special 
revenue funds, debt service, enterprise and capital project funds.  The funds are detailed below. 
   
Special Revenue Funds: 
HEDA – Hermantown Economic Development Authority is for the accounting of revenue collected from conduit 
financing and expenditures such as business subsidy and community study 
Community Development is for the accounting of revenues that assist community infrastructure projects. 
Park Dedication is for the accounting of revenue collected from new buildings and developments, and 
expenditures for park development. 
Wetland Mitigation is for the accounting of revenue from landowners who disturb the wetland in connection of 
development, and expenditures for Wetland acquisition and preservation. 
City Sales Tax is for the collection of 1% local sales tax, and expenditures authorized by the Minnesota 
Legislature. 
Police Program is for the accounting of alcohol and drug forfeitures, Hermantown High School District and the 
expenditures for furthering alcohol and drug investigations, the school liaison and DARE programs. 
Cable Television is for the accounting of revenue from Mediacom franchise fees, and expenditures to provide 
local public channel in Hermantown. 
Soccer Association is for the accounting of revenue from the Hermantown Soccer Association, and expenditures 
related to the development of the Stebner Park soccer fields. 
EWC Lease is for the accounting of revenue and expenditures from Essentia for leasing part of the EWC. 
COVID-ARPA is for the accounting of revenue and expenditures from the Federal government for COVID related 
purposes. 

 
Debt Service Funds: 
Debt Service is used to account for revenue collected from assessments, fund transfers, levy and expenditures 
for bond principal, interest and fiscal agent fees. 
 
Enterprise Funds: 
Water is for accounting of revenue from water fees and expenditures for the distribution of treated water. 
Sewer is for accounting of revenue from sewer disposal service and expenditures for the collection of sewer 
sanitary waste. 
Street Lighting is for accounting of revenue from street lighting fees and expenditures in the City’s right of way. 
Storm Water is for accounting of revenue from storm water fees and expenditures to maintain storm water 
infrastructure. 
 
The City has additional funds for Capital Projects that are not included in this budget document.  Although not 
required to be budgeted, these funds are included in the City’s audited financial statements. 



58 

 

 

 

 

Major Funds and Non-Major Funds by Fund Type 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

Revenues Expenditures Revenues Expenditures Revenues Expenditures

General Fund 6,954,560     6,301,722    6,732,986          6,732,986          7,266,219        7,266,219        

Special Revenue Funds

         City Sales Tax 4,003,522     4,128,034    3,010,000          3,975,879          3,495,000        3,347,402        

         Non-Major Special Revenue Funds 1,318,976     969,577        1,090,318          765,242              596,272           962,928           

Debt Service Funds

         Fund 315 2016B 698,807         626,355        698,807              624,775              698,807           623,200           

         Fund 318 2016A 418,709         425,505        379,794              421,500              395,638           418,850           

         Fund 320 2012A 241,289         187,059        232,539              189,335              232,539           190,711           

         Fund 321 2012B 2,290,915     3,621,116    -                       -                       -                    -                    

         Fund 322 2014A 301,110         263,705        276,900              145,100              126,450           146,425           

         Fund 323 2018A 144,527         135,105        135,725              138,325              138,325           135,925           

         Fund 324 2018B 567,111         536,730        568,543              535,875              571,283           538,975           

         Fund 325 2019A 647,200         609,861        651,400              609,781              647,620           614,981           

         Fund 326 2020A 561,082         478,809        414,638              578,750              415,842           558,825           

         Fund 327 2020B 294,997         299,880        294,263              279,500              293,370           278,725           

Fund 328 2021A 1,893,833     -                 207,708              233,403              176,118           308,503           

         Non-Major Debt Service Funds 17,334           31,312          15,000                30,006                14,000              30,006              

Capital Project Funds 3,913,899     4,153,018    510,000              308,470              773,500           502,720           

Enterprise Funds

        Water Enterprise 2,769,730     2,130,249    1,832,778          1,777,991          2,029,820        2,030,957        

        Sewer Enterprise 2,221,046     1,866,554    1,665,785          2,015,613          1,834,921        2,107,577        

        Storm Water 421,029         363,395        412,170              466,626              454,500           676,098           

        Street Lighting 159,405         35,246          160,000              129,000              162,000           43,000              

Total 29,839,081   27,163,232  19,289,354        19,958,157        20,322,224     20,782,027     

2021 Actual 2022 Original Budget 2023 Budget



59 

 

 

 

 

2023 Budget Summary – All Funds Budgeted Revenues 

  Actual Budget Budget

2021 2022 2023

GENERAL FUND

 Taxes $6,023,078 $6,109,256 $6,645,338

Licenses & Permits 288,624 183,050 179,090

Intergovernmental 279,683 249,150 242,050

Charges for Services 109,886 101,132 107,258

Fines & Forfeits 61,402 42,600 43,700

Miscellaneous Income 58,369 41,798 42,783

Investment Income -14,955 6,000 6,000

Other Financing 148,473

$6,954,560 $6,732,986 $7,266,219

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Taxes $4,000,217 $3,181,000 $3,667,500

Special Assessments

Licenses and permits 155,250

Charges for Services 335,882 394,598 373,252

Intergovernmental 500,000 0

Fines & Forfeits 6,121 3,250 4,000

Investment Income -13,414 16,700 16,250

Miscellaneous 185,754 4,770 5,270

Other Financing 652,689 25,000

$5,322,499 $4,100,318 $4,091,272

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Taxes $332,408 $395,079 $406,272

Special Assessments 726,357 371,230 337,000

Investment Income -1,061

Other Financing 7,019,215 3,109,008 2,966,720

$8,076,919 $3,875,317 $3,709,992

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Taxes $266,510

Miscellaneous Income

Investment Income $321

Special Assessments 40,207

Intergovernmental 783,968

Other Financing sources 2,822,893 510,000 773,500

$3,913,899 $510,000 $773,500

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $24,267,877 $15,218,621 $15,840,983

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Water Utility

Operating revenues $1,973,148 $1,709,760 $1,913,184

Non-operating revenues $796,582 $123,018 $116,636

Sewer Disposal

Operating revenues $1,695,395 $1,613,485 $1,779,621

Non-operating revenues $525,651 $52,300 $55,300

Storm Water

Operating revenues $417,038 $410,670 $451,000

Non-operating revenues $3,991 $1,500 $3,500

Street Lighting & Traffic Signalization

Operating revenues $139,542 $137,000 $139,000

Non-operating revenues $19,863 $23,000 $23,000

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS $5,571,210 $4,070,733 $4,481,241

TOTAL REVENUES $29,839,087 $19,289,354 $20,322,224



60 

 

 

 

2023 Budget Summary – All Funds Budgeted Expenditures 

 

 
Actual Budget Budget 

2021 2022 2023

GENERAL FUND

     General Government $1,009,421 $1,371,232 $1,393,252

     Public Safety 3,535,779          3,565,750          3,762,062          

     Streets and Highways 764,046             778,668             800,462             

     Community Development 198,653             288,164             331,831             

     Culture and Recreation 175,748             139,172             128,612             

     Capital  Outlay 133,099             115,000             115,000             

     Other Financing Uses 485,000             475,000             735,000             

$6,301,746 $6,732,986 $7,266,219

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

     General Government $57,237

Public Safety 7,484                  101,000             

     Community Development 271,369             760,242             1,121,928          

     Culture and Recreation 423,943             5,000                  5,000                  

     Capital  Outlay 709,936             3,975,879          3,082,402          

     Interest & Fiscal Charges 1,771                  

     Other Financing Uses 3,625,864          

$5,097,604 $4,741,121 $4,310,330

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

     General Government $3,505

     Principal 2,680,000          2,745,000          2,905,000          

     Interest & Fiscal Charges 1,119,804          1,011,344          910,120             

     Other Financing Uses 3,412,127          30,006               30,006               

$7,215,436 $3,786,350 $3,845,126

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Community Development 213,977             

Culture and Recreation 1,913                  

Capital Outlay 3,571,966          308,470             502,720             

     Principal 60,253                

     Interest & Fiscal Charges 67,093                

     Other Financing Uses 237,814             

$4,153,016 $308,470 $502,720

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $22,767,802 $15,568,927 $15,924,395

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

     Water Utility

          -Operating $1,801,847 $1,448,742 $1,660,219

          -Depreciation 236,554 220,000 236,000

          -Other Financing Uses 91,838 109,249 134,738

     Sewage Disposal

          -Operating 1,169,435 1,385,106 1,493,303

          -Depreciation 515,626 556,747 525,000

          -Other Financing Uses 181,489 73,760 89,274

Storm Water

          -Operating 241,296 443,657 655,098

          -Depreciation 10,835

          -Other Financing Uses 111,265 22,969 21,000

     Street Light & Traffic Signalization

          -Operating 35,245 129,000 43,000

          -Depreciation 

          -Other Financing Uses

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS $4,395,430 $4,389,230 $4,857,632

TOTAL EXPENSES $27,163,232 $19,958,157 $20,782,027



61 

 

 

 

2023 Budgeted Revenues 

 

 

 

Total Budgeted revenues for all funds equal $20,322,224.   

 

The three largest components of the 2023 revenue budget, accounting for 93 percent of total revenues, in 

descending order based on dollars are as follows: 

 

Taxes (includes Sales Tax Fund) $10,858,110 53% 

Utility Fees             $4,223,905                 21% 

Other Financing Sources              $3,771,320                  19% 

 

 

  

10,858,110 , 53%

223,190 , 1%

242,050 , 1%

547,299 , 3%
47,700 , 0%

9,800 , 0%

61,850 , 0%

337,000 , 2%

3,771,320 , 19%

4,223,905 , 21%

Taxes (includes sales tax)

Licenses & Permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for Services

Fines & Forfeits

Miscellaneous Income

Investment Income

Special Assessments

Other Financing Sources

Utility Fees



62 

 

 

 

2023 Budgeted Expenditures  

 

 

 

Total budgeted expenses for all funds are $20,782,027 

 

The four largest components of the 2023 expenditure budget, accounting for 70 percent of the appropriations, 

are as follows: 

 

Other General Gov’t            $3,391,857                 16% 

Public Safety                           $3,857,862  19% 

Debt Service            $3,845,126  19% 

Sales Tax Projects           $3,347,402  16% 

  

3,391,857 , 16%

3,857,862 , 19%

3,347,402 , 16%

861,928 , 4%

3,845,126 , 19%

620,220 , 3%

2,030,957 , 10%

2,107,577 , 10%

719,098 , 3%
Other General Government

Public Safety

City Sales Tax

Other Special Revenue Fnds

Debt & Other Financing Uses

Capital Outlay

Water Enterprise

Sewer Enterprise

Other Enterprise



63 

 

 

 

All Funds – Expenses by Category 

 

 

 

 

The City’s expenditures are budgeted in five major spending categories: personnel services, supplies, services & 

maintenance, capital outlay, and debt service/other financing uses.  This chart shows the breakdown of expenditures by 

spending category. 

  

25.7%

2.3%

27.7%

7.7%

36.5%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

Personnel
Services

$5,345,573

Supplies
$477,345

Services &
Maintenance
$5,762,549

Capital Outlay
$1,610,220

Debt
Service/Other
Financing Uses

$7,586,340



64 

 

 

 

Changes in Budgeted Fund Balance 
Fund Balance is defined as the difference between a fund’s assets and liabilities.  Adequate Fund Balance is 

necessary to have funds for emergency or unexpected events, to enhance the City’s financial position and bond 

ratings, to provide cash for operations prior to receipt of tax revenues and to maximize investment earnings. 

 

 

  

Fund Name

*2023 Beg. 

Fund Balance

2023 

Revenues 2023 Exp

2023 Ending 

Fund Balance

% Change 

Fund 

Balance >10% Variance

101 General           4,432,068      7,266,219        7,266,219 4,432,068       0.00%

230 HEDA 704,980             145,270         145,270          704,980            0.00%

235 Park Dedication 43,620                68,500            10,000             102,120            57.29% Increased Rev Budget

236 Wetland Mitigation 28,464                100                   5,000                23,564               -20.79% Increased Exp Budget

240 City Sales Tax 10,883,552      3,495,000    3,347,402      11,031,150    1.34%

245 COVID-ARPA 360,170             -                     544,000          (183,830)          0.00%

251 Police Program 193,399             6,500               1,000                198,899            2.77%

260 Cable 445,178             46,250            28,006             463,422            3.94%

270 Soccer 73,168                -                     -                      73,168               0.00%

275 Essentia Wellness Center Lease 271,055             329,652         229,652          371,055            26.95% Added naming rights revenue

301 Certificate of Indebtedness 38,428                -                     -                      38,428               0.00%

315 2016B  G.O. Bonds (311,855)            698,807         623,200          (236,248)          -32.00% Revenue greater than bond pymts

318 2016A G.O. Bonds 51,164                395,638         418,850          27,952               -83.04% Revenue less than bond pymts

320 2012A G.O. Bonds (21,385)               232,539         190,711          20,443               204.61% Revenue greater than bond pymts

322 2014A G.O.  Bonds 112,774             126,450         146,425          92,799               -21.53% Revenue less than bond pymts

323 2018A G.O.  Bonds 142,784             138,325         135,925          145,184            1.65%

324 2018B G.O.  Bonds (38,533)               571,283         538,975          (6,225)                -519.03% Revenue greater than bond pymts

325 2019A G.O.  Bonds (533,711)            647,620         614,981          (501,072)          -6.51%

326 2020A G.O.  Bonds 223,671             415,842         558,825          80,688               -177.20% Revenue less than bond pymts

327 2020B G.O.  Bonds (217,334)            293,370         278,725          (202,689)          -7.23%

328 2021A G.O. Bonds 1,787,109         176,118         308,503          1,654,724       0.00%

350 Special Assessment Deficiency 318,706             14,000            30,006             302,700            -5.29%

401 General Capital Projects 535,367             648,500         502,720          681,147            21.40% Build up fund balance

402 Municipal State Aid Streets (378,766)            -                     -                      (378,766)          0.00%

409 Municipal Building Reserve 275,296             125,000         -                      400,296            31.23% Build up fund balance

411 Essentia Wellness Center 277,871             -                     -                      277,871            0.00%

412 Munger Trail (112,138)            -                     -                      (112,138)          0.00%

460 TIF District 655,772             -                     -                      655,772            0.00%

461 HEDA Fleet Farm Project 100,484             -                     -                      100,484            0.00%

475 Special Assessment Capital Projects (69,162)               -                     -                      (69,162)             0.00%

601 Water Enterprise 14,380,194      2,029,820    2,030,957      14,379,057    -0.01%

602 Sewer Enterprise 35,231,730      1,834,921    2,107,577      34,959,074    -0.78%

603 Storm water 696,880             454,500         676,098          475,282            -46.62% Includes capital delayed in 2022

605 Street Lighting Utility 1,274,049         162,000         43,000             1,393,049       8.54%

* Beginning balance as of August 30, 2022



65 

 

 

 

 Long Range Financial Planning 

(And its affect upon the budget and the budget process) 

  

• The City of Hermantown residents passed the 1% local sales tax increase at the 2012 General Election, which 
became effective on April 1, 2013. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, the local sales tax expenditures are 
restricted to the following: 
 

Extending a sewer interceptor line, construction of a booster pump station, reservoirs and related 
improvement to the water system; and construction of a building containing the administration 
services/police/fire services. This legislation authority for this sales tax now extends to 2036. 
 
In addition, on November 8, 2016, the City received voter approval to fund its portion of the Essentia 
Wellness Center using current sales tax revenue. In 2017 the City received Legislative approval of this 
use for sales tax. The City can now also use sales tax to “meet the costs of debt service payments for 
construction of the Hermantown Wellness Center”. The Essentia Wellness Center will be owned by the 
City of Hermantown. However, the YMCA will run its operations. The overall construction did not impact 
the City’s General Fund. Any building costs the City incurs are covered by the rent Essentia pays for 
leasing a portion of the building or covered by the YMCA. 
 
The current 1% sales tax will be increased to 1.5% in 2023 as approved by the voters on November 8, 
2022. The citizens voted to fund a trio of wellness projects named the Community Recreation Initiative 
with a .5% sales tax increase. The projects are: Fichtner Field, Trails, and a 2nd sheet of ice. There are 
specific capped project costs that can be used with the .5% increase as follows: 

 
Ice Arena - $10,840,000 
Trails - $4,750,000 
Fichtner Field - $3,900,000 

 
 

• The City continues to review the interest rate and call dates of the bonds to monitor the possibility of reducing 
interest costs by refinancing.  The City did not issue new bonds in 2022 but does plan on issuing debt in 2023 as 
part of the Road Management Plan. 

• The City will continue to review, on an annual basis, the deferred special assessments, water and sewer 
availabilities and change in ownership of property that cancels the deferrals. 

• The City annually reviews its fee structure and utility rates to keep up with costs. In 2017 the City engaged Ehlers 
to do a Utility Rate Study. As a result, the City changed to a tiered water conversation rate system for the water 
it charges its citizens. In 2022 the City once again engaged Ehlers to update the 2017 rate study and provide 
feedback on usage and rates. The result of this will be shared in late 2022/early 2023. 

• City Councilors have periodic work sessions to discuss their priorities which are included in this budget book. The 
last work session was on January 25, 2021. It is anticipated this will be updated in January, 2023. 

• In 2016, the City re-implemented its Capital Improvement Plan. Each year this is updated with the needs of the 
next five years, including the funding sources. 

• The City engaged Ehlers to do a comprehensive Long-Range Financial Management Plan in 2018. This Financial 
Management Plan was adopted by the Council in early 2019. Included in this plan is a Road Improvement Plan 
which the City implanted in 2020. Also included in this Financial Management Plan is staffing additions needed 
in the next five years. The City engaged Ehlers and started the process of refreshing the Financial Management 
in 2022 as the pandemic and other evolving needs necessitated changes. This process should be completed in 
early 2023 and a refreshed plan adopted by the City Council. 
  



66 

 

 

 

Long Range Financial Management Plan – General Fund – 
 

 

 

 

  

Revenues Actual 2021 Budget 2021

Budget 

2022

Budget 

2023 FMP 2024 FMP 2025 FMP 2026 FMP 2027

Taxes 6,006,578          5,661,571    6,092,756 6,628,838 7,018,250   7,268,031   7,488,644  7,465,265  

Franchise Fees 16,500                16,500          16,500       16,500       17,000         17,000         17,000        17,000        

Special Assessments -                       -                -              -              -                -                -               -               

Licenses & Permits 288,624              182,265       183,050     179,090     192,695       196,549       200,480      204,490      

Intergovernmental 279,683              233,950       249,150     242,050     243,273       248,139       253,102      258,164      

Charges for Services 109,886              102,330       101,532     107,758     99,486         102,340       105,250      108,219      

Fines & Forfeitures 61,402                42,575          42,200       43,200       43,200         43,200         43,200        43,200        

Investment Income (14,955)              8,000            6,000          6,000          24,778         25,149         25,526        25,909        

Miscellaneous 58,369                41,010          41,798       42,783       82,546         84,197         85,881        87,599        

Other Financing Sources 148,473              

Total Revenues 6,954,560          6,288,201    6,732,986 7,266,219 7,721,228   7,984,605   8,219,083  8,209,846  

Expenditures

General Government 1,009,398          1,189,413    1,360,553 1,393,252 1,202,877   1,238,963   1,310,296  1,314,415  

Public Safety 3,535,779          3,504,582    3,563,140 3,762,062 3,920,015   4,036,216   4,126,888  4,064,636  

Streets & Highways 764,046              753,286       791,957     800,462     1,031,393   1,062,335   1,094,205  1,127,031  

Community & Economic Development 198,653              253,708       288,164     331,831     326,308       336,097       346,180      356,565      

Culture & Recreation 175,748              127,212       139,172     128,612     178,635       183,994       189,514      195,199      

Capital Outlay 133,099              115,000       115,000     115,000     120,000       125,000       125,000      125,000      

Debt Service -                       -                

Other Financing Uses 485,000              345,000       475,000     735,000     942,000       1,002,000   1,027,000  1,027,000  

Total Expenditures 6,301,723          6,288,201    6,732,986 7,266,219 7,721,228   7,984,605   8,219,083  8,209,846  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over 

Expenditures 652,837              -                -              -              -                -                -               -               



67 

 

 

 

 

Revenue Categories & Trends 
 

The three largest components of the 2023 revenue budget, accounting for 93 percent of total revenues, in 

descending order based on dollars are as follows: 

 

Taxes (includes Sales Tax Fund)  $10,858,110  53% 

Utility Fees              $4,223,905                21% 

Other Financing Sources               $3,771,230                19% 

 

 

Property Taxes –Property taxes of $7,174,610 comprise 35 percent of total revenues.  Property tax levies are 

set by the City Council in December of each year and certified to St. Louis County for collection in the following 

year.  In Minnesota, counties act as collection agents for all property taxes.  Property taxes are levied for 

several different City purposes.  The largest section of property tax is put into the General Fund to support 

general taxpayer services such as police and fire protection, administration, and street plowing and repair.  The 

City also has special levies for the Hermantown Economic Development Authority and for debt service. The 

Debt Service levy is for the Public Works Facility/Salt Storage Facility, two fire halls, Rose Road Softball complex 

improvements, and road improvements. 

 

 

 

Trends:  Property tax levies have been increasing in part due to cuts in state aid that began in 2001.  This is 

shown in the graph above.  For the year 2023 the City will be receiving zero Local Government Aid.   

  

 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

Property Taxes



68 

 

 

 

        Local Government Aid – Comparison in order by Cities and population 

     

 

 

City Sales Tax – The Sales Tax Fund account for $3,495,000 (17%) of city revenue. $3,300,000 of the 

$3,495,000 will be sales tax received. Sales tax applies to retail sales made and taxable services provided within 

the local taxing area.  The tax applies to the same items that are taxed by the Minnesota sales and use tax law. 

The Minnesota Department of Revenue currently administers this local sales tax.  The City has an agreement 

with the Minnesota Department of Revenue which addresses the fees and procedures of the local sales tax 

collection and payment.  Sales tax revenues less state administration fees are remitted to the City each month. 

 

 

*These are based on budgeted revenues. 

Trends:  Sales Tax revenues have increased a little during the COVID-19 pandemic. We anticipate sales tax  

increasing in part due to inflation. 

City 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

2022-2023 

Incr/(Decr) % Change

Population 

2020

St. Louis County:

Duluth $29,340,129 $29,668,565 $30,248,064 $30,543,564 $30,671,679 $30,807,820 $136,141 0.44%          86,697 

Hibbing 8,106,845   8,145,651   8,229,324   8,278,325   8,308,919   8,360,051   $51,132 0.62%          16,214 

Hermantown -               -               -               -               -               -               -                       10,221 

Virginia 5,125,120   5,329,243   5,729,345   5,927,850   6,049,573   6,207,006   $157,433 2.60%            8,421 

Proctor 1,033,142   1,048,883   1,081,576   1,096,797   1,101,073   1,106,996   $5,923 0.54%            3,040 

Carlton County:

Cloquet 2,377,013   2,485,096   2,673,626   2,769,892   2,822,834   2,895,411   $72,577 2.57%          12,568 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

201220132014201520162017201820192020202120222023

City Sales & Use Tax



69 

 

 

 

Franchise Fees –Total Franchise fees are anticipated to increase slightly to $195,000.   

Trends:  The Franchise fees include the following and are expected to remain constant through 2023. 

MN Energy Gas Resources is split between the General Fund (Fund 101) and the Street Lighting Fund (Fund 

605). 

MN Power Electric goes to the Street Lighting Fund (Fund 605). 

Media Com Cable goes to Cable TV Fund (Fund 260). 

 

Licenses and Permits – License and permit fees of $223,190 account for 1 percent of total revenues.  Permits 

are required for most construction projects and major remodeling projects.  Examples of permits required are 

building permits, zoning permits, driveway permits, and handgun/bow permits. Licenses are required for 

certain businesses selling liquor, beer, or tobacco and for dogs in the City.   

 

 

Trends:  License and permit revenue is expected to increase slightly over 2022.  

Intergovernmental Revenues – This revenue accounts for $242,050 of City revenues or 1.19 percent.  

Intergovernmental revenue includes Police State Aid and grants for Police, MSA Street Maintenance and PERA 

Aid. 

Trends:  This revenue has been stable. Local Government Aid (LGA) for the 2023 budget again is zero.   

  

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

All Building Permits     

(includes additions, remodels)

No. of Permits 211 190 136 153 166 147

Valuation $16,121,332 $12,707,360 $10,353,781 $8,810,887 $33,656,400 $32,480,292

New Single Family Homes

No. of Permits 34 33 22 23 25 19

Valuation $7,475,694 $7,395,575 $5,786,066 $5,749,158 $5,794,935 $8,098,745

New Multiple Family Buildings

No. of Permits 0 0 0 0 0 1

Valuation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $17,715,703

New Commercial/Industrial

No. of Permits 4 5 2 10 4 4

Valuation $2,711,130 $3,051,925 $2,407,895 $3,887,611 $24,886,466 $2,110,200

* As of September 2022



70 

 

 

 

Charges for Services – Charges for services account for $547,299 of City revenues or 2.7 percent.  This category 

includes charges for assessment searches, police services, fingerprinting services and cemetery burial. This 

increased in 2020 due to a lease with Essentia for space in the Essentia Wellness Center. 

 

 

 

*2022 through 2023 are based on budgeted revenues. 

 

Trends:  The school officer fees will be included as revenue received from Hermantown High School.   

 

Fines & Forfeitures – Fines & forfeitures account for $47,700 of City revenues or .23 percent.  These funds are 

the City’s share of police patrol traffic citations, court fines, and DWI/Drug forfeiture proceeds. 

 

 

*2022 through 2023 are based on budgeted revenues. 

Trends:    Hermantown is one of two communities in South St. Louis County that receives DARE court fines. The 

DARE court fines are allocated per school grade enrollment.   

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Charges for Services

 $-

 $20,000

 $40,000

 $60,000

 $80,000

 $100,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Fines & Forfeitures



71 

 

 

 

Special Assessments – Special assessments account for $337,000 of City revenues or 1.7 percent.  These funds 

are collections from specific projects that require a payment from the taxpayer, such as water and sewer line 

construction or street improvements.  These assessments are collected by St. Louis County along with the 

property tax levy. 

 

 

 

*2022 through 2023 are based on budgeted revenues. 

Trends:  Special Assessment revenues fluctuate due to the timing of water, sewer, and street infrastructure 

projects. As citizens pay in full their assessments the revenue decreases. 

 

Investment Income – Investment income accounts for $61,850 of City revenues or .3 percent.   

Trends:  Earnings are dependent on interest rates and the amount of funds available to invest. As always, 

investment earnings are subject to sudden shifts in the economy. 

 

Miscellaneous Revenue – Miscellaneous revenue accounts for $9,800 of City revenues.  This category includes 

cell tower leases, park fields, donations, 911 signs, insurance reimbursements, and conduit financing payments. 

Trends:  These revenues have decreased slightly the past few years.  

  

 $-

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,200,000

Special Assessments



72 

 

 

 

• Utility Revenue – Utility Revenue for water, sewer, street lighting and storm water account for $4,223,905 of the 
City’s revenues or 20.8 percent.   During 2017, the City contracted with Ehlers to complete a rate study.  One 
outcome was to change the rate structure so that the cost per gallon of water is split into “tiers” with a higher 
cost per gallon for users that use more water. In 2019 the City added a Storm water fee which increased the 
utility revenue. In 2022 the City once again engaged Ehlers to update the 2017 rate study and provide feedback 
on usage, rates, and reserves. The study concluded that the Hermantown Utility funds are well managed and on 
a sustainable track. 
 

 

  

 

 

*2022 through 2023 are based on budgeted revenues. 

 

Other Financing Sources – Other Financing Sources for all budgeted funds is $3,771,320 or 18.6 percent of 

revenue.  This category accounts for transfers in from other funds, such as the Sales Tax Fund and Utility funds 

to the Debt Service funds to make bond payments.  

 Trends: Most of these transfers are calculated based on principal and interest owed on debt service payments.   

  

 $2,500,000

 $2,700,000

 $2,900,000

 $3,100,000

 $3,300,000

 $3,500,000

 $3,700,000

 $3,900,000

 $4,100,000

 $4,300,000

 $4,500,000

2013 2015 2017 2019 2021 2023

Utility Revenue



73 

 

 

 

Tax Information 

 

Tax Base 

Residential and commercial market values used to calculate 2023 taxes increased.  There was an estimated 

increase of 11% of taxable net tax capacity.  Market values are not used directly to calculate tax.  Market values 

and state mandated classification rates are used only to distribute the dollar amount of levy requested.    

 

 

 

  

 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $14,000,000

 $16,000,000

 $18,000,000

 $-

 $200,000,000

 $400,000,000

 $600,000,000

 $800,000,000

 $1,000,000,000

 $1,200,000,000

 $1,400,000,000

Ta
x 

C
ap

ac
it

y

M
ar

ke
t 

V
al

u
e

Taxable City Market Value and Tax Capacity by Tax Year

Market Value Tax Capacity



74 

 

 

 

Total City Tax Capacity Comparison 

The largest 3 categories of tax capacity for the City are Residential Homestead Property, Commercial/Industrial 

Property, and Non-Homestead Residential Property. 

 

 

 

Taxes (Payable 2022)  

 

This graph illustrates the total tax as shared by the taxing jurisdictions.  Only 30.4 percent of the total tax was 

levied for City activities in 2022. 

49.5% 49.0% 46.0% 46.1% 43.5% 41.0% 43.7% 40.5% 44.7% 44.7% 45.2% 46.0% 46.4%

31.2% 31.7% 32.6% 32.8%
29.2% 30.0% 30.1%

30.1%
30.5% 30.5% 28.8% 28.8% 28.7%

11.7% 11.8% 13.2% 12.9%
13.7% 13.0% 12.9%

11.9%
11.5% 11.5% 12.7% 12.6% 13.3%

7.6% 7.5% 8.2% 8.2% 13.6% 13.0% 13.3% 17.5% 13.2% 13.2% 13.5% 12.6% 11.7%

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

120.0%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Residential Homestead Commercial/Industrial Non-Homestead Residential Other

30.4%

44.5%

24.3%

0.80%

City

County

School

Other



75 

 

 

 

Estimated City Taxes Payable in 2023 

The following table lists the estimated city taxes payable in 2023 for various home values.  These figures do not 

include a market value exclusion that the state utilizes to reduce residential property taxes. 

 

 

 

Where Do Our Property Tax Dollars Go in the General Fund? 

A $250,000 home generates $1,136 in annual property taxes: 

This comes to $95 per month for 2023. 

 

 25 Cents General Government 

          52 Cents Public Safety 

                                                                                                                   11 Cents Public Works 

                                                                                                                                                     

      2 Cents Park 

                                                                                                                                                  10 Cents Other Financing 

 

 

Home Market 

Value

2022 Payable 

City Taxes

2023 Payable 

City Taxes

150,000           700                  682                  

200,000           933                  909                  

250,000           1,169              1,136              

300,000           1,400              1,363              

400,000           1,866              1,817              

500,000           2,333              2,272              

600,000           2,800              2,726              



76 

 

 

 

Estimated Cost of City Services - $250,000 Home in 2023 

 

City Service Percent Amount Monthly

Category 2023 Budget of Levy of Levy Cost

General Government

  Council, Ordinances, Mayor,

  Elections, Administration &

  Finance, City Attorney, Planning

  & Zoning, Health Insurance

  Consultant, City Buildings

  Maint., Inspection, Comm Dev

Public Safety

  Police Administration, Fire

  Administration

Public Works

  Street Department, City Engineer

Park

  Parks

Other Financing

  Transfers for Capital Items, Park

  Improvements, Buildings, Etc.

Totals 100% $1,136 $95

10.1% $115 $10

$128,612 1.8% $20 $2

$735,000

Actual Cost of City Services

Pay 2023 Property Tax 

For $250,000 Home

$1,840,083 25.3% $288 $24

$3,762,062 51.8% $588 $49

$800,462 11.0% $125 $10

 
 

  



77 

 

 

 

Tax Rate Analysis 

The graph illustrates the changes in the property tax rate of the City, County, School and Other.  The below 

does not include the school’s market referendum. 

 

 
 

Levy Components 

The overall property tax levy is comprised of different levies to pay for different activities of the city.  The 

dollars levied in 2023 are illustrated in the following table: 

 

 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

City County School Other

General Fund Levy 6,974,566$       

Debt Levy 343,621$           

Abatement Fleet Farm 138,146$           

Hermantown Economic Development Authority 150,000$           

Total 7,606,333$       



78 

 

 

 

Tax Levy Changes – General Fund 

The City General Fund tax levy has fluctuated recently due to growth, multiple changes in state aid, and 

increasing service demands.  The following graph illustrates the changes in general fund levy. The city is not 

receiving LGA in 2023. 

 

 

 

 

Property Tax Comparison of Cities within St Louis County and Cloquet 

 

Total Tax (City, County, School, Other) based on a $250,000 Value home in 2021 (most recent year of available 

data): 

St. Louis County:   Carlton County:  

Hermantown        $3,636  Cloquet       $4,720 

Proctor                  $3,936 

Duluth                   $3,809 

Virginia                  $5,182 

Hibbing                  $4,271 

 

 

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

 8,000,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

General Fund Levy LGA



79 

 

 

 

General Fund Summary – Fund 101 
 

The General Fund is established to account for the revenues and expenditures necessary to carry out basic 

governmental activities of the City such as general government, public safety, public works, and parks and recreation.  

Revenue is recorded by source:  i.e., general property taxes, licenses and permits, fines & forfeits, charges for service, 

etc.  General Fund expenditures are made primarily for current day to day operations and are recorded by major 

functional classifications and by operating departments.  This fund accounts for all financial transactions not reported in 

another fund. 

 

2023 General Fund Revenues 
 

The general fund revenue sources have changed in recent years.  The following graph illustrates the change in general 

fund revenues (2022-2023 are based on budgeted revenues): 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Taxes

Franchise Fees

Licenses & Permits

Intergovernmental Revenue

Charges for Services

Fines & Forfeitures

Investment Income

Miscellaneous Revenue

Other Financing Sources



80 

 

 

 

The following chart shows the 2023 general fund budgeted revenues by source: 

 

 

 

 

 

2023 General Fund Revenue Summary 

 

 

  

Taxes & Franchise Fees

Intergovernmental Revenue

Licenses & Permits

Charges for Services

Fines & Forfeitures

Investment Income

Miscellaneous

Source Amount

Property Tax & Franchise Fee 6,645,338$                     91.46%

Intergovernmental Revenue 242,050                           3.33%

Licenses & Permits 179,090                           2.46%

Charges for Services 107,258                           1.48%

Fines & Forfeitures 43,700                             0.60%

Investment Income 6,000                                0.08%

Miscellaneous 42,783                             0.59%

Total 7,266,219$                     



81 

 

 

 

2023 General Fund Revenue Sources – Detail 
 

 

Property Taxes/Franchise Fees - 310000
310100 Current Property Taxes 6,625,838       

310200 Delinquent Property Taxes -                   

318100 Franchise Fees 16,500             

319100 Penalty & Interest Property Taxes 2,000               

319200 Forfeited Property Taxes   1,000               

Subtotal – Property Taxes & Franchise Fee 6,645,338       

Licenses & Permits – 320000
321100 Beer Licenses -                   

321110 On-Sale Liquor Licenses 39,000             

321120 Off-Sale Liquor Licenses                           790                  

321140 Sunday Licenses                                    2,400               

321150 Dance Permits                                       1,200               

321800 Contractors Licenses/Permits          7,000               

321900 Tobacco Licenses                                   6,000               

321950 Fireworks Permits                                     300                  

321990 Other Licenses & Permits                    3,000               

322100 Building Permits                                100,000          

322110 Zoning Fees                                          9,000               

322120 SWPP Fees                                               -                   

322121 Erosion & Sediment Control                 3,500               

322126 Wetland Permits                                    1,400               

322130 Property Split Fees                                2,000               

322400 Dog Licenses                                         1,600               

322900 Handgun/Bow Permits                       1,900               

Subtotal – Licenses & Permits   179,090          

Intergovernmental – 330000
331998 Police Overtime Reimbursement 25,000             

331999 Other Federal Grants/Aid                     1,200               

334010 Local Government Aid -                   

334160 Police Training Reimbursement          14,000             

334180 MSAS Maintenance Allocation           65,000             

334200 State 2% Fire Insurance/Fire Relief            -                   

334210 State Police Aid 135,000          

334999 Other State Grants & Aids 1,200               

336300 Other Grants & Aids 650                  

   Subtotal – Intergovernmental 242,050          



82 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Charges for Services – 340000
341010 Building Rentals 3,000         

341015 Community Building 22,059       

341030 Zoning & Subdivision                               1,000         

342010 Police Services 80,400       

342030 Photocopies Police 99               

349400 Cemetery Burial 700             

Subtotal – Charges for Services 107,258          

Fines & Forfeits – 350000
351000 Impound & Towing Charges              500             

351010 Court Fines 43,000       

351020 Parking Fines 200             

Subtotal – Fines & Forfeits     43,700             

Investment Income – 362100 & 362160
362100 Investment Interest                    6,000         

Subtotal – Investment Income      6,000               

Miscellaneous – 360000
362200 Park Field Rental Fees 9,600         

362210 Park Rental Fees                                50               

362250 City Property Lease                               12,293       

362255 Lightning Drive Tower Lease             17,240       

362400 911 Signs                                                  2,200         

362410 Insurance Recoveries                       100             

362430 Refund & Reimbursement 1,000         

362990 Miscellaneous Revenue                     200             

391010 Sale of General Fixed 100             

Subtotal – Miscellaneous    42,783             

Total General Fund Revenues 7,266,219       



83 

 

 

 

2023 General Fund Expenditures 
 

The city provides many services to its citizens.  The following graphs show the general fund expenditures by 

function (2022-2023 are based on budgeted expenditures): 

 

 

 

The following chart shows the 2023 General Fund Expenditures by Function: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

500000

1000000

1500000

2000000

2500000

3000000

3500000

4000000

4500000

2013 2015 2017 2019 2021 2023

General Gov't

Public Safety

Public Works

Park

Other Financing

23%

53%

12%

2%
10%

General Gov't Public Safety Streets & Highways

Park Other Financing



84 

 

 

 

2023 General Fund Expenditures – Detail by Category 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Department Personnel Supplies Srvcs & Maint Cap Outlay Other Total

Council 35,730       60            14,772               -               -      50,562       

Legal Notices -              -          1,800                 -               -      1,800         

Mayor 11,534       -          3,346                 -               -      14,880       

Elections 5,200                 -               -      5,200         

Administration & Finance 640,844     7,400      111,409            759,653     

Attorney -              -          50,000               -               -      50,000       

Comm. Dev./Planning & Zoning 273,730     600         57,501               -               -      331,831     

Communications -              -          25,000               -               -      25,000       

City Hall & Police Bldg.  Maint. 82,051       11,000    90,046               -               -      183,097     

Police 2,722,790 108,150 289,634            117,500      -      3,238,074 

Fire -              -          563,634            -               -      563,634     

Fire Hall 1 20,483       -          36,711               -               -      57,194       

Fire Hall 2 & 3 -              50            15,410               -               -      15,460       

Building Inspector 158,194     2,350      11,846               -               -      172,390     

Poundmaster -              -          2,700                 -               -      2,700         

Street 365,609     189,445 223,408            -               -      778,462     

City Engineer -              -          22,000               -               -      22,000       

Garage Building Maintenance 21,861       11,440    14,878               -               -      48,179       

Parks 56,317       23,750    42,545               -               6,000 128,612     

Community Building 10,241       700         15,026               -               -      25,967       

Cemetery 6,346         -          -                     -               -      6,346         

Insurance 50,178               50,178       

Transfers for Capital Items 735,000      735,000     

Totals 4,405,730 354,945 1,647,044         852,500      6,000 7,266,219 

60.6%

4.9%

22.7%

11.7%
0.1% Personnel

Supplies

Services &
Maintenance

Capital Outlay

Other Financing
Uses



85 

 

 

 

Trend in Expenditures – General Fund 

 
 

 

 

*2022 Expenses through 08/24/2022 

  

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

 $8,000,000

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Budget Actual



86 

 

 

 

Capital Improvement Plan  
 

Items Purchased and Impact of Capital Investments on Operating Budget                                                                                      

The City of Hermantown’s Capital Improvement Plan includes projects to City infrastructure, such as facility 

enhancements, upgrades to parks and trails and improvements to streets and utilities.  Also included in the 

Capital Budget are capital equipment such as public safety vehicles and public works equipment. 

The City’s Capital Improvement Plan addresses current and future improvements to the City’s infrastructure, 

facilities, and properties by combining elements of both current year budgeting and the five-year forecast. The 

purpose of the Capital Budget is to first prioritize and fund the most urgent needs in the coming year’s budget. 

Second, to identify future capital needs with enough lead time to ensure proper planning and implementation. 

This section presents a summary of the Projects and Funding Sources by Department, which is also included in 

our full Capital Improvement Plan. 

Capital Expenditures are defined as a project/asset with a minimum cost of $20,000 and a life expectancy of 

over 2 years.  Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. The capital asset form has a section 

to indicate if there are ongoing maintenance expenses in the future due to the CIP request.   

The Capital Expenditures in the 2023 Budget total $8,527,720 which will be shown in later pages of this budget. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



87 

 

 

 

Impact of Capital Investments on Operating Budget 
 

  

Capital Project:

Water Meter Radio Conversion 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

2023-2027 CIP Project Funding $325,000 (21,000)              (22,000)              (23,000)              (23,000)                                     

Description of Operating Impact:

This will save in employee time to gather monthly water meter data

Description of Non-Financial Impact:

This will eliminate the need to drive around with a handheld device to read water meters and will provide real time data

Capital Project:

Lindgren & Richard Ave 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

2023-2027 CIP Project Funding $2,400,000 (5,000)                 (5,000)                 (5,000)                 (5,000)                                       

Description of Operating Impact

This will help facilitate new development and will annually decrease gravel road maintenance costs

Description of Non-Financial Impact

This will extend the life of a road and add a new section of paved road

Capital Project:

Ugstad Rd Super Project 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

2023-2027 CIP Project Funding $3,800,000 (7,500)                 (7,500)                 (7,500)                 (7,500)                                       

Description of Operating Impact:

This will reduce future road maintenance costs such as crack seal and pot hole filling

Description of Non-Financial Impact:

This will extend the life of a major road

Estimated Impact on Operating Budget Per Year

Estimated Impact on Operating Budget Per Year

Operating Budget Impact

2023 Capital Improvement Program

Net Operating and Maintenance Costs or Savings (Estimated)

A major component of preparing a fiscally sound Capital Improvement Program is to determine the amount and manner in which 

projects will be managed, maintained, and operated on an on-going basis. Each of the below projects listed within the proposed Five 

Year CIP Program will impact the City's operating budget to varying degrees. The chart below summarizes the impact that the proposed 

2023 below projects will have on the operating budget:

Note: Positive figures indicate Operating Budget additional costs; negative figures indicate savings.

Estimated Impact on Operating Budget Per Year

Note: The three capital items detailed below are considered "significant" based on the following criteria: Non-recurring Capital 

expenditure that would require a raise in tax rate, would result in reduced spending in other parts of the budget, & would require 

additional staff. All other expenditures greater than $20,000 will be described in a later section of the budget document.



Capital  Improvement Plan

City of Hermantown, Minnesota

PROJECTS & FUNDING SOURCES BY DEPARTMENT

2023 2027thru

         Total2023 2024 2025 2026 2027Department Project # Priority

Administration

2027-02 35,00035,000Voting Machines 1

General Fund 35,000 35,000

35,00035,000Administration Total

City Hall

2022-01 25,00025,000Server 2

General Fund 25,000 25,000

2023-18 30,00030,000Mower 1

General Fund 30,000 30,000

2024-10 180,000180,000Roof on PD Side 1

Municipal Building Reserve 180,000 180,000

2025-05 300,000300,000Boilers 1

General Fund 150,000 150,000

Municipal Building Reserve 150,000 150,000

2026-01 50,00050,000HVAC Upgrades 1

General Fund 50,000 50,000

585,00055,000 180,000 300,000 50,000City Hall Total

Community Development

2023-01 125,000125,000Hermantown Marketplace Sign 2

HEDA 125,000 125,000

2023-03 150,000150,000Keene Creek Park Improvements 1

ARPA 150,000 150,000

2023-17 75,00075,000Section 24 Trail Equipment 1

Park Dedication Fund 75,000 75,000

2025-06 600,000600,000Munger Trail- Lightning Drive Segment 1

Park Dedication Fund 600,000 600,000

2026-02 1,000,000500,000 500,000Fichtner Fields Restructure Improvements 2

Park Dedication Fund 500,000 500,000 1,000,000

2026-12 1,000,0001,000,000Munger Trail- Hermantown Rd to Morris Thomas Rd n/a

Park Dedication Fund 1,000,000 1,000,000

2027-03 1,000,0001,000,000Munger Trail- Getchell to Lavaque/City Hall 1

Park Dedication Fund 1,000,000 1,000,000

3,950,000150,000 200,000 600,000 1,500,000 1,500,000Community Development Total

Police

2023-02 140,00070,000 70,000ARMER Radio Replacement 1

General Fund 70,000 70,000 140,000

2023-16 250,00050,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000Squad Cameras, Tasers, Body Cameras 1

General Fund 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 250,000

2025-04 90,00090,000Squad Tablets 1

Monday, November 14, 2022Page 1Produced Using the Plan-It Capital Planning Software



         Total2023 2024 2025 2026 2027Department Project # Priority

General Fund 90,000 90,000

2026-11 40,00040,000Police Flooring 1

General Fund 40,000 40,000

Squads 580,000115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 120,000Squads 1

General Fund 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 120,000 580,000

1,100,000235,000 235,000 255,000 205,000 170,000Police Total

Public Works

2021-01 243,88060,970 60,970 60,970 60,970Motor Grader LEASE 1

General Fund 60,970 60,970 60,970 60,970 243,880

2022-02 190,000190,000Tandem Plow Truck 1

General Fund 190,000 190,000

2022-05 325,000325,000Water Meter Radio Conversion to AMI 1

Sales Tax 325,000 325,000

2023-04 127,000127,0001 Ton Dirt Service Truck 1

General Fund 63,500 63,500

Sewer Fund 31,750 31,750

Water Fund 31,750 31,750

2023-06 63,00063,0001 Ton Ext Cab Truck 1

General Fund 31,500 31,500

Sewer Fund 15,750 15,750

Water Fund 15,750 15,750

2023-07 1,915,000265,000 1,650,000Lightning Drive Sewer Spur 1

Sales Tax 265,000 1,650,000 1,915,000

2023-14 69,75069,750Hotmix/Pothole Trailer 1

General Fund 69,750 69,750

2023-15 86,25086,250Bobcat Toolcat w/Tracks 1

General Fund 86,250 86,250

2024-03 2,950,000150,000 150,000 150,000 2,500,000Birch Valley Sanitary Sewer Spur 1

Sales Tax 150,000 150,000 150,000 2,500,000 2,950,000

2024-05 97,50097,500Tracked Skidsteer 2

General Fund 48,750 48,750

Sewer Fund 24,375 24,375

Storm Water 24,375 24,375

2024-06 80,00080,000 12' Mower 2

General Fund 80,000 80,000

2024-11 65,62565,625Steamer Tralier 1

General Fund 32,813 32,813

Storm Water 32,812 32,812

2025-01 302,500302,500Tandem Plow Truck 1

General Fund 302,500 302,500

2025-02 302,500302,500624 Loader 1

General Fund 192,500 192,500

Sewer Fund 55,000 55,000

Water Fund 55,000 55,000

2026-05 187,000187,000Rubber Tire Loader 1

General Fund 110,000 110,000

Water Fund 77,000 77,000

2026-06 1,550,000150,000 1,400,000Getchell Waterline Replacement 1

Sales Tax 150,000 1,400,000 1,550,000

2027-01 330,000330,000Tandem Plow Truck 1

General Fund 110,000 110,000

Sewer Fund 110,000 110,000

Water Fund 110,000 110,000

Lift Station 120,00040,000 40,000 40,000Lift Stations 2

Monday, November 14, 2022Page 2Produced Using the Plan-It Capital Planning Software



         Total2023 2024 2025 2026 2027Department Project # Priority

Sewer Fund 40,000 40,000 40,000 120,000

9,005,0051,077,720 2,293,345 855,970 547,970 4,230,000Public Works Total

Streets

2021-02 175,000175,000Lindahl Road Bridge 2

Storm Water 175,000 175,000

2022-06 2,400,0002,400,000Lindgren and Richard Ave 2

Assessment 320,000 320,000

Bonds General Fund 984,000 984,000

Sewer Fund 165,000 165,000

State Aid - MSA 750,000 750,000

Storm Water 181,000 181,000

2022-07 3,800,0003,800,000Ugstad Super Project 2

State Aid - MSA 3,800,000 3,800,000

2023-08 1,352,0001,352,000Lighning Dr and Thunder Chief and Getchell 1

Assessment 338,000 338,000

Bonds General Fund 814,000 814,000

Storm Water 200,000 200,000

2023-09 936,000936,000Old Midway 2

Assessment 187,200 187,200

Bonds General Fund 748,800 748,800

2023-10 1,872,0001,872,000Hermantown Rd - Midway to Ugstad 2

Bonds General Fund 1,872,000 1,872,000

2023-11 936,000936,000Hermantown Rd - Hwy 2 Midway 2

Assessment 187,200 187,200

Bonds General Fund 748,800 748,800

2023-12 520,000520,000Hermantown Road Bridge 2

Bonds General Fund 416,000 416,000

Storm Water 104,000 104,000

2024-08 1,500,0001,500,000Stebner- Morris Thomas to Hermantown Rd 1

State Aid - MSA 1,500,000 1,500,000

2024-09 421,824421,824Lindahl Rd 1

Assessment 105,456 105,456

Bonds General Fund 16,368 16,368

State Aid - MSA 300,000 300,000

2025-03 1,687,2961,687,296Getchell Road- Maple Grove to Anderson 2

Assessment 421,824 421,824

Bonds General Fund 1,165,472 1,165,472

Storm Water 100,000 100,000

2025-07 676,000676,000Getchell Rd- Maple Grove to Lightning Dr 2

Assessment 169,000 169,000

Bonds General Fund 507,000 507,000

2025-08 676,000676,000Thundercheif Lane- Lignthing Drive 2

Assessment 169,000 169,000

Bonds General Fund 507,000 507,000

2026-10 912,490912,490Getchell Rd Steb-Morris Thomas 2

Assessment 228,122 228,122

Bonds General Fund 684,368 684,368

2026-13 421,824421,824Getchell Rd- Hermantown Rd to Anderson Rd 2

Assessment 105,456 105,456

Bonds General Fund 216,368 216,368

Storm Water 100,000 100,000

2027-05 2,924,6462,924,646Ugstad Rd- St. Louis River Rd to Morris Thomas Rd 2

Bonds General Fund 2,874,646 2,874,646

Storm Water 50,000 50,000

Monday, November 14, 2022Page 3Produced Using the Plan-It Capital Planning Software



         Total2023 2024 2025 2026 2027Department Project # Priority

Chip Sealing 276,535115,000 108,160 53,375Chip Seal Projects 1

Bonds General Fund 53,375 53,375

State Aid - MSA 115,000 108,160 223,160

21,487,6157,010,000 3,852,160 3,125,824 3,662,495 3,837,136Streets Total

GRAND TOTAL 36,162,6208,527,720 6,760,505 5,136,794 5,965,465 9,772,136

Monday, November 14, 2022Page 4Produced Using the Plan-It Capital Planning Software



92 

 

 

 

 

Five Year Plan for Municipal State Aid – MSA Roads 
 

The City evaluates each Municipal State Aid (MSA) project to determine whether a utility infrastructure project 

could coincide with the road construction or reconstruction project.  These do not affect operating budget 

other than savings in the street maintenance budgets. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Municipal State Aid Funding Program
MSA Program Accounting
Updated by David Bolf, P.E.

Date Project Allocation Request Balance
w/Advance

2023 597,522.00           1,414,608.51       

Ugstad Super Project 3,800,000.00       

Chip Seal Stebner Road - TH 53 to MG Road 115,000.00           (2,500,391.49)      

2024 597,522.00           (1,902,869.49)      

2024 Federal Aid 1,480,000.00       (422,869.49)         

Crack Seal Arrowhead - Ugstad to TH 53 108,160.00           (531,029.49)         

2025 597,522.00           66,492.51             

Lindahl Road Reclaim & Overlay 300,000.00           (233,507.49)         

2026 597,522.00         364,014.51         
Stebner Mill & Overlay 1,500,000.00      (1,135,985.49)     

2027 597,522.00         (538,463.49)        



93 

 

 

 

City Debt Overview 
 

Debt Margin 
 

All Minnesota municipalities (counties, cities, towns and school district) are subject to statutory “net debt” 

limitations under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.53.  Under this provision, the legal debt 

limit is 3% of the assessor’s market value of the municipalities’ tax base.  Hermantown’s taxable market value 

for tax year 2022/2023 is estimated to be $1,319,935,110.  The general obligation debt subject to the limitation 

may be offset by the amounts set aside for repaying general obligation bonds.  This limitation provides 

reasonable assurance of the municipality’s ability to pay its obligations.  The graph below shows ten years of 

general obligation debt subject to the limit compared to the legal debt limit.  The City’s debt has increased over 

the last 10 years.   

 

Statutory Debt Limit 39,598,053$        

Hermantown's Debt Subject to the Limit (Estimate) (5,675,000)           

Unused Debt Limit 33,923,053$        

 

 

 

 

Total Debt Outstanding and Legal Debt Limit 

 

 

  

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $45,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

G.O. Debt Subject to Limit Legal Debt Limit



94 

 

 

 

Debt Issuance and Refinancing 
 

The City of Hermantown maintains a bond rating of AA by Standard & Poor’s for the City’s 2014A, 2016A, 

2016B, 2018A, 2018B, 2019A, 2020A, 2020B, and 2021A bonds. In addition, a bond rating of AA- was assigned 

to the City’s 2012A General Obligation Bonds.  Bond ratings are one indicator of municipalities’ financial health 

and indicates the risk associated with the repaying of debt.  The bond rating has a direct impact on the interest 

rates the city receives on the debt it issues.   

Debt Service Direct Tax Levy (Next 5 Years) 
 

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Road Improvement Plan 145,552    145,867    146,077    140,880    146,182    

Firehalls/Rose Road Softball fields 198,069    194,132    195,444    191,349    197,754    

Total Debt Tax Levy 343,621    339,999    341,521    332,229    343,936    

 

 

Existing Debt Overview 
 

G.O. Bonds Fund

Date of 

Maturity

Interest 

Rate

Balance 

12/31/22

Principal 

Due 2023

Interest 

Due 2023

Balance 

12/31/23

2016A G.O. Bond 318 2/1/2030 1.56% 1,815,000         385,000      32,450       1,430,000            

2012A G.O. Bond 320 2/1/2026 1.93% 715,000             175,000      14,311       540,000                

2014A G.O. Bond 322 2/1/2028 2.20% 730,000             125,000      20,025       605,000                

2016B G.O. Bond 315 2/1/2027 1.35% 2,340,000         560,000      61,800       1,780,000            

2018A G.O. Bond 323 2/1/2039 3.20% 1,785,000         80,000        54,525       1,705,000            

2018B G.O. Bond 324 2/1/2039 3.14% 6,995,000         305,000      232,575     6,690,000            

2019A G.O. Bond 325 2/1/2040 3.14% 7,940,000         340,000      273,581     7,600,000            

2020A G.O. Bond 326 2/1/2036 1.74% 2,720,000         495,000      62,425       2,225,000            

2020B G.O. Bond 327 2/1/2037 1.82% 3,520,000         195,000      82,325       3,325,000            

2021A G.O. Bond 328 2/1/2037 1.21% 3,710,000         245,000      62,103       3,465,000            

 

 

Debt Issuance Details 
 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2016A (was 2009A) (Fund 318) – These bonds were issued in the original 

amount of $5,515,000 for the following purposes: to refund the City’s General Obligation Improvement Bonds, 

Series 2003A (Fund 312); to fund sewer improvements Midway Road (Seville to Hwy 194) and Hermantown 

Road (Haines Road to Arthur Lane); and to finance the acquisition of the Public Works Building and Salt/Storage 

Facility. Revenue sources: Special assessments, property tax, local sales tax, water and sewer transfers.  



95 

 

 

 

 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012A (Fund 320) – These bonds were issued in the original amount of 

$2,500,000 to refund the General Obligation Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series 2003B (Fund 313) and the 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005 (Fund 314).  The General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005 was refunded on 

February 1, 2013. Revenue sources: Sales tax and special assessments. 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014A (Fund 322)- These bonds were issued in December 2014 in the 

amount of $2,170,000, interest rate of 2.20% to refund Series 2007A and to crossover refund 2007B for an 

interest cost savings. Revenue sources: Special assessments, sales tax, water and sewer. 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2016B (was 2006A) (Fund 315)- These bonds were issued in December 2006 

in the original amount of $9,630,000, interest rate of 1.35% and mature in 2027 to finance new construction of 

an administrative services building.  In addition, the bond was used to refund the Bond Series 1998(Police/Fire 

Building). In 2016 a refunding was done. Revenue source:  Sales tax 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018A (Fund 323)- These bonds were issued in April of 2018 in the amount of 

$2,035,000, true interest rate of 3.20%, and mature in 2039.  The bonds were used to construct new Fire hall #2 

and #3. Revenue source:  Property Tax 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018B (Fund 324)- These bonds were issued in August of 2018 in the amount 

of $7,715,000, true interest rate of 3.14%, and mature in 2039.  The bonds were used to construct the Essentia 

Wellness Center and redo the Rose Road Softball complex.  Revenue sources:  Rose Road – Property Tax, 

Essentia Wellness Center – Sales Tax  

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2019A (Fund 325)- These bonds were issued in January of 2019 in the 
amount of $8,845,000, true interest rate of 3.14% and mature in 2039. The bonds were used to construct the 
Essentia Wellness Center. Revenue source:  Sales tax 
 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A (Fund 326)- These bonds were issued in April of 2020 in the amount of 
$3,585,000, true interest rate of 1.74% and mature in 2036. The bonds were used to refinance the 2010A bonds 
and to make 2020 Road Improvements.  Revenue sources: Property tax, Special assessments, sales tax and 
transfers from water, sewer, and special deficiency funds 
 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020B (Fund 327)- These bonds were issued in April of 2020 in the amount of 
$3,915,000, true interest rate of 1.82% and mature in 2037. The bonds were used to construct the Section 24 
Sewer Trunkline. Revenue source:  Sales tax 
 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021A (Fund 328)- These bonds were issued in April of 2021 in the amount of 

$3,860,000, carry a true interest cost of 1.21% and mature in 2037. The bonds will be used to finance the 2021 

Road Improvement Plan and to current refund the City’s outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012B 

for an interest cost saving. (The General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2012B were issued in 

September of 2012 in the amount of $3,155,000.)  Revenue sources: Property Tax, Special Assessments, Sales 

Tax, and transfers from Water, Sewer, and special deficiency funds. 

 
 
 

 

 

 



96 

 

 

 

Staffing 
 

2023 Staffing  

2023 Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Summary by Position Count 
 

 

  

2019 Budget2020 Budget 2021 Budget 2022 Budget 2023 Budget

Admin & Finance

City Administrator 1.00               1.00               1.00               1.00               

Communications Director 1.00               1.00               1.00               1.00               

Director of Finance & Admin 1.00               1.00               1.00               1.00               

City Clerk 1.00               1.00               1.00               1.00               

Accountant 1.00               1.00               1.00               1.00               

Account Clerk 1.00               1.00               1.00               1.00               

Utility Billing Clerk 1.00               1.00               1.00               1.00               

Community Dev. Director 1.00               1.00               1.00               1.00               

Building Official 1.00               1.00               1.00               1.00               

Receptionist/ Admin Assistant 1.00               1.00               1.00               1.00               

Communications Intern -                 -                 -                 0.50               

Total Admin & Finance 10.00            10.00            10.00            10.50            

Public Safety

Police Chief 1.00               1.00               1.00               1.00               

Commander 2.00               2.00               2.00               2.00               

Sergeant 2.00               2.00               -                 -                 

Investigator 1.00               1.00               1.00               

DARE Officer 1.00               1.00               1.00               1.00               

K9 Officer 2.00               2.00               -                 -                 

Police Officer 7.50               7.00               9.00               9.00               

Senior Secretary 1.00               1.00               1.00               1.00               

Secretary 2.00               2.00               2.00               2.00               

K9 Officer/Sergeant -                 -                 2.00               2.00               

Total Public Safety 18.50            19.00            19.00            19.00            

Public Works

Public Works Director 1.00               1.00               1.00               1.00               

Utility & Infrastructure Manager 1.00               0.50               1.00               1.00               

Street/Utility Maint Workers 7.00               7.00               7.00               7.00               

Part Time Cleaning 0.50               0.50               0.50               0.50               

Building/Park Maint 1.50               1.50               2.00               2.00               

Total Public Works 11.00            10.50            11.50            11.50            

Total FTEs 39.50            39.50            40.50            41.00            



97 

 

 

 

General Fund 
 

City Council - 411100 
 

The cornerstone of city government in Minnesota is the elected mayor and city council.  The City Council 

consists of the Mayor and four city councilors.  The City Council usually meets on the first and third Monday of 

each month at 6:30 pm at City Hall.  The City Council supervises administrative officers, formulates policies and 

exercises city powers.  As individuals, the council members have no administrative authority. Therefore, it is 

important each member works toward a team concept.  The most important single responsibility of a council 

member is participation at council meetings.  The City of Hermantown has various boards and commissions 

established to provide recommendations to the City Council and to decide certain items. 

 

Objectives 

• Adopt policies and ordinances consistent with Council’s position on growth, zoning and financial 

strategy 
• Approve all major decision 
• Adopt the annual budget 
• Conduct a planning session at the beginning of each odd numbered year 

 

Budget Summary 

 
 

 

Budgetary Commentary: 

The 2023 City council operating budget is increasing by 7.9% from 2022 due, in part, to increase in League of 

Minnesota Cities dues. 

 

 

 

 

 

 2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

 2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

103-151 Salaries/Benefits 33,695           35,730           6.0%

201-499 Supplies/Services 13,180           14,832           12.5%

Total Expenditures 46,875           50,562           7.9%



99 

 

 

 

Ordinance, Public Notice, and Proceedings - 411300 
 

Minnesota statutes require publication of all board meetings, ordinance changes, or additions.  Likewise, 

certain state compliance reports such as the annual financial report and budget summary report are required 

to be published by law.   

 

Budget Summary 

 

 

Budgetary Commentary 

The 2023 budget is reduced from 2022. 

 

Budget Detail 

 

  

2022  

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023  

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

310-355 Services 1,900             1,800           -5.3%

Total Expenditures 1,900             1,800           -5.3%

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Services

351 Legal Notices Publishing 1,196             1,900           1,800             

Total Expenditures 1,196             1,900           1,800             



98 

 

 

 

Budget Detail   

       

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET 2023 BUDGET

Salaries & Benefits

103 Part-Time Employees-Regular 30,480           30,480           32,400           

123 PERA Contributions-DCP 1,083             1,113             1,185             

128 Social Security 472                 510                 539                 

129 Medicare 442                 442                 470                 

133 Life Insurance 195                 194                 194                 

151 Workers Compensation 1,002             956                 942                 

Supplies & Services

201 Office Supplies -                  50                   60                   

315 School & Conference 175                 200                 400                 

331 Travel Expense -                  500                 1,000             

405 Computer Maintenance 169                 2,580             1,885             

451 Dues & Subscriptions 12,372           9,800             11,432           

499 Miscellaneous 30                   50                   55                   

Total Expenditures 46,420           46,875           50,562           



100 

 

 

 

Mayor – 413100 
 

The Mayor is elected for a 4-year term. The Mayor is the presiding officer and a member of the City Council, 

which entitles the Mayor to vote on all city council issues.  The Mayor must have full knowledge of Robert’s 

Rules of Order to conduct successful and organized meetings.  As the head elected official of the City, the 

Mayor speaks officially for the community. 

Objectives 

• Serves as the City’s representative before the state legislature, federal agencies, and other local 

governments 

• Performs ceremonial duties on behalf of the community 

• Responsible for exerting leadership in City affairs 

 

Budget Summary 

 

Budgetary Commentary 

The 2023 Mayor operating budget is slightly increasing. 

  

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

103-151 Salaries/Benefits 11,028           11,534           4.6%

201-499 Services/Maintenance 2,789             3,346             20.0%

Total Expenditures 13,817           14,880           7.7%



101 

 

 

 

Budget Detail 

 

 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Salaries & Benefits

103 Part-Time Employees-Regular 10,020           10,020           10,500           

123 PERA Contributions - DCP 481                 501                 525                 

129 Medicare 145                 145                 152                 

133 Life Insurance 47                   49                   49                   

151 Workers Compensation 328                 313                 308                 

Services & Maintenance

209 Computer Equipment -                      -                      -                      

315 School & Conference -                      420                 440                 

331 Travel Expense -                      300                 330                 

405 Computer Maintenance 1,278             1,939             2,446             

451 Dues & Subscriptions 30                   30                   30                   

499 Miscellaneous 175                 100                 100                 

Total Expenditures 12,504           13,817           14,880           



102 

 

 

 

Elections - 414100 
 

2023 is not an election year unless a special election is called. 

Objectives 

 Maintain an election handbook – for future election administration 

 Stay current with all State election rules/obligations/Secretary of State’s Office 

 Meet posting and publishing requirements for all elections 

 Provide timely and secure absentee an in person early voting 

 Recruit and train election officials for all aspects of elections 

 Register voters on Election Day following all requirements 

 Set up and tear down polling places 

 

 

  

5,492

3,205

5,263
4,763

5,974

4,965

1,159 1,072

3,669

1,334

6,441
6,182

6,508

5,864
6,326 6,423

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

2012
Presidential

General Election

2014 State
General Election

2016
Presidential

General Election

2018 State
General Election

2020
Presidential

Election

2022 State
General Election

Voter Turnout Early Voters Number of Registered Voters



103 

 

 

 

Budget Summary 

 

 

Budgetary Commentary 

2023 is not an election year. The 2023 operating budget decreased because there are no elections. 

Budget Detail 

 

  

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

101-151 Salaries/Benefits 15,784           -                  -100%

201-499 Supplies/Services/Maintenance 8,500             5,200             -39%

Total Expenditures 24,284           5,200             -79%

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Salaries & Benefits

101 Full-Time Employees-Regular 1,696             2,065             -                      

102 Full-Time Employees-Overtime -                      -                      -                      

105 Temporary Employees-Regular 163                 11,760           -                      

111 Severance Pay 1,175             

121 PERA Contributions-Coordinated 127                 155                 -                      

128 Social Security 131                 857                 -                      

129 Medicare 31                   200                 -                      

131 Health Insurance 282                 345                 -                      

133 Life Insurance 6                     8                     -                      

134 Disability Insurance 11                   11                   -                      

136 MSRS 14                   20                   -                      

151 Workers Compensation 182                 363                 -                      

Services & Maintenance

201 Office Supplies -                      1,500             -                      

221 General Supplies -                      50                   -                      

315 School & Conference -                      400                 -                      

325 Postage -                      1,200             50                   

331 Travel Expense -                      450                 -                      

351 Legal Notices Publishing -                      2,600             150                 

404 Equipment Maintenance 1,888             1,700             1,700             

405 Computer Maintenance -                      -                      3,100             

499 Miscellaneous -                      600                 200                 

Total Expenditures 5,706             24,284           5,200             



104 

 

 

 

Administration & Finance - 415300 
 

The City Administrator has the power and duty to enforce all City ordinances and resolutions, attend all 

meetings of the city council, monitor all consulting and contract work and perform economic development 

activities for the city. 

The City Administrator also appoints all non-Director employees of the City and performs other duties as 

requested by the City Council. 

 

Administration Objectives 

•  Coordinate and direct the operations of the city government through collaborative leadership and 

team work 

•  Recommend the appointment and removal of all city department heads 

•  Direct and submit the annual budget that is fiscally responsible 

•           Control and direct administrative affairs of the city 

•          Continue the process of preparing the City of Hermantown Handbook to serve as an administrative 

code, guide and procedure book for the City of Hermantown 

•  Recommend such measures deemed necessary for the welfare of the citizens 

•          Assist the City Council by conducting a planning session at the beginning of each odd numbered year 

 

The Finance Department manages the financial affairs of the City. Responsibilities include: providing financial 

information to the City Administrator and City Council regarding the fiscal affairs of the City, the annual budget 

document, the 5-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), overseeing the Financial Management Plan, monitoring 

expenditures for compliance with the budget, preparing accurate and timely financial reports, managing 

investments and debt, administering the payroll, accounts payable, accounts receivable, utility billing, 

cashiering, purchasing functions, and overseeing the Management Information Systems. 

 

Financial Objectives 

• To record and process all financial transactions in a timely manner 

• Provide meaningful and accurate financial and budget reports to Council and staff 

• Continue to produce the budget document in a format that will receive GFOA’s  

            Distinguished Budget Document Presentation Award 

 

 

The City Clerk acts as executive officer, keeps records of all council proceedings, handles all correspondence on 

behalf of the council, draws up agendas and executes any assignments given by the council. They also perform 

duties associated with voter registration, election arrangements, official records, licenses, etc. as required by 

law. They serve as custodian of the city’s seal and records and sign all official papers, posts and publishes 

notices, ordinances and resolutions as required. The clerk also files official documents and certifies local 

approval of special laws pertaining to the city, special assessments to the county auditor and plats of land 

within the city to the county recorder. 

  







P
R
O
G
R
A
M
S

F
O
C
U
S

G
O
A
L
S

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
S

M
I
S
S
I

O
N

 

 

Working together to serve and build the communityCITY CLERK

www.hermantownmn.com

Leading and
managing
the overall
organization

Maintaining
and improving
the City
infrastructure

Protecting
life and
property

Creating a
better place
to live, work,
and play

To provide convenient and independent ways for citizens to
participate in overall governance by voting, serving as election officials,
and participating in public hearings in front of the City Council.

A.) Providing key public information
B.) Execute election needs
C.) Maintain and grow public trust

1.) Early Voting -------------------------- Goal Alignment; B & C
2.) Election Day and Results --------- Goal Alignment; A, B, & C
3.) Notices -------------------------------- Goal Alignment; A, B, & C
4.) Zoning Changes -------------------- Goal Alignment; A & C
5.) Communications ------------------- Goal Alignment; A, B, & C

Benchmark        2020 Actual        2021 Actual        2022 Target        2023 Target     

Registered
Voters

Early Voters

Total Ballots
Cast

Public Hearings

5,000

500

4.500

5

6,326

3,669

5,974

4

NA

NA

NA

9

6,250

2,000

5,000

5

NA

NA

NA

Notices Mailed 100 130 145 100 100

5

Participating
Attendees 50 51 37 50 50



108 

 

 

 

Authorized Personnel 
The Administration & Finance Department is budgeting the following authorized personnel; City Administrator, 

Director of Finance & Administration, City Clerk, Accountant, Account Clerk, Receptionist/Administrative 

Assistant, and a Director of Communications & Community Engagement. 

 

Budget Summary 

 

 

 

Budgetary Commentary 
The 2023 Budget for Administration and Finance is increasing by 6.8% due to personnel increases and increased 

computer maintenance. 

  

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

101-151 Salaries/Benefits 587,677         640,844         9.0%

201-499 Supplies/Services & Maintenance 123,542         118,809         -3.8%

Total Expenditures 711,219         759,653         6.8%



109 

 

 

 

Budget Detail 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Salaries & Benefits

101 Full-Time Employees-Regular 366,766         422,474         443,891         

102 Full-Time Employees-Overtime -                      184                 108                 

111 Severance 38,027           

121 PERA Contributions-Coordinated 27,804           31,685           33,292           

128 Social Security 23,314           26,193           27,520           

129 Medicare 5,452             6,126             6,437             

131 Health Insurance 71,521           94,331           119,700         

132 Health Care Savings Plan 736                 -                      -                      

133 Life Insurance 936                 1,044             1,057             

134 Disability Insurance 1,598             1,855             2,019             

136 MSRS 1,877             3,198             6,162             

151 Workers Compensation 575                 587                 658                 

Supplies/Services & Maintenance

201 Office Supplies 4,419             4,100             5,000             

202 Printing Supplies 1,284             2,200             1,500             

209 Computer Supplies (581)               350                 400                 

221 General Supplies 4,303             500                 

301 Audit/Account Services 22,204           31,500           31,500           

302 Assessors Fees 649                 670                 670                 

314 Computer/Software Fees 3,830             3,000             500                 

315 School & Conference 1,131             3,950             4,000             

319 Contracted Services 2,515             23,000           5,000             

320 Personnel Search Expense 315                 1,000             

321 Telephone 1,761             1,500             1,550             

325 Postage 1,115             1,200             1,200             

331 Travel Expense 3,263             5,400             7,000             

343 Community Relations 77                   4,200             4,400             

351 Legal Notices Publishing 1,739             850                 1,000             

380 Property Taxes -                      -                      50                   

405 Computer Maintenance 33,995           33,822           43,939           

413 Equipment Rental 3,975             3,800             4,000             

434 Employee Recognition Program 791                 650                 800                 

451 Dues & Subscriptions 3,035             3,050             4,300             

499 Miscellaneous 663                 300                 500                 

Total Expenditures 629,089         711,219         759,653         



110 

 

 

 

City Attorney – 416100 - Contracted 
 

The City contracts with the law office of Overom Law, PLLC for city attorney services.  The law firm advises the 

City on all legal matters. 

 

Objectives 

• Review contracts, draft contracts and resolutions 

• Confer with Mayor, City Administrator and City staff on City matters 

• Advise the Hermantown Economic Development Authority  

 

Output 

• Draft City ordinances and resolutions 

• Draft special assessment documents to meet the requirements of state law 

• Draft development agreements 

 

 

 

Budget Detail 

 

 

 

 

 

Budget Commentary 

The 2023 City Attorney budget is decreasing slightly due to less general attorney work in 2022 than anticipated. 

 
 

  

2021  

ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023  

APPROVED 

BUDGET

308 Legal Fees 57,952     60,000     50,000

Total Expenditures 57,952     60,000     50,000



111 

 

 

 

Communications - 417200 
 

Communications meets the necessary requirements for the sharing of public information. Additionally, this 

department oversees community engagement, public and media relations, marketing, branding, and other 

external and internal communication functions.  

 

Budget Summary 

 

 

Budgetary Commentary 

2023 is the first year Communications is budgeted separately from Administration. At this time the salary for 

the Director of Communications & Community Engagement is still budgeted in the Administration & Finance 

section of the budget. 

 

Budget Detail 

  

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

200-499 Supplies/Services & Maintenance -                   25,000            

Total Expenditures -                    25,000             

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

319 Contracted Services -                   -                   25,000          

Total Expenditures -                    -                    25,000           



P
R
O
G
R
A
M
S

F
O
C
U
S

G
O
A
L
S

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
S

M
I
S
S
I

O
N

 

 

Working together to serve and build the communityCOMMUNICATIONS 

www.hermantownmn.com

Leading and
managing
the overall
organization

Maintaining
and improving
the City
infrastructure

Protecting
life and
property

Creating a
better place
to live, work,
and play

To provide clear, consistent, reliable information to residents and
businesses on City issues that impact their lives and experiences in
Hermantown.

A.) Preserve and build public trust
B.) Increase community engagement
C.) Continue brand development and increase recognition

1.)  Social Media Efforts -------------- Goal Alignment; B & C
2.) Website Maintenance------------ Goal Alignment; A, B, & C
3.) Road Improvement Plan -------- Goal Alignment; A & B
4.) Marketing & Branding------------ Goal Alignment; B & C
5.) Media Relations -------------------- Goal Alignment; B & C
6.) Remote Meeting Execution----- Goal Alignment; A & B

Benchmark        2020 Actual        2021 Actual        2022 Target       2023 Target     

Facebook
Visits

Facebook
Reach

Twitter
Impressions

Top Individual
Reaction Post

Top Individual
Post Link Clicks

2,000

18,000

36,000

500

250

5,000

1,600

20,440

52,932

227

700

4,700

2,004

32,385

31,924

509

102

4,496

2,000

24,000

36,000

500

300

5,000Top Individual
Post Reach

2,000

35,000

36,000

500

300

5,000



113 

 

 

 

Community Development – 419100  
 

The Community Development Department administers wetland, floodplain, and zoning regulations in a 

uniform, fair, and consistent manner.  It recommends policies and provides advice for the development of the 

City consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan. It manages development services to the private sector, 

seeking to build relationships with the development community which enhance the quality and level of 

development within the City. It also analyzes existing conditions and future trends in transportation, land use, 

housing, recreation and open space, natural resources, community services, and economic development.  It 

manages the City’s Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) and all storm water matters regulated by 

the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency. The Community Development Department includes a full-time 

Director.          

 

Community Development Department Objectives 

• To recommend to the Planning Commission and City Council changes to the Hermantown 

Comprehensive Plan. 

• To prepare and recommend to the City Council plans for specific improvements pursuant to the 

Comprehensive Plan and to aid the City Council in the development and completion of such projects. 

• To hear and review applications and submit reports and offer recommendations to the City Council for 

special use permits, subdivision plats, planned unit developments, and other matters as required by 

the Hermantown Zoning Ordinance. 

• To update and recommend changes and amendments to the Hermantown Zoning Ordinance in 

collaboration with the Planning and Zoning Commission to ensure the city follows current planning 

and zoning best practices. 

• To exercise all powers and perform all duties granted the Planning Commission by Minnesota Statues 

Chapter 462. 

• To create and make accessible applications, checklists, and procedures to assist Hermantown citizens 

and businesses in handling development and ordinance matters to be considered by the Planning and 

Zoning Commission and the City Council. 

• To provide recommendations related to economic and community development issues to the 

Executive Director and Commissioners of the Hermantown Economic Development Authority. 

• To administer the city’s programs for its Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4), including 

ensuring conformity to the MPCA General Permit for small MS4 communities consistent with the 

requirements of Minnesota Rules Chapter 7900. 
• To administer the City’s wetlands program, consistent with the requirements of Minnesota Rules 

Chapter 8420, as amended from time to time, by serving as the Local Governmental Unit (LGU) 

responsible for administration of the Wetland Conservation Act within the city. 

• To administer the city’s program for environmental review, including review of environmental 

assessment worksheets and other environmental documents leading to submission of reports and 

recommendations to the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council. 

• To work with the City’s Boards and Commissions to evaluate community needs for planning and 

development services, land use changes, recreation or transportation improvements, and 

environmental impacts. 

• To stay updated on available grant opportunities and lead the grant application process on behalf of 

the City. 



114 

 

 

 

• To provide regular, consistent service to citizens of the City seeking over-the-counter information 

about various planning and zoning matters. 

•  To provide responsive, transparent, and effective development services to citizens and businesses 

interested in doing business in the City.   

• To establish intergovernmental relationships with St. Louis County and neighboring cities to coordinate 

land use, transportation, and environmental planning efforts. 

• To enforce zoning regulations. 

 

 

  

Output 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022*

Zoning Certificates 87 73 111 21 21 2

Land Alteration Permits (Fil l) 3 4 4 8 8 8

Special Use Permits 0 7 8 2 10 6

Sign Permits 12 6 7 5 20 11

Fence Permits 3 3 5 7 11 6

Planned Unit Development 2 1 2 3 3 1

Commercial Industrial Development Permit 1 1 2 4 0 3

Variance 0 2 1 1 1 1

Wetland Delineations 12 12 12 15 15 8

Wetland Fil l  Exemptions 4 4 4 5 2 3

Rezoning 0 0 1 0 0 3

Economic Development Districts (TIF/TA) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Zoning Amendments 0 2 3 1 1 1

Subdivision 0 1 2 1 3 2

Non-Conforming Use Permits 0 0 0 0 0 0

Property Splits 6 6 7 9 15 8

Road Name Petition 0 0 0 0 0 1

PUD Amendment 0 0 0 0 0 1

* As of August 2022



P
R
O
G
R
A
M
S

F
O
C
U
S

G
O
A
L
S

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
S

M
I
S
S
I

O
N

 

 

Working together to serve and build the communityCOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

www.hermantownmn.com

Leading and
managing
the overall
organization

Maintaining
and improving
the City
infrastructure

Protecting
life and
property

Creating a
better place
to live, work,
and play

Enhance resources for positive individual, family, and community
growth through supporting public and private improvement and
development projects, as well as developing recreation opportunities
and facilities for the community

A.) Preserve and foster constituent trust
B.) Maintain community resources
C.) Grow community resources

1.) Residential Development ---------------------- Goal Alignment; A & C
2.) Commercial Development -------------------- Goal Alignment; A & C
3.) Application & Approval Processes ----------- Goal Alignment; A, B, & C
4.) Park Development & Coordination --------- Goal Alignment; A, B, & C
5.) Environmental Efforts -------------------------- Goal Alignment; A, B, & C

Benchmark        2020 Actual         2021 Actual       2022 Target        2023 Target     

Total
Applications

Admin. Lot
Splits

Commercial
Developments

PUDs

50

10

1

1

68

8

4

3

83

14

1

4

70

10

1

1

85

10

3

Zoning
Certificates 15 21 22 20 15

1

Special Use
Permits 1 3 11 11 7

Wetland
Deliniations 15 19 18 15 20



116 

 

 

 

Authorized Personnel 

The Community Development Department has a full-time Director.  

 

Budget Summary 

 

 

 

 

Budget Commentary 

The 2023 Community Development operating budget is increasing by 15.2% due to an additional position 

working part time in this department. 

The Director is continuing to implement the goals and recommendations of the City of Hermantown 

Comprehensive Plan as directed by the Planning Commission and the City Council.  Goals include completion of 

environmental projects, streamlining the issuance of zoning certificates, creating a development services page 

on the website, and improving the zoning code.     

  

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

101-151 Salaries/Benefits 244,134         273,730         12.1%

201-499 Supplies/Services & Maintenance 44,030           58,101           32.0%

Total Expenditures 288,164         331,831         15.2%



117 

 

 

 

Budget Detail 

 

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Salaries & Benefits

101 Full-Time Employees-Regular 96,763           165,425         186,420         

121 PERA Contributions-Coordinated 7,500             12,407           13,982           

128 Social Security 6,024             10,256           11,558           

129 Medicare 1,409             2,399             2,703             

131 Health Insurance 27,041           51,835           56,349           

133 Life Insurance 259                 426                 452                 

134 Disability Insurance 448                 733                 820                 

136 MSRS -                      423                 1,170             

151 Workers Compensation 215                 230                 276                 

Supplies/Services & Maintenance

201 Office Supplies 31                   500 300

202 Printing Supplies -                      500 300

209 Computer Equipment -                      -                  -                  

304 Parcel Research Fees 1,240             1,500 2,500

305 Engineer Fees 4,415             8,500 10,000

308 Legal Fees 28,849           10,000 17,500

310 Recording/Filing Fees 980                 750 1,500

314 Computer/Software Fees 397                 1,500 1,500

315 School & Conference -                      200 1,500

319 Contracted Services 7,582             1,000 1,250

321 Telephone 300                 300 300

325 Postage 531                 850 1,000

331 Travel Expense 30                   500 1,000

351 Legal Notices Publishing 2,446             1,500 2,000

361 General Liability Insurance 8,212             8,212 8,212

405 Computer Maintenance 3,831             6,218 7,739

451 Dues & Subscriptions 150                 2,000 1,500

Total Expenditures 198,653         288,164         331,831         



118 

 

 

 

City Hall/Police Building Maintenance - 419901 
 

Maintenance is conducted to preserve City Hall and the Police side of the public safety portion of the building 

at 5105-5111 Maple Grove Road, Hermantown.  

 

Objective 

• Maintain a reputable facility to house staff and conduct meetings 

 

Authorized Personnel 

The City Hall/Police Building Maintenance department has the Building Grounds Maintenance worker as 

authorized personnel.  This position also does maintenance work for other buildings including Fire hall #1, #2 & 

#3, Public Works and the Community Building. 

Budget Summary 

 

 

 

Budget Commentary 

The 2023 city hall/police building maintenance operating budget had an overall 9.1% increase from 2022 due 

increase in wage for part time employee, increased utilities, and increased insurance cost. 

  

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

101-151 Salaries/Benefits 75,149           82,051           9.2%

211-460 Supplies/Services & Maintenance 92,630           101,046         9.1%

Total Expenditures 167,779         183,097         9.1%



119 

 

 

 

Budget Detail  

     
             

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Salaries & Benefits

101 Full-Time Employees-Regular 45,891           35,195           37,870           

102 Full-Time Employees-Overtime 2,845             -                      273                 

103 Part-Time Employees-Regular 7,805             10,943           13,884           

111 Severance Pay 2,457             -                      -                      

121 PERA Contributions-Coordinated 4,239             2,639             2,861             

128 Social Security 3,479             2,860             3,226             

129 Medicare 814                 669                 754                 

131 Health Insurance 17,981           20,391           20,930           

132 HCSP 10,898           -                      

133 Life Insurance 22                   41                   41                   

134 Disability Insurance 131                 180                 206                 

136 MSRS -                      338                 -                      

151 Workers Compensation 2,046             1,893             2,006             

Supplies /Services & Maintenance

211 Cleaning Supplies 109                 -                  -                  

212 Motor Fuels 2,166             1,550 2,000

216 Uniforms 377                 350 500

221 General Supplies 5,475             6,000 6,500

223 Maintenance Supplies 17                   0

224 Land Maintenance & Repair 501                 2,000 2,000

319 Contracted Services 1,438             2,000 2,000

321 Telephone 7,343             7,572 7,572

322 Internet 6,354             8,200 8,200

361 General Liability Insurance 9,381             10,208 12,874

381 Electricity 26,071           24,500 25,000

383 Heating Gas 13,497           16,000 17,500

384 Garbage Removal 4,575             2,600 2,750

401 Building Maintenance 27,722           7,500 10,000

404 Equipment Maintenance 19,262           4,000 4,000

405 Computer Maintenance -                      -                      -                      

406 Vehicle Maintenance 108                 -                      -                      

451 Dues & Subscriptions 130                 50 50

460 Permits & Licenses 70                   100 100

Total Expenditures 223,204         167,779         183,097         



120 

 

 

 

Police 421100 
 

The Police Department is responsible for law enforcement within the City and cooperates with surrounding law 

enforcement agencies. 

 

Objectives 

• The Police Department will strive to lower the crime rate in the City of Hermantown. 

• The Police Department will strive to lower the motor vehicle crash rate in the City of Hermantown. 

• The Police Department will cooperate with businesses to reduce crime. 

• The Police Department will cooperate with the Hermantown School District to improve safety and 

security for students and staff. 

 

Authorized Personnel 

The Police Department has 16 licensed officers as follows; (1) Chief of Police, (2) Commanders (2) Sergeants (2 

of which are K-9 Officers), (2) Detectives, (1) School Police Liaison/Dare Officer, (8) Patrol Officers The 

department also has (3.00 FTE) Police Secretaries.  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Incidents are the total number of calls the Police Department handled.  Recorded incidents in 2021 totaled 

9,819 compared to 7,671 in 2020, a 28% increase.   

 

 

 

0
2,000
4,000
6,000
8,000

10,000
12,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

10,448
10,313

9,576
9,768 10,039

7,671
9,819

Recorded Activity- # of Incidents Recorded City of Hermantown



121 

 

 

 

Part I & II Serious Crime 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source of Data: Hermantown Police Department Annual Reports 

 

  

PART I & II SERIOUS CRIME 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Assault 41 43 43 60 61 55 50 64 48

Burglary 64 33 47 41 53 46 28 28 34

Forgery/Counterfeiting 6 22 16 26 20 17 29 44 35

Drugs/Narcotics 30 55 57 74 65 89 85 57 50

Arson/Fires 2 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 0

Gambling 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0

Homicide 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0

Crime Against Families 11 7 16 5 5 6 5 4 4

Traffic & Accident Offenses/DWI 85 102 102 89 68 75 100 53 130

Kidnap/Abduction 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 0

Criminal Sexual Conduct 6 11 11 3 17 9 16 12 0

Misc./Federal/Conservation/Juvenile/Liquor 27 25 20 15 14 9 9 1 7

Disturbing Peace/Privacy/Communications 61 59 39 44 19 11 15 12 11

Trespass/Property Damage/Risk from Property Damage 110 72 74 107 87 115 67 102 105

Receiving or Concealing Stolen Property 8 2 1 5 8 9 18 26 20

Robbery 1 4 0 3 1 2 0 0 0

Theft 408 323 440 524 467 442 756 492 576

Vehicle Theft 72 29 48 43 14 18 14 15 27

Weapons 3 7 9 6 8 11 9 5 8

Other Offenses 25 26 24 31 115 135 191 107 125

Sex Related/Prostitution 2 0 0 1 1 2 1 0 0

Total 962 820 949 1079 1024 1052 1395 1023 1180





123 

 

 

 

Budget Summary 

 

 

 

 

Budget Commentary 

The 2023 Police Department operating budget increased by 5.3% from 2022 due in part to wages increases, but 

also due to rising fuel costs. 

 

 

Budget Detail                      

 

  

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

101-151 Salaries/Benefits 2,606,364     2,722,790     4.5%

201-499 Supplies/Services & Maintenance 341,985         397,784         16.3%

540-580 Capital Outlay 128,000         117,500         -8.2%

Total Expenditures 3,076,349     3,238,074     5.3%

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Salaries & Benefits

101 Full-Time Employees-Regular 1,458,064     1,542,357     1,619,008     

102 Full-Time Employees-Overtime 154,152         147,410         160,113         

111 Severance Pay-Vacation 23,901           -                      -                      

121 PERA Contributions-Coordinated 11,605           12,443           13,038           

122 PERA Contributions-Police/Fire 257,974         269,724         284,134         

128 Social Security 9,867             10,286           10,778           

129 Medicare 22,582           24,502           25,797           

131 Health Insurance 443,980         533,572         546,693         

132 Health Care Savings Plan 7,010             -                      -                      

133 Life Insurance 1,611             1,733             1,733             

134 Disability Insurance 6,700             7,763             8,389             

136 MSRS 1,564             10,270           4,680             

151 Workers Compensation 46,378           46,304           48,427           



124 

 

 

 

Budget Detail continued                      

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Supplies /Services & Maintenance

201 Office Supplies 1,669             1,500             1,500             

202 Printing Supplies 1,003             1,500             1,500             

209 Computer Supplies 1,811             1,000             1,500             

212 Motor Fuels 39,042           38,000           63,250           

216 Uniforms 17,724           13,800           17,000           

218 Medical Supplies 1,179             800                 1,200             

219 Other Equipment 146                 -                      -                      

221 General Supplies 6,414             4,000             5,700             

222 Tires 6,572             4,500             6,000             

240 Gun Supplies/Ammo/Tasers 5,890             10,500           10,500           

303 Banking Fees 39                   -                      -                      

308 Legal Fees 59,170           83,000           83,000           

314 Computer/Software Fees 28,249           25,000           25,000           

315 School & Conference 10,070           11,000           11,000           

317 Personnel Testing, Physicals, Recruitment 3,245             -                      -                      

319 Contracted Services 3,589             5,000             5,000             

321 Telephone 15,687           16,000           16,500           

325 Postage 1,385             1,300             1,400             

331 Travel Expense 5,949             7,500             7,500             

343 Community Relations 1,163             1,500             1,500             

351 Legal Notices Publishing 470                 300                 300                 

361 General Liability Insurance 34,218           42,387           45,706           

404 Equipment Maintenance 3,862             3,000             3,000             

405 Computer Maintenance 30,689           40,248           58,328           

406 Vehicle Maintenance 19,070           13,500           15,000           

413 Equipment Rental 4,030             5,000             5,000             

434 Employee Recognition 42                   250                 250                 

436 Towing Charges 905                 250                 250                 

451 Dues & Subscriptions 3,298             2,000             2,000             

460 Permits & Licenses 87                   650                 400                 

490 K-9 Expenses 2,189             3,000             3,000             

495 Property Damage Reimb. By Insurance 21,124           2,000             2,000             

499 Miscellaneous 3,164             3,500             3,500             

Capital Outlay

540 Office Equip/Furnishings -                      2,500             2,500             

544 Motor Vehicles 126,374         115,000         115,000         

580 Other Equipment 6,725             10,500           -                      

Total Expenditures 2,911,631     3,076,349     3,238,074     



125 

 

 

 

Fire Protection – 422100 - Contracted 

The City of Hermantown contracts yearly for fire protection with The Hermantown Volunteer Fire 

Department (HVFD) for all properties within the City.  In addition, the department also provides first 

responder service within the City.  The HVFD was incorporated in 1951.  It functions independent of 

the City and its officers are elected by the membership.  

 

Objectives 

• Provide fire protection 
• First responder service 

 

Output 

• Averaged an overall response time excluding mutual aid of 8.3 minutes in 2021.  

 

 

*Note-These times are excluding Mutual Aid and per the Fire Department 911 doesn’t always record the on-

scene times properly. 

 

 

 

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

M
in

u
te

s

Average Response Time to Fire Calls in 
Minutes



126 

 

 

 

 

 

Budget Summary 

 

 

 

Budget Commentary 

The 2023 budget increased 5% from 2022. 

The City provides the space and pays for liability insurance premiums, utilities, telephone and internet. 

The Hermantown Volunteer Fire Department (HVFD) pays for equipment, supplies, duty crew, and any 

other operating costs. 

 

Budget Detail 

 

  

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

301-363 Supplies/Services 536,795 563,634    5.0%

Total Expenditures 536,795 563,634    5.0%

2021 

ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

318 Fire Protection 521,160 536,795    563,634        

Total Expenditures 521,160 536,795    563,634        

Fire Department Incident Type Summary 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Severe Weather & Natural Disaster 3

Overpressure Rupture, Explosion, Overheat 2 1 3

Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 22 33 57 48 148 45 42 37

Good Intent Call 1 48 41 33 77 55 54 69

Controlled Burning 2

Fire 33 36 22 46 35 30 41 30

False Alarm & False Call 57 30 44 29 28 37 44 43

Special Incident Type 1 3 2

Service Call 17 25 10 19 9 13 24

Rescue & Emergency Medical Services 795 761 742 793 821 822 878 900

Total Incidents 930 933 919 972 1109 1001 1074 1103



127 

 

 

 

Fire Hall #1 – 422901 
 

Fire Hall maintenance is conducted to preserve the citizens’ investment in City buildings and to track the costs 

associated with maintaining and preserving the fire hall portion of the public safety facility.  There are three fire 

stations located in Hermantown.   

Fire Hall #1 is located at:  

5111 Maple Grove Road 

Budget Summary 

 

Budget Detail 

 

  

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

101-151 Salaries/Benefits 19,359           20,483           5.8%

219-495 Supplies/Services & Maintenance 32,029           36,711           14.6%

Total Expenditures 51,388           57,194           11.3%

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Salaries & Benefits

101 Full-Time Employees - Regular 9,412             10,829           11,652           

102 Full-Time Employees - Overtime 875                 -                      84                   

103 Part-Time Employees - Regular 456                 -                      -                      

111 Severance Pay 756                 -                      -                      

121 PERA Contributions - Coordinated 771                 812                 880                 

128 Social Security 666                 671                 728                 

129 Medicare 156                 157                 170                 

131 Health Insurance 4,217             6,274             6,440             

132 HCSP 3,353             -                      

133 Life Insurance 8                     13                   13                   

134 Disability Insurance 39                   55                   63                   

136 MSRS -                      104                 -                      

151 Workers Compensation 490                 444                 453                 

Supplies/Services & Maintenance

221 General Supplies 615                 -                      -                      

321 Telephone 1,824             2,050             2,100             

322 Internet 1,673             1,690             1,700             

361 General Liability Insurance 2,575             2,789             3,411             

381 Electricity 16,668           15,000           17,000           

383 Heating Gas 8,523             10,000           12,000           

401 Building Maintenance 8,008             500                 500                 

460 Permits and Licenses 10                   -                      -                      

Total Expenditures 61,095           51,388           57,194           



128 

 

 

 

Fire Halls #2 & #3 – 422902/422903 
 

Fire Hall maintenance is conducted to preserve the citizens’ investment in City buildings and to track the costs 

associated with maintaining the fire halls. 

 
Fire Hall #2 is located at 4900 Morris Thomas Road. 

Fire Hall #3 is located at 4494 Midway Road. 

 

Budget Summary 

 

 

Budget Detail 

 

 

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

200-499 Supplies/Services & Maintenance 13,608           15,460           13.6%

Total Expenditures 13,608           15,460           13.6%

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Supplies/Services & Maintenance

221 General Supplies 110                 70                   -                         

223 Maintenance Supplies 285                 600                 100                   

319 Contracted Services 176                 176                 200                   

322 Internet 1,740             1,868             1,911                

361 General Liability Insurance 2,386             2,584             3,099                

381 Electricity 1,888             2,400             2,550                

383 Heating Gas 4,076             4,910             6,600                

401 Building Maintenance 5,014             1,000             1,000                

Total Expenditures 15,675           13,608           15,460             



129 

 

 

 

Building Inspection – 424100 
 

The Building Official is responsible for administration, interpretation and enforcement of the MN State Building 

Code. The primary goal of the department is to seek compliance with the minimum standards of the MN State 

Building Code in residential and commercial construction activities.  

 

Objectives 

• Enforce 2020 MN Building code 

• Review building plans 

• Issue building permits & certificate of occupancy permits 

• File state reports on construction activity 

• Inform customers of code changes and new requirements 

• Conduct site inspections 

• Provide code interpretation 

• Aid the customer with building code related questions or issues 

• Issue 911 addresses 

• Fire Inspections 

 

Output 

• Building Permits Issued 2022 (January through September) – 147 total for value of $32,480,292 

 

 

Authorized Personnel 

The Building Inspection Department has one full-time Building Official and is assisted by the 

Receptionist/Administrative Assistant. 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

 $40,000,000
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
P

e
rm

it
s 

Is
su

e
d

To
ta

l V
al

u
at

io
n

Permit Values & Permits Issued

Total Valuation Number of Permits Issued



P
R
O
G
R
A
M
S

F
O
C
U
S

G
O
A
L
S

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
S

M
I
S
S
I

O
N

 

 

Working together to serve and build the communityBUILDING OFFICIAL

www.hermantownmn.com

Leading and
managing
the overall
organization

Maintaining
and improving
the City
infrastructure

Protecting
life and
property

Creating a
better place
to live, work,
and play

To provide clear, consistent, reliable, and timely information and
processes to developers, contractors, residents, and businesses to meet
their needs regarding development, building, and codes for the City

A.) Providing accurate, timely information
B.) Maintain constituent trust
C.) Aid in development of community

1.) Residential Building Permits ----------- Goal Alignment; A, B & C
2.) Commercial Building Permits --------- Goal Alignment; A, B, & C
3.) Process Assessment --------------------- Goal Alignment; A & B
4.) Developer Support ----------------------- Goal Alignment; A, B, & C
5.) Communications ------------------------- Goal Alignment; A & B

Benchmark         2020 Actual        2021 Actual       2022 Target        2023 Target     

Res. Building
Permits

125 180 216 175 190

Com. Build.
Permits 25 21 27 50 50



131 

 

 

 

Budget Summary 

 
 

Budget Detail 

 

 

Budget Commentary 

The 2023 Budget decreased by 29.1% from 2022 due to personnel change. 

 

  

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

101-151 Salaries/Benefits 230,979         158,194         -31.5%

201-451 Supplies/Services & Maintenance 12,089           14,196           17.4%

Total Expenditures 243,068         172,390         -29.1%

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Salaries & Benefits

101 Full-Time Employees-Regular 102,008         112,828         104,207         

111 Severance Pay -                      60,013           -                      

121 PERA Contributions-Coordinated 7,627             8,462             7,816             

128 Social Security 6,614             10,716           6,461             

129 Medicare 1,547             2,506             1,511             

131 Health Insurance 29,948           34,699           35,660           

133 Life Insurance 274                 273                 273                 

134 Disability Insurance 520                 519                 551                 

136 MSRS 521                 806                 1,560             

151 Workers Compensation 155                 157                 155                 

Supplies/Services & Maintenance

201 Office Supplies 682                 400                 400                 

216 Uniforms -                      -                      750                 

221 General Supplies 33                   -                      -                      

227 Street Lights & Signs 1,070             1,150             1,200             

308 Legal Fees 763                 -                      -                      

315 School & Conference 50                   100                 1,500             

320 Personnel Search Expenses -                      800                 -                      

325 Postage 232                 200                 200                 

331 Travel 7,220             7,200             7,200             

351 Legal Notices Publishing 74                   -                      -                      

405 Computer Maintenance 1,278             1,939             2,446             

451 Dues & Subscriptions -                      300                 500                 

         160,616          243,068          172,390 



132 

 

 

 

 

Poundmaster - 427100 
 

The City provides limited animal control services.  The City works with Animal Allies Humane Society in Duluth 

for this service to the community. 

 

Budget Summary 

 

 

Budget Detail 

 

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

319 Contracted Services 2,610             2,700             3.4%

Total Expenditures 2,610             2,700             3.4%

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Supplies & Services

319 Contracted Services 3,680             2,610             2,700             

Total Expenditures 3,680             2,610             2,700             



133 

 

 

 

Street – 431100 
 
The Street Department is responsible for maintenance, ice and snow removal of all municipal streets, 

as well as public street right of ways.  The Public Works Director is responsible for leading the 

maintenance and repair of City streets for safe use.   There are three full-time employees that work 

within the Street Department.  Water and sewer employees will assist the Street Department 

employees during snowfall events.  City snow removal equipment consists of three trucks with plows 

and a grader.  The plowing of all City streets after a snowfall event takes approximately six to seven 

hours.  Principal collector streets are always plowed first before residential neighborhood streets.   

 

Objectives 

• Patching of City streets 

• Grading graveled streets 

• Ice control or sanding of streets 

• Monitor & oversight of weed control in right-of-ways 

• Sign installation & maintenance 

• Inspect excavation permits 

• Inspection of all street related jobs 

• Barricading 

• Maintenance of storm sewers 

• Litter pickup in right-of-ways 

• Maintain equipment 

• Thaw main culverts 

• Crack filling 

• Dust control 

• Painting traffic control markings – contracted  

• Sweeping City streets- contracted  

• Paving - contracted 

 

 

  

Asphalt Streets Maintained 53 Miles

Gravel Roads Maintained 19 Miles

Cul-De-Sacs 37

Road Marking/Striping 35 Miles

Gravel Usage 5800 Tons

Salt Usage 325 Tons

Sand Usage 2380 Tons

2022-2023 Statistical Information





135 

 

 

 

Authorized Personnel 
The Street Department has the following authorized personnel; Public Works Director, Street Maintenance 

Workers. 

Budget Summary 

 

Budget Commentary 

The 2023 Street Department operating budget is increasing by 3.8% from 2022.  

  

2022 ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

101-151 Salaries/Wages                352,878          365,609 3.6%

201-499 Supplies/Services & Maintenance 390,290               412,853         5.8%

540-580 Capital Outlay 6,500                   -                      -100.0%

Total Expenditures 749,668               778,462         3.8%



136 

 

 

 

Budget Detail

 

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Salaries & Benefits

101 Full-Time Employees - Regular 217,941               209,147         217,508         

102 Full-Time Employees - Overtime 10,249                 11,722           13,028           

103 Part-time Employees -  Regular 8,242                   -                      -                      

121 PERA Contributions - Coordinated 17,114                 16,565           17,290           

128 Social Security 14,090                 13,694           14,293           

129 Medicare 3,295                   3,203             3,343             

131 Health Insurance 88,506                 79,566           80,958           

132 HCSP-Sick Leave/Uncollected 419                       -                      -                      

133 Life Insurance 301                       277                 277                 

134 Disability Insurance 1,134                   1,080             1,180             

136 MSRS 209                       1,615             780                 

151 Workers Compensation 15,672                 16,009           16,952           

Supplies/Services & Maintenance

209 Computer Equipment -                            -                      -                      

212 Motor Fuels 35,270                 60,000           60,000           

213 Lubricants/Additives 5,120                   3,500             5,000             

216 Uniforms 625                       1,000             1,000             

221 General Supplies 2,521                   5,500             5,500             

222 Tires 5,455                   6,000             6,000             

225 Street Maintenance Supplies 27,599                 26,000           28,945           

226 Sand, Salt, Chloride 72,966                 72,500           80,500           

227 Street Lights & Signs 2,978                   2,500             2,500             

305 Engineer Fees 390                       -                      -                      

314 Computer/Software Fees -                            1,576             1,600             

315 School & Conference 1,116                   1,000             1,000             

317 Personnel Testing, Physicals -                            500                 500                 

319 Contracted Services 20,034                 23,500           23,500           

320 Personnel Search Expense -                            -                      1,500             

321 Telephone 2,297                   2,300             2,300             

322 Internet 1,105                   1,200             1,200             

331 Travel Expense 68                         300                 300                 

351 Legal Notices Publishing 140                       100                 100                 

361 General Liability Insurance 10,682                 12,790           17,223           

403 Road Maintenance 104,626               100,000         105,000         

404 Equipment Maintenance 26,953                 40,000           40,000           

405 Computer Maintenance 6,317                   8,124             12,285           

406 Vehicle Maintenance 773                       3,750             3,750             

413 Equipment Rental 6,754                   15,000           10,000           

417 Uniform Rental 2,524                   2,500             2,500             

434 Employee Recognition Plan 204                       300                 300                 

451 Dues & Subscriptions -                            -                      -                      

460 Permits & Licenses 215                       350                 350                 

Capital Outlay

540 Office Equip/Furnishings -                            1,500             -                      

580 Other Equipment -                            5,000             -                      

Total Expenditures 713,904 749,668 778,462



137 

 

 

 

City Engineer - 431130 - Contracted 
 

In 2022, the City contracted with Northland Consulting Engineers. No change is anticipated in 2023. 

Objectives 

• Responsible for the implementation of the Minnesota State Aid program within the City of 

Hermantown 

• Prepare “minor” plans, which will include necessary overlays.  The Engineer shall supervise the 

construction and make up the partial and final estimates on these projects 

• Review all proposed subdivision plats and write up recommendations for any changes needed to 

protect the interests of the City 

• Work with the City and consultants for the City and provide and develop legal descriptions, plat plans 

and maps and other information that may be needed by the City 

• Attend City Council, MSA, T.A.C., and M.I.C meetings as directed by the Council 

• Prepare Preliminary Engineering Reports from time to time, as requested, in connection with 

improvements to be constructed and specially assessed under Chapter 429 of the Minnesota Statutes 

 

Budget Summary 

 

 

Budget Detail 

 

  

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

305 Supplies/Services & Maintenance29,000           22,000           -24.1%

Total Expenditures 29,000           22,000           -24.1%

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Supplies & Services

305 Contracted Services 16,745           29,000           22,000           

Total Expenditures 16,745           29,000           22,000           



138 

 

 

 

City Garage Maintenance - 431901 
 

Maintenance is conducted to preserve the citizens’ investment in City buildings.  The public works facility is 

located in the Hermantown Industrial Park.  The facility allows more efficient operations and room to expand 

operations as additional demands for service are placed on the community.    

Budget Summary  

 

 

Budget Detail 

 

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

101-151 Salaries/Wages 21,014           21,861           4.0%

200-499 Supplies/Services & Maintenance 18,665           26,318           41.0%

Total Expenditures 39,679           48,179           21.4%

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Salaries & Benefits

101 Full-Time Employees-Regular 4,529             12,116           12,697           

102 Full-Time Employees-Overtime 740                 674                 769                 

103 Part-Time Employees-Regular 768                 -                      -                      

111 Severance Pay 189                 -                      -                      

121 PERA Contributions-Coordinated 395                 959                 1,010             

128 Social Security 370                 793                 835                 

129 Medicare 87                   185                 195                 

131 Health Insurance 2,859             5,263             5,382             

132 Health Care Savings 853                 -                      -                      

133 Life Insurance 4                     12                   12                   

134 Disability Insurance 21                   66                   73                   

136 MSRS -                      104                 -                      

151 Workers Compensation 834                 842                 888                 

Supplies/Services & Maintenance

221 General Supplies 6,807             4,000             5,840             

223 Maintenance Supplies 2,931             1,600             5,600             

321 Telephone -                      250                 250                 

361 General Liability Insurance 1,445             1,565             1,598             

381 Electricity 2,961             3,500             3,780             

383 Heating Gas 3,717             3,250             4,500             

384 Garbage Removal 1,943             2,000             2,250             

401 Building Maintenance 2,260             2,500             2,500             

404 Equipment Maintenance 263                 

460 Permits -                      -                      -                      

Total Expenditures 33,976           39,679           48,179           



139 

 

 

 

Parks - 452100 
 

The City of Hermantown owns several number of park facilities located throughout the community. Volunteer 

organizations, formal organized athletic groups, and the Hermantown School District provide a variety of 

activities for the residents of the City.  The City maintains the park facilities while volunteer organizations, 

organized athletic groups, and the school district manage the programmed recreational activities available to 

citizens.  City parks include a variety of active and passive recreational activities for citizens.  The two largest 

parks, Keene Creek Park and Fichtner Park, include recreational trails and spaces for community 

gatherings.  The City provides playground equipment at several parks, including Fichtner Park, Rose Road Park 

and Stebner Park. 

 

Objectives of the Park Board/Park Department  

• Annually make reports of its activities to the City Council 

• Maintain, beautify, and care for all park property in the City 

• Perform other functions as delegated by the City Council  

• Provide recreational opportunities for all citizens 

• Provide a mix of active and passive recreation facilities throughout the community 

• Preserve stream corridors and other natural areas not suited for development 

• Plan for future development 

 

Hermantown Park Facilities 

Rose Road Park (4494 Midway Road-Intersection of Midway & Rose Road) – Softball fields utilized by the 

Hermantown Softball Association during the summer season. 

Stebner Park (4860 Maple Grove Road) – Soccer fields utilized by the Hermantown Youth Soccer Association. 

Fichtner Field Complex (Intersection of Maple Grove & Ugstad Road) -Field 1 used by Hermantown High School 

Baseball between March and early June.  Field 2 used by Hermantown High School Softball between March and 

early June.  Fields 1, 2, 3, & 4 used by Hermantown Little League between the end of May and beginning of 

August. 

Skateboard Park, Basketball Court, Playground, Restrooms, Picnic Shelter 

Keene Creek Park (South end of Okerstrom Road) - Softball field utilized by the Hermantown Softball 

Association during the summer season.  10 kilometers of trails open for public use.  

Hermantown Community Park (5255 Maple Grove Road) - The pavilion at this location can be reserved for 

family events or group activities. 

A Parks and Trails Master Plan was adopted by the Park Board and the City Council in Resolution 2019-38.  The 

Master Plan Report is a product of an in-depth planning process for existing and future Hermantown parks and 

trails.  The Master Plan will be reviewed annually during the internal budget process along with the Capital 

Improvement Plan (CIP).  The parks and trail projects and the source of funds to construct them must be 

identified in the CIP approved by the City Council.  The Park Board will continue to monitor the progress of the 

park and trail system.   



140 

 

 

 

 

Authorized Personnel 

The Parks & Recreation department has several part-time maintenance workers and a seasonal mower. 

 

Budget Summary 

 

 

Budget Detail 

 

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

101-151 Salaries/Wages 51,031 56,317 10.36%

200-499 Supplies/Services & Maintenance 86,141 66,295 -23.04%

720 Other Financing Uses 2,000 6,000 200.00%

Total Expenditures 139,172 128,612 -7.59%

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Salaries & Benefits

101 Full-Time Employees-Regular 16,754          12,405          12,896          

102 Full-Time Employees-Overtime 656                335                349               

103 Part-Time Employees-Regular 13,541          29,560          33,871          

121 PERA Contributions-Coordinated 1,306            956                993               

128 Social Security 1,867            2,623            2,921            

129 Medicare 437                613                683               

131 Health Insurance 7,821            2,229            2,207            

133 Life Insurance 19                  10                  10                  

134 Disability Insurance 92                  65                  72                  

136 MSRS -                     104                -                     

151 Workers Compensation 2,118            2,131            2,315            

Supplies/Services & Maintenance

212 Motor Fuels 39                  -                     -                     

219 Other Operating Equipment -                     5,000            -                     

221 General Supplies 1,103            2,500            1,500            

224 Land Maintenance & Repair 37,624          35,000          22,250          

319 Contracted Services 26,310          25,000          25,000          

325 Postage 28                  -                     -                     

361 General Liability Insurance 1,559            1,341            1,045            

381 Electricity 3,553            3,300            3,500            

402 Grounds/Land Maintenance 10,471          6,500            6,500            

404 Equipment Maintenance 4,395            4,000            4,000            

413 Equipment Rental 8,791            3,500            2,500            

Other Financing Uses

720 Transfer Out 2,000            2,000 6,000

Total Expenditures 140,484        139,172        128,612       



141 

 

 

 

Community Building - 452200 
 

The Community building is located at 5255 Maple Grove Road. Arrowhead Builders Association will be leasing 

part of the building per Resolution 2015-66.  The Hermantown Historical Society is also leasing a portion of this 

building per Resolution 2011-18 to display historical items and information.  The Minnesota Bureau of Criminal 

Apprehension is leasing a portion of the building per Resolution 2022-91. The current budget accounts for the 

cost of maintenance personnel, telephone, insurance, electricity, and heating for the facility. 

 

Budget Summary 

 
 

Budget Detail 

 

  

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

101-151 Salaries & Benefits               9,680             10,241 5.8%

200-499 Supplies/Services & Maintenance 13,071           15,726           20.3%

Total Expenditures 22,751           25,967           14.1%

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Salaries & Benefits

101 Full-Time Employees - Regular               3,141               5,414               5,826 

102 Full-Time Employees - Overtime                  436                        -                     42 

103 Part-Time Employees-Regular                  321                        -                        - 

111 Severance Pay                  378                        -                        - 

121 PERA Contributions - Coordinated                  268                  406                  440 

128 Social Security                  251                  336                  364 

129 Medicare                     59                     79                     85 

131 Health Insurance               1,645               3,137               3,220 

132 HCSP               1,677                        -                        - 

133 Life Insurance                       2                       6                       6 

134 Disability Insurance                       8                     28                     32 

136 MSRS                        -                     52                        - 

151 Workers Compensation                  245                  222                  226 

Supplies/Services & Maintenance

221 General Supplies 127                 -                      -                      

223 Maintenance Supplies 39                   350                 700                 

321 Telephone 121                 121                 121                 

361 General Liability Insurance 2,124             2,300             3,405             

381 Electricity 5,558             5,250             5,500             

383 Heating Gas 3,749             4,250             5,000             

401 Building Maintenance 617                 800                 1,000             

404 Equipment Maintenance 555                 -                      -                      

Total Expenditures 21,321           22,751           25,967           



142 

 

 

 

Cemetery - 490100 
 

There are four private cemeteries and a City cemetery located within Hermantown. The City operates 

a municipal cemetery and provides regular maintenance of the grounds.  The City Cemetery is located 

along the north side of Morris Thomas Road between Ugstad Road and Lindahl Road.  The eligibility 

requirements for burial are as follows: 

• Persons who have resided in the city for 30 years or more 

• Persons who are landowners and residents of the City for at least five consecutive years at 

the time of their death 

• Persons who were landowners and residents of the City for at least five consecutive years 

until taking up residence in a skilled nursing care facility 

• Persons residing in an apartment or other leased or rented dwelling unit in the City for five 

consecutive years at the time of their death 

• Dependent children of persons eligible for burial 

 

Budget Summary 

 
 

Budget Detail 

 

 

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

101-151 Salaries & Benefits               5,752               6,346 10.3%

Total Expenditures 5,752             6,346             10.3%

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Salaries & Benefits

101 Full-Time Employees - Regular 304                 1,262             1,312             

102 Full-Time Employees - Overtime 73                   77                   80                   

103 Part-Time Employees - Regular 466                 3,284             3,763             

121 PERA Contributions - Coordinated 28                   100                 104                 

128 Social Security 51                   287                 320                 

129 Medicare 12                   67                   75                   

131 Health Insurance 225                 426                 432                 

132 HCSP 3                     -                  -                  

133 Life Insurance -                  1                     1                     

134 Disability Insurance 2                     7                     8                     

136 MSRS -                  10                   -                  

151 Workers Compensation 229                 231                 251                 

Total Expenditures 1,393             5,752             6,346             



143 

 

 

 

Insurance- General- 492200 
During 2016, the City changed to Travelers Insurance due to a significant proposed increase in insurance 

premiums with the previous provider, League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust.  

Budget Summary 

 

 

Budget Commentary 

The City has insurance coverage for city volunteers when volunteering on City projects through Travelers 

Insurance. Travelers significantly raised the 2023 rates. 

 

Budget Detail 

 

 

Transfer Out - 495000 
This account transfers money to Fund 401 for Capital Equipment, to Fund 409 for City Hall long term 

maintenance, and to Fund 235 for Park improvements. 

 

Budget Summary 

 

 

  

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

200-499 Supplies/Services & Maintenance               34,108               50,178 47.1%

Total Expenditures 34,108             50,178             47.1%

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

361 Insurance 25,158            34,108            50,178          

Total Expenditures 25,158             34,108             50,178           

2021 

ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

720 Transfer Out 483,000  475,000  735,000      

Total Expenditures 483,000   475,000   735,000       



144 

 

 

 

Special Revenue Funds 
 

Fund 230 – Hermantown Economic Development Authority 
The Hermantown Economic Development Authority (HEDA) was established on April 6, 1992 by Resolution 92-

29.  HEDA is governed by a board of commissioners with seven members.  All the members of the City Council 

are board members plus two public members.  The City is financially accountable for HEDA because the City 

Council approves the budget for HEDA, levies taxes (if necessary), and must approve any debt issuances.  HEDA 

sponsors projects involving tax exempt financing (“conduit financing”) for the benefit of outside entities.  For 

this reason, HEDA is reported as a discretely presented component unit. HEDA has no employees, but has 

contracted with the City for administrative services. Board members do receive pay for each meeting they 

attend. 

Budget Detail 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

310100 Current Year Taxes             75,790          142,500          142,500 

310200 Delinquent Taxes               1,411                        -                        - 

341010 Building Rentals                     (1)                        -                        - 

362100 Investment Interest               4,464                        -                        - 

362160 Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investments             (6,468)                        -                        - 

362415 Other Insurance Recoveries Disability/Workers Comp                      4                        -                        - 

362440 Conduit Financing Fees               2,770               2,770               2,770 

362990 Miscellaneous Revenue               5,000                        -                        - 

391010 Sale of General Fixed Assets          515,000                        -                        - 

Total Revenues          597,970          145,270          145,270 

Expenditures

101 Full-Time Employees - Regular 21,638           22,051           22,682           

103 Part-Time Employees - Regular 2,200             4,200             4,200             

111 Severance Pay 1,175             -                      -                      

121 PERA Contributions - Coordinated 1,588             1,654             1,701             

123 PERA Contributions - DCP 64                   210                 210                 

128 Social Security 1,344             1,442             1,481             

129 Medicare 334                 381                 390                 

131 Health Insurance 4,067             4,748             5,489             

132 HCSP 215                 -                      -                      

133 Life Insurance 52                   44                   44                   

134 Disability Insurance 67                   73                   76                   

136 MSRS 87                   111                 265                 

151 Workers Compensation 31                   31                   34                   

201 Office Supplies -                      100                 100                 

202 Printing Supplies -                      200                 200                 

221 General Supplies -                      50                   -                      

305 Engineer Fees 7,488             2,000             3,000             

308 Legal Fees 14,589           6,000             15,000           

311 Contracted Escrow Expense 33,442           -                      -                      

315 School & Conference -                      1,475             1,300             

319 Contracted Services 51,899           90,000           78,098           

325 Postage -                      -                      -                      

331 Travel Expense 1,011             2,000             2,200             

343 Community Relations 500                 4,000             4,000             

351 Legal Notices Publishing 427                 500                 500                 

451 Dues & Subscriptions 3,140             4,000             4,000             

460 Permits & Licenses -                      -                      100                 

499 Miscellaneous 83                   -                      200                 

Total Expenditures 145,441         145,270         145,270         

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 452,529         -                  -                  



145 

 

 

 

Fund 235 – Park Dedication Fund 
 

Accounts for the collection of revenues dedicated to the acquisition and capital improvement of City parks.  

Revenue is collected by charging a park dedication fee on new buildings and developments. 

 

Budget Detail 

 

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

322460 Park Dedication Fee             48,150             18,500             18,500 

322470 Park Dedication Fee in Lieu of Land          107,100             16,000             25,000 

362100 Investment Interest                 (157)                  200                        - 

392010 Transfers In                        -                        -             25,000 

Total Revenues          155,093             34,700             68,500 

Expenditures

Services

224 Land Maintenance & Repair 4,064             -                      5,000             

305 Engineer Fees 520                 5,000             5,000             

308 Legal Fees 259                 -                      -                      

319 Contracted Services 2,500             -                      -                      

Other Financing Uses

720 Transfer Out 361,658         -                      -                      

Total Expenditures 369,001         5,000             10,000           

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (213,908)       29,700           58,500           



146 

 

 

 

Fund 236 - Wetland Mitigation Fund 
 

The Wetland Mitigation Fund accounts for the collection of revenues from landowners who disturb wetlands in 

connection with the development of a parcel of land to utilize for the acquisition, enhancement, restoration, or 

creation of Wetlands within the City. 

 

Budget Detail 
 

 
  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

322125 Wetland Bank Fee -                      100                 100                 

Total Revenues                        -                  100                  100 

Expenditures

Supplies & Services

319 Contracted Services 18,826           10,000 5,000

Total Expenditures 18,826           10,000           5,000             

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (18,826)          (9,900)            (4,900)            



147 

 

 

 

Fund 240 - City Sales Tax Fund 
 

Accounts for the City sales tax collected that is authorized by the Minnesota State Legislature to fund the 

construction of a city administrative services/public safety facility, Hermantown sewer trunk line and water 

infrastructure improvements.  The Hermantown City Sales Tax rate was increased from .5% to 1%. Voters 

approved the increase in the 2012 General Election. Collections at the 1% rate were effective April 1, 2013.  In 

2017 the State Legislature approved extending the sales tax through December 2036 and added the ability to 

use the sales tax for the construction of a Wellness Center.  

 

The current 1% sales tax will be increased to 1.5% in 2023 as approved by the voters on November 8, 2022. The 
citizens voted to fund a trio of wellness projects named the Community Recreation Initiative with a .5% sales tax 
increase. The projects are: Fichtner Field, Trails, and a 2nd sheet of ice. There are specific capped project costs 
that can be used with the .5% increase as follows: 
 
Ice Arena - $10,840,000 
Trails - $4,750,000 
Fichtner Field - $3,900,000 
 
This additional .5% sales tax may well be tracked in a separate special revenue Fund in 2023 due to the restrictions 
on the money. 
 
 

 

Budget Commentary 

 
Description of Transfers out to Debt Service Funds. 

 

 2016B GO Bonds        315   $ 698,807 

 2016A GO Bonds        318   $ 153,907 

 2012A GO Bonds        320   $ 197,539 

                2014A GO Bonds        322   $   65,000 

 2018B GO Bonds        324   $ 520,971 

 2019A GO Bonds        325   $ 647,620 

 2020A GO Bonds        326   $ 180,188 

 2020B GO Bonds        327   $ 293,370 

      

                Total                              $ 2,757,402 

  

  



148 

 

 

 

Budget Detail 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

313100 City Sales Tax       3,673,481       3,000,000       3,300,000 

318990 Other Tax Revenues          208,728                        -          185,000 

362100 Investment Interest             66,721             10,000             10,000 

362160 Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investments           (83,097)                        -                        - 

392010 Transfers In          137,689                        -                        - 

Total Revenues       4,003,522       3,010,000       3,495,000 

Expenditures

Supplies /Services & Maintenance

303 Banking Fees 1,771             -                      -                      

305 Engineer Fees 84,540           -                      265,000         

308 Legal Fees 11,738           -                      -                      

351 Legal Notices Publishing 297                 -                      -                      

395 State Fees/Surcharges 10,530           -                      -                      

432 Bad Debts 52,952           -                      -                      

Other Financing Uses

510 Land Acquisition 306,000         -                      -                      

530 Improvements Other Than Buildings 396,000         505,425         -                      

550 Street Improvements -                      192,000         -                      

580 Other Equipment -                      325,000         325,000         

720 Transfer Out 3,264,206     2,953,454     2,757,402     

Total Expenditures 4,128,034     3,975,879     3,347,402     

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (124,512)       (965,879)       147,598         



149 

 

 

 

Fund 245 – COVID – ARPA 
 

Accounts for revenue received from Federal Government for COVID related purposes and corresponding 

expenditures. 

Budget Detail 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

331999 Other Federal Grants & Aids               4,285 500,000         -                      

Total Revenues               4,285          500,000                        - 

Expenditures

Salaries & Benefits

101 Administration & Finance 851                 -                  -                  

Supplies & Services

219 Other Operating Equipment -                  -                  19,000           

308 City Attorney 3,435             -                  -                  

319 Contracted Services -                  330,000         525,000         

Total Expenditures 4,286             330,000         544,000         

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1)                    170,000         (544,000)       



150 

 

 

 

Fund 251 - Police Program Fund 
 

Police Program Fund accounts for revenue and expenditures for special police programs such as alcohol/drug 

forfeitures, police K9, and the public safety expo. 

 

 

Data Source:  Hermantown Police Department 2021 Annual Report 

Budget Detail 

 

43

26

40
44

35
40 44

32
35 37

48

29

67

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

DWI Arrests by Year

2021 

ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

351010 Court Fines             4,025                 2,250          3,000 

352010 Unclaimed Property                 525 -                        -                  

352020 Forfeitures             2,096 1,000               1,000         

362300 Donations           10,290 2,000               2,500         

Total Revenues           16,936                 5,250          6,500 

Expenditures

308 Legal Fees 1,363            -                    -             

343 Community Relations 1,597            -                    -             

490 K-9 Expenses 4,212            -                    1,000         

499 Miscellaneous 311               -                    -             

Total Expenditures 7,483            -                    1,000         

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 9,453            5,250               5,500         



151 

 

 

 

Fund 260 - Cable Television Fund 
 

Accounts for the revenues and expenditures associated with administering a franchise agreement with 

Mediacom to provide cable television to Hermantown residents. The current franchise fee charge is 5% of a 

resident’s Mediacom cable television bill. Hermantown High School is the site of the control room for the local 

cable channel.  

Budget Commentary  

The Communications intern supports the Cable TV Fund and is overseen by the Director of Communications. In 
addition, Administration staff salary and benefits are allocated to the Cable TV Fund for administration of the 
Fund. 
 

Budget Detail 

 

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

318100 Cable TV Franchise Fees             40,807             38,500             40,000 

362100 Investment Interest               1,369                  500                   250 

362120 Interest - Interfund               6,000               6,000               6,000 

362160 Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investments             (2,246)                        -                        - 

362415 Other Insurance Recoveries Disability/Workers Comp                      1                        -                        - 

Total Revenues             45,931             45,000             46,250 

Expenditures

Salaries & Benefits

101 Full-Time Employees - Regular               3,959               4,282               4,445 

103 Part-Time Employees - Reg                        -                        -               6,815 

121 PERA Contributions - Coordinated                  313                  321                   333 

128 Social Security                  249                  266                   698 

129 Medicare                     58                     62                   163 

131 Health Insurance                  811                  944                   966 

132 HCSP                     46                        -                        - 

133 Life Insurance                       8                       8                       8 

134 Disability Insurance                     13                     13                     14 

136 MSRS                     16                     20                     47 

151 Workers Compensation                       6                       6                     17 

Supplies/Services & Maintenance

308 Legal Fees -                      500                 500                 

314 Computer/Software Fees 11,915           -                      -                       

319 Contracted Services 5,625             7,500             -                       

331 Travel Expense 217                 -                      -                       

361 General Liability Insurance 48                   52                   -                       

404 Equipment Maintenance 4,581             1,000             14,000           

Total Expenditures 27,865           14,974           28,006           

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 18,066           30,026           18,244           



152 

 

 

 

Fund 275 – Essentia Wellness Center 
 

Accounts for the revenues associated with renting a portion of the Essentia Wellness Center to Essentia Health 

and building expenditures. 

 

Budget Detail 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

341000 Other Income          162,879                        -                        - 

341015 Community Building Rentals          235,882          259,998          229,652 

362999 Naming Rights          100,000          100,000          100,000 

Total Revenues          498,761          359,998          329,652 

Expenditures

219 Other Operating Equipment               6,870                        -                        - 

308 Legal Fees               5,178               2,000               1,000 

319 Contracted Services               2,635               1,000               1,000 

321 Telephone               7,036               7,500               5,300 

322 Internet             12,507             11,500               6,000 

361 General Liability insurance             22,698             22,698             22,698 

381 Electricity          126,072          105,000             87,352 

382 Water Purchases             92,881             34,000             18,000 

383 Heating Gas             78,101             35,000             72,302 

385 Sewer Charges             31,680             36,000             16,000 

405 Computer Maintenance             10,510               5,300                        - 

460 Permits & Licenses                  220                        -                        - 

499 Miscellaneous                  287                        -                        - 

Total Expenditures 396,675         259,998         229,652         

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 102,086         100,000         100,000         



153 

 

 

 

Debt Service Funds 
 

 

Fund 301 – Equipment Debt Service 
 

Accounts for the accumulated resources from tax levy to pay the interest and principal payments on a 

Certificate of Indebtedness.  In the past, a Certificate of Indebtedness was issued to purchase selected capital 

equipment.  

 

Budget Detail 

 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

310200 Delinquent Taxes                     52                      -                        -   

Total Revenues                     52                      -                        -   

Expenditures

Debt Service

Total Expenditures -                      -                      -                      

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 52                   -                      -                      



154 

 

 

 

Fund 315 – 2016B GO Bonds 
 

The Public Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A were issued in December of 2006 in the original amount of 

$9,630,000, carry a net interest rate of 4.04% and mature in 2027.  The bonds were used to refinance the Public 

Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1998 (Police/Fire Building) and to construct an administrative services addition 

to the public safety facility. In 2016, the bonds in were refunded. The first payment on the new 2016B GO 

Bonds was in February 2017. The new true interest rate is 1.353%.  This will create for the City future value 

savings in the amount of $999,957. The debt is being paid by City sales tax collections.    

 

Budget Detail 
 

 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

392010 Transfer In          698,807          698,807          698,807 

Total Revenues          698,807          698,807          698,807 

Expenditures

Debt Service

601 Bond Principal 530,000         545,000         560,000         

611 Bond Interest 94,500           78,375           61,800           

620 Fiscal Agent Fees 1,855             1,400             1,400             

Total Expenditures 626,355         624,775         623,200         

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 72,452           74,032           75,607           



155 

 

 

 

Fund 318 – 2016A GO Bonds  
 

The General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2009A, were issued in December of 2009 in the original 

amount of $5,515,000, carry a net interest rate of 3.48% and mature in 2030.  The bonds were used for 

acquisition of the existing public works facility, construction of a new salt storage building, sewer 

improvements, and to refund the General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2003A (Fund 312), financing 

Public improvements, #305 Water project, #413,406,408,415,421 and 429 sewer projects. The debt is being 

repaid by special assessments, property tax levy, city sales taxes, water fund, and sewer fund. These bonds 

were refunded and are now Series 2016A.  

 

Budget Detail 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

310100 Current Year Taxes             78,423             74,871             79,015 

310200 Delinquent Taxes                  836                        -                        - 

361100 Principal - Current             89,181             89,000          100,000 

361110 Principal - Delinquent                  238                        -                        - 

361120 Principal-Prepaid               3,463                        -                        - 

361200 Interest - Current             27,302                        -                        - 

361210 Interest - Delinquent                  990                        -                        - 

361300 Penalty/Interest                  553                        -                        - 

392010 Transfers In          217,723          215,923          216,623 

Total Revenues          418,709          379,794          395,638 

Expenditures

Debt Service

601 Bond Principal 375,000         380,000         385,000         

611 Bond Interest 47,650           40,100           32,450           

620 Fiscal Agent Fees 2,855             1,400             1,400             

Total Expenditures 425,505         421,500         418,850         

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (6,796)            (41,706)          (23,212)          



156 

 

 

 

Fund 320 – 2012A GO Bonds  
 

The General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2012A issued in July of 2012 in the amount of $2,500,000, 

carry a net interest rate of 1.93% and mature in 2026.  The bonds were used to refund the General Obligation 

Bonds, Series 2003B (Fund 313) on August 1, 2012 and the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005A (Fund 314) 

on February 1, 2013.  The debt is being repaid by special assessments and City sales taxes. 

 

Budget Detail 

 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

361100 Principal - Current             30,033             35,000             35,000 

361120 Principal - Prepaid               4,008                        -                        - 

361200 Interest - Current               9,760                        -                        - 

361300 Penalties & Interest                   (51)                        -                        - 

392010 Transfer In          197,539          197,539          197,539 

Total Revenues          241,289          232,539          232,539 

Expenditures

Debt Service

601 Bond Principal 165,000         170,000         175,000         

611 Bond Interest 21,204           17,935           14,311           

620 Fiscal Agent Fees 855                 1,400             1,400             

Total Expenditures 187,059         189,335         190,711         

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 54,230           43,204           41,828           



157 

 

 

 

Fund 321 – 2012B GO Bonds 
 

The General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2012B were issued in September of 2012 in the amount of 

$3,155,000, net interest cost of 2.2436% and mature in 2033.  The bonds were used to finance Projects; #442 

Sewer, #314 Miller Trunk Water and #432 Lavaque Sewers. A transfer of $25,000 from the Community Fund 

#231 was used to partially cover costs on project #314.  The debt will be repaid by special assessments and city 

sales tax.  Properties benefiting from project #432 will have sewer availabilities. When necessary transfers will 

be made from the special assessment deficiency fund. In 2021 this bond issue was refunded as part of the 

2021A bonds. 

 

Budget Detail 

 

  

2021 

ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

361100 Principal - Current 54,024        -                  -                

361200 Interest - Current (1,688)         -                  -                

361300 Penalties & Interest 39                -                  -                

393100 Bond Issuance 2,238,540   

Total Revenues 2,290,915   -                  -                

Expenditures

Debt Service

601 Bond Principal 2,320,000   -                  -                

611 Bond Interest 41,707        -                  -                

620 Fiscal Agent Fees 50,088        -                  -                

720 Transfer Out 1,209,321   

Total Expenditures 3,621,116   -                  -                

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,330,201) -                  -                



158 

 

 

 

Fund 322 – 2014A GO Bonds 
 

These bonds were issued in December 2014 in the amount of $2,170,000, carrying interest rate of 2.207% to 

refund Series 2007A and to crossover refund 2007B for an interest cost savings.  The debt is being paid by 

special assessments, sales tax, and the water and sewer funds. 

 

Budget Detail 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

361100 Principal - Current 39,622                 46,000                 46,000       

361110 Principal - Delinquent 883                      -                       -              

361120 Principal - Prepaid 10,187                 -                       -              

361200 Interest - Current 18,475                 -                       -              

361210 Interest - Delinquent 544                      -                       -              

361300 Penalties & Interest 199                      -                       -              

392010 Transfers In 231,200              230,900              80,450       

Total Revenues 301,110              276,900              126,450     

Expenditures

Debt Service

601 Bond Principal 235,000 120,000 125,000

611 Bond Interest 27,850 23,700 20,025

620 Fiscal Agent Fees 855 1,400 1,400

Total Expenditures 263,705 145,100 146,425

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 37,405 131,800 (19,975)



159 

 

 

 

Fund 323 – 2018A GO Bonds – Fire Halls #2 & #3 
 

The General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2018A were issued in April of 2018 in the amount of 

$2,035,000, true interest cost of 3.2% and mature in 2039.  The bonds were used to construct new Fire hall #2 

and #3.  The bonds will be repaid with property taxes. 

 

Budget Detail 

 

 

  

2021 

ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

310100 Current Year Taxes 143,246       135,725       138,325       

310200 Delinquent Taxes 1,281            -                -                

Total Revenues 144,527       135,725       138,325       

Expenditures

Debt Service

601 Bond Principal 75,000         80,000         80,000         

611 Bond Interest 59,250         56,925         54,525         

620 Fiscal Agent Fees 855               1,400            1,400           

Total Expenditures 135,105       138,325       135,925       

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 9,422            (2,600)          2,400           



160 

 

 

 

Fund 324 – 2018B GO Bonds – Wellness Center & Rose Rd Softball Fields 
 

The General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2018B were issued in August of 2018 in the amount of 

$7,715,000, true interest cost of 3.14% and mature in 2039.  The bonds were used to construct the Essentia 

Wellness Center and redo the Rose Road Softball complex.  The Rose Road Softball complex component of 

bonds will be repaid with property taxes.  The Essentia Wellness Center portion of the bonds will be paid with 

sales tax. 

 

Budget Detail 

 
  

2021 

ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

310100 Current Year Taxes 49,046         46,312         50,312         

310200 Delinquent Taxes 454               -                -                

392010 Transfers In 517,611       522,231       520,971       

Total Revenues 567,111       568,543       571,283       

Expenditures

Debt Service

601 Bond Principal 280,000       290,000       305,000       

611 Bond Interest 255,875       244,475       232,575       

620 Fiscal Agent Fees 855               1,400            1,400            

Total Expenditures 536,730       535,875       538,975       

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 30,381 32,668 32,308



161 

 

 

 

Fund 325 – 2019A GO Bonds – Wellness Center 
 

The General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2019A were issued in January of 2019 in the amount of 

$8,845,000.  The bonds were used to construct the Essentia Wellness Center.  The bonds will be paid with sales 

tax. 

 

Budget Detail 

 
  

2021 

ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

392010 Transfers In 647,200 651,400 647,620

Total Revenues 647,200 651,400 647,620

Expenditures

Debt Service

601 Bond Principal 305,000       320,000       340,000      

611 Bond Interest 304,006       288,381       273,581      

620 Fiscal Agent Fees 855               1,400            1,400           

Total Expenditures 609,861       609,781       614,981      

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 37,339 41,619 32,639



162 

 

 

 

Fund 326 – 2020A GO Bonds – Road Improvements and Refinance 2010A 
 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A - These bonds were issued in April of 2020 in the amount of 
$3,585,000, true interest rate of 1.74% and mature in 2036. The bonds were used to refinance the 2010A bonds 
and to make 2020 Road Improvements.  Revenue sources: Levy, Special assessments, sales tax and transfers 
from water, sewer, and special deficiency funds 
 

 

Budget Detail 

 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

310100 Current Year Taxes             59,069             58,693             60,842 

361100 Principal-Current             88,097             58,000             58,000 

361110 Principal - Delinquent               4,606                      -                        -   

361120 Principal - Prepaid             53,157                      -                        -   

361200 Interest - Current             42,634                      -                        -   

361210 Interest-Delinquent               1,859                      -                        -   

361300 Penalties & Interest               1,952                      -                        -   

362100 Investment Interest                       1                      -                        -   

362160 Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investments                       2                      -                        -   

392010 Transfers in          309,705          297,945          297,000 

Total Revenues          561,082          414,638          415,842 

Expenditures

Debt Service

303 Banking Fees 10                   -                  -                  

601 Bond Principal 365,000         500,000         495,000         

611 Bond Interest 112,944         77,350           62,425           

620 Fiscal Agent Fees 855                 1,400             1,400             

Total Expenditures 478,809         578,750         558,825         

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 82,273           (164,112)       (142,983)       



163 

 

 

 

Fund 327 – 2020B GO Bonds – Section 24 Sewer Trunkline 
 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020B - These bonds were issued in April of 2020 in the amount of 
$3,915,000, true interest rate of 1.82% and mature in 2037. The bonds were used to construct the Section 24 
Sewer Trunk line. Revenue source:  Sales tax 
 

 

Budget Detail 

 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

392010 Transfers in          294,997          294,263          293,370 

Total Revenues          294,997          294,263          293,370 

Expenditures

Debt Service

601 Bond Principal 205,000         190,000         195,000         

611 Bond Interest 94,025           88,100           82,325           

620 Fiscal Agent Fees 855                 1,400             1,400             

Total Expenditures 299,880         279,500         278,725         

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (4,883)            14,763           14,645           



164 

 

 

 

Fund 328 – 2021A GO Bonds - Road Improvements and Refinance 2012B 
 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021A - These bonds were issued in April of 2021 in the amount of 

$3,860,000, carry a true interest cost of 1.21% and mature in 2037. The bonds will be used to finance the 2021 

Road Improvement Plan and to current refund the City’s outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012B 

for an interest cost saving. (The General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2012B were issued in 

September of 2012 in the amount of $3,155,000.)  Revenue sources: Property Tax, Special Assessments, Sales 

Tax, and transfers from Water, Sewer, and special deficiency funds 

 

Budget Detail 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

310100 Current Year Taxes                      -               79,478             77,778 

361100 Principal - Current               4,771             85,000             84,000 

361110 Principal - Delinquent               1,001                      -                        -   

361120 Principal - Prepaid          175,258                      -                        -   

361200 Interest - Current             44,228                      -                        -   

361210 Interest - Delinquent               2,077                      -                        -   

361300 Penalties & Interest                  605                      -                        -   

392010 Transfers in       1,665,893             43,230             14,340 

Total Revenues       1,893,833          207,708          176,118 

Expenditures

Debt Service

601 Bond Principal -                      150,000         245,000         

611 Bond Interest -                      82,003           62,103           

620 Fiscal Agent Fees -                      1,400             1,400             

Total Expenditures -                      233,403         308,503         

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 1,893,833     (25,695)          (132,385)       



165 

 

 

 

Fund 350 - Special Assessment Deficiency Fund 
 

Accounts for the accumulated resources to ensure debt service payments of bonds in cases where special 

assessments have been deferred or collections are insufficient. 

Transfers Out for 2023 are: 

Fund 326 (2020A GO) - $27,806 

 

Budget Detail 

 

 

  

2021 

ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

361100 Principal - Current 16,457       15,000       14,000        

361200 Interest - Current 1,898         -              -              

361300 Penalties & Interest (9)                -              -              

362100 Investment Interest 1,508         -              -              

362160 Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investments (2,572)        -              -              

Total Revenues 17,282       15,000       14,000        

Expenditures

415300 Contracted Services 3,506 2,200 2,200

471000 Transfer Out 27,806 27,806 27,806

Total Expenditures 31,312 30,006 30,006

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (14,030) (15,006) (16,006)



166 

 

 

 

Capital Projects Funds 
 

Fund 401 – General Capital Projects 
 

The General Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, 

committed, or assigned to expenditures for general capital equipment. 

 

Budget Detail 

 
  

2021 

ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

392010 Transfers In 243,000       410,000       648,500    

393300 Inception of Capital Lease 343,862       -                -             

Total Revenues 586,862       410,000       648,500    

Expenditures

540 Office Equip/Furnishing -                25,000         25,000      

542 Light Equipment -                -                30,000      

543 Heavy Equipment 404,832       283,470       320,720    

544 Motor Vehicles -                -                127,000    

580 Other Equipment -                -                -             

720 Transfer Out 100,125       -                -             

Total Expenditures 504,957       308,470       502,720    

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 81,905         101,530 145,780



167 

 

 

 

Enterprise Funds 
 

In 2018, the City switched to a tiered system for billing water rates, broken down by Residential, Multi-Family, 

Commercial, and Irrigation.  

For those residential sewer customers who do not have water service, they are charged a flat rate because the 

City does not measure the amount of sewage they use. 

There is a slight increase in water, sewer, and stormwater rates in 2023. 

 

Fund 601 - Water Enterprise Fund 
 

This fund accounts for the activity of providing water services to the public.  The Hermantown Utility 

Department is responsible for the distribution of treated water.  The City purchases all drinkable water from 

the City of Duluth.   

 

Objectives 

 To consider and make recommendations to the City Council with respect to improvements to be 

constructed and financed pursuant to Chapter 429 of the Minnesota Statutes 

 To administer the public utilities provided by the City of Hermantown 

 To perform such other functions as made by resolution of the City Council delegated to it 

 Provide an adequate supply of water.  Current city water storage includes a 150,000-gallon elevated 

storage tank at Ugstad Road/Arrowhead Road and a 600,000-gallon elevated storage tank at Ugstad 

Road/Hwy 53.  These two tanks have sufficient capacity to provide for two days of average daily 

demand if the city should lose its water supply 

 The city's current water system also includes 64.75 miles of water mains and 545 hydrants for fire 

control 

 The Public Works Director is responsible for leading the maintenance of city water mains 

  



168 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

                              Water Rates – Per 1,000 Gallons

2022 2023 Usage in Gallons - Tier Breaks

Residential Tier 1 8.48 8.82 Up to 2500 Gallons

Tier 2 9.76 10.15 Between 2500 – 4500 Gallons

Tier 3 10.73 11.16 Over 4500 Gallons

Multi-Family Tier 1 9.76 10.16 All Usage

Tier 2 9.76 10.16 All Usage

Tier 3 9.76 10.16 All Usage

Commercial Tier 1 8.77 9.12 Up to 20,000 Gallons

Tier 2 9.23 9.59 Between 20,000 – 50,0000 Gallons

Tier 3 10.13 10.54 Over 50,000 Gallons

Irrigation Tier 1 10.73 11.16 All Usage

Tier 2 10.73 11.16 All Usage

Tier 3 10.73 11.16 All Usage

Meter Size Monthly Service Charge

2022 2023

5/8"-1" 9.36 9.73

1 1/4" 14.04 14.60

1 1/2" 14.04 14.60

2" 35.10 36.50

3" 40.94 42.58

4" 52.64 54.75

6" 76.03 79.01



169 

 

 

 

Authorized Personnel 

The Water Enterprise and Sewer Enterprise fund includes authorized personnel as follows; Utility 

Billing Clerk, Infrastructure Manager, and Utility Workers. 

The wages for these employees are split between the Water, Sewer, and Storm Water Funds 

 

 

Budget Summary         

 

 

Budget Commentary 

As the City acquires more water infrastructure, the depreciation expense will increase. Transfers out are 
applied to debt payments in the debt service fund. The 2023 Transfers Out for debt total $102,988.  

The following assets are in the water budget as a Transfer Out to the General Capital Equipment Fund: 

2023 One Ton Dirt Service Truck - $31,750 (Part paid by Sewer and General Fund) 

There is an increase in 2023 in total expenditures due to increased water purchases and slightly more capital 

equipment needed. 

  

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

101-151 Salaries/Wages          455,252          429,380 -5.7%

200-499 Supplies/Services/Maintenance & Depreciation       1,208,490       1,466,839 21.4%

500-599 Capital Outlay               5,000                      -   -100.0%

720 Transfer Out          109,249          134,738 23.3%

Total Expenditures       1,777,991       2,030,957 14.2%



170 

 

 

 

Budget Detail  

 

 

  

2021 Actual

2022   

Original 

Budget

2023 

Approved 

Budget

Revenues

341070 Assessment Search 7,855             6,000             6,200             

361300 Penalty/Interest 9                     -                  -                  

362100 Investment Interest 26,432           10,000           10,000           

362150 Interest Income/City Contracts 17                   -                  -                  

362160 Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investments (43,492)          -                  -                  

362250 City Property Lease 51,031           53,018           54,536           

362415 Other Insurance Recoveries Disability/Workers Comp 855                 -                  -                  

362990 Miscellaneous Revenue 4,316             15,000           6,000             

371400 Metered Water Sales 1,706,759     1,435,200     1,622,400     

371450 Metered Truck Fil l  Station 4,800             1,000             4,400             

371500 Water Hookups 21,500           25,000           22,000           

371550 Water Service Line -                  -                  -                  

371710 Service Charge 266,389         274,560         290,784         

371720 Front Foot Water Cash 1,574             4,000             500                 

379999 Late Fee 10,055           7,000             7,000             

391010 Sale of General Fixed Assets 5,298             -                  -                  

392010 Transfers In 207,375         2,000             6,000             

394000 Contributed Capital 498,957         -                  -                  

Total Revenue 2,769,730     1,832,778     2,029,820     



171 

 

 

 

 

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Expenditures

494300 Water Distribution

Salaries & Wages

101 Full Time Employees - Regular 152,988         169,097         166,463         

102 Full-Time Employees - Overtime 16,773           12,687           12,020           

103 Part-Time Employees - Regular 493                 -                      -                      

111 Severance Pay -                      19,387           -                      

121 PERA Contributions - Coordinated 79,359           13,634           13,386           

128 Social Security 9,568             12,473           11,066           

129 Medicare 2,238             2,917             2,588             

131 Health Insurance 67,396           76,877           78,100           

132 Health Care Savings Plan 337                 -                      -                      

133 Life Insurance 199                 205                 205                 

134 Disability Insurance 749                 904                 932                 

136 MSRS 156                 1,307             390                 

151 Workers Compensation 7,185             7,360             7,381             

Supplies/Services & Maintenance

212 Motor Fuels 4,785             3,000             4,500             

216 Uniforms 483                 500                 500                 

219 Other Operating Equipment -                      -                  15,500           

221 General Supplies 4,988             5,500             5,500             

228 Utility System Maint 26,495           39,000           34,000           

314 Computer 2,520             3,750             3,750             

315 School & Conference 2,903             2,500             2,500             

317 Personnel Testing Physical 109                 -                  -                  

319 Contracted Services 6,609             30,000           22,000           

325 Postage 38                   -                  -                  

331 Travel Expense 401                 750                 750                 

351 Legal Notices Publishing 250                 250                 

361 General Liability Insurance 6,422             5,843             4,706             

382 Water Purchases 940,120         740,000         960,000         

404 Equipment Maintenance 3,935             4,000             4,000             

406 Vehicle Maintenance 1,092             2,000             2,000             

413 Equipment Rental 367                 7,500             7,500             

417 Uniform Rental -                      500                 500                 

451 Dues & Subscriptions 963                 700                 700                 

460 Permits & Licenses 319                 -                  -                  

470 Booster Pump Repairs 221                 250                 250                 

471 Water Line Repairs 77,699           40,000           40,000           

472 Hydrant Repairs 13,360           14,500           15,000           

499 Miscellaneous -                      -                  -                  

Capital Outlay

540 Office Equipment/Furnishings -                  -                  

544 Motor Vehicles -                      -                  -                  

580 Other Equipment 149,426         5,000             -                  

Sub-total 1,580,696     1,222,391     1,416,437     



172 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET
Expenditures

494400 Water Administration & General
Salaries & Wages

101 Full-Time Employees-Regular 72,877           90,116       90,273           
102 Full-Time Employees-Overtime 369                574             565                
111 Severance Pay 245                -                  -                      
121 PERA Contributions-Coordinated 32,602           6,759         6,770             
128 Social Security 4,527             5,587         5,597             
129 Medicare 1,059             1,307         1,309             
131 Health Insurance 23,628           32,643       30,935           
132 Health Care Savings Plan 307                -                  -                      
133 Life Insurance 134                170             155                
134 Disability Insurance 283                395             409                
135 Unemployment Insurance 3,332             -                      
136 MSRS 208                728             702                
151 Workers Compensation 120                125             134                

Supplies /Services/ Maintenance & Depreciation
201 Office Supplies 211                50               200                
202 Printing Supplies 316                500             250                
209 Computer Supplies -                  -                      
221 General Supplies 1,491             -                      
301 Audit/Account Services 4,758             6,750         6,750             
302 Assessors Fees -                  -                      
303 Banking Fees 6,456             7,200         12,000           
305 Engineer Fees 7,563             3,000         10,000           
308 Legal Fees 4,354             4,000         4,000             
314 Computer/Software Fees 3,564             3,700         3,700             
315 School & Conference 250                1,000         1,000             
319 Contracted Services 6,922             16,120       10,000           
321 Telephone 2,499             2,510         5,000             
322 Internet 555                400             460                
323 Gopher One Call Locates 1,292             1,200         1,100             
325 Postage 452                622             450                
331 Travel Expense 1,459             1,480         1,300             
351 Legal Notices Publishing 635                600             1,800             
361 General Liability Insurance 6,815             9,537         12,878           
381 Electricity 9,162             7,000         8,500             
383 Heating Gas 2,229             3,000         4,900             
405 Computer Maintenance 20,233           19,278       22,595           
420 Depreciation Expense 236,556        220,000     236,000        
434 Employee Recognition Prog 74                   -                      
451 Dues & Subscriptions 50                   -                  50                   
499 Permits & Licenses 128                
720 Transfer Out 91,838           109,249     134,738        

Total Expenditures 2,130,249     1,777,991 2,030,957     

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 639,481        54,787       (1,137)            



173 

 

 

 

Fund 602 - Sewer Enterprise Fund 
 

Sewer fund accounts for the activity of providing sewer disposal services to the public. The Hermantown Utility 

Department is responsible for the collection of sanitary sewer waste.  The Western Lake Superior Sanitary 

District purifies sanitary sewer waste.   

 

Objectives 

• Provide adequate sanitary sewer operations. The city's sewer system consists of 70.85 miles 

of sewer mains but continues to expand based upon neighborhood petitions requesting an 

extension of services. 

• The Public Works Director is responsible for leading the maintenance of city sewer mains. 

 

 
 

 

Authorized Personnel 

The Water Enterprise and Sewer Enterprise fund includes authorized personnel as follows; Utility 
Billing Clerk, Infrastructure Manager, and Utility Workers. The wages for these employees are split 
between the Water, Sewer, and Storm Water Funds. 

 

 

 

Budget Summary  

 

2022 2023 Notes

Residential 10.40 10.66
Multi-Family 10.40 10.66
Commercial 10.40 10.66
Flat Rate 31.21 38.07
Flat Rate 46.80 47.97
Service Charge 3.32 3.40 Monthly

Sewer Rates - Per 1,000 Gallons

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

PERCENT 

CHANGE

101-151 Salaries/Wages          371,814          352,687 -5.1%

201-499 Supplies/Services/Maintenance & Depreciation       1,431,589       1,460,616 2.0%

540-590 Capital Outlay          138,450          205,000 48.1%

720 Transfer Out             73,760             89,274 21.0%

Total Expenditures       2,015,613       2,107,577 4.6%



174 

 

 

 

Budget Commentary 

Transfers out are applied to debt payments in the debt service fund. The 2023 Transfers Out for debt total 
$57,524 

Also included in the sewer budget are transfers to the General Capital Equipment Fund for a percentage of the 
following equipment. 2023 One Ton Truck - $31,750 (Part paid by Water and General Fund) 

Finally, in the sewer budget are the following assets:  

Retro Fit Lift Station - $40,000 

Sewer improvements to Richard and Lindgren roads - $165,000 

 

Budget Detail 

 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

341070 Assessment Search 7,540             5,500             5,500             

361300 Penalties & Interest 61                   -                  -                  

362100 Investment Interest 28,696           5,000             5,000             

362150 Interest Income/City Contracts 1,942             1,600             1,600             

362160 Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investments (46,936)          -                  -                  

362415 Other Insurance Recoveries 641                 -                  -                  

371710 Service Charge 84,247           85,485           89,421           

372400 Sewer Usage 1,611,148     1,528,000     1,690,200     

372500 Sewer Hookups 31,100           31,000           32,000           

372710 Sewer Permits 5,020             3,200             3,500             

372715 Sewer Capacity Availability Fee 6,881             800                 700                 

379999 Late Fee 9,063             5,200             7,000             

391010 Sale of General Fixed Assets 3,369             -                  -                  

394000 Contributed Capital 478,274         -                  -                  

Total Revenue 2,221,046     1,665,785     1,834,921     



175 

 

 

 
 

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Expenditures

494500 Sewer Maintenance

Salaries & Wages

101 Full-Time Employees - Regular 107,275         124,923         123,086         

102 Full-Time Employees - Overtime 11,050           9,227             8,742             

103 Part-Time Employees - Regular 121                 -                      -                      

111 Severance Pay -                      14,100           -                      

121 PERA Contributions - Coordinated 50,061           10,061           9,887             

128 Social Security 6,471             9,192             8,173             

129 Medicare 1,513             2,150             1,911             

131 Health Insurance 51,884           56,482           57,371           

132 Health Care Savings Plan 245                 -                      -                      

133 Life Insurance 127                 154                 154                 

134 Disability Insurance 509                 665                 686                 

136 MSRS 79                   962                 312                 

151 Workers Compensation 5,366             5,494             5,516             

Supplies/Services  & Maintenance

212 Motor Fuels 3,190             1,500             1,500             

216 Uniforms 483                 500                 500                 

219 Other Operating Equipment -                      -                      15,000           

221 General Supplies 3,155             2,500             -                      

228 Utility System Maint 3,763             2,500             5,000             

229 Lift Station Maintenance 8,765             10,000           10,000           

305 Engineer -                      -                      -                      

308 Legal -                      -                      -                      

310 Recording/Fil ing Fees -                      -                      -                      

314 Computer 120                 5,650             5,650             

315 School & Conference 2,504             1,000             1,000             

317 Personnel Testing Physicals 109                 450                 450                 

319 Contracted Services 17,755           20,000           20,000           

325 Postage 40                   -                      40                   

331 Travel Expense 369                 250                 250                 

351 Legal Notices Publish -                      -                      -                      

361 General Liability Insurance 2,430             1,890             2,403             

385 Sewer Charges 564,176         619,000         669,000         

403 Road Maintenance -                      5,000             15,000           

404 Equipment Maintenance 6,020             5,500             5,500             

406 Vehicle Maintenance 54                   2,500             2,500             

413 Equipment Rental 467                 3,500             3,500             

451 Dues & Subscriptions 240                 150                 150                 

460 Permits & Licenses 298                 250                 250                 

475 Sewer line Repairs 9,148             45,000           15,000           

476 Lift Station Repairs 15,983           5,000             12,500           

477 I & I Maintenance 13,444           15,000           15,000           

478 Sewer Cleaning 29,916           40,000           40,000           

499 Miscellaneous -                      7,500             -                      

Capital Outlay

540 Office Equip/Furnishings -                      -                      -                      

510 Land Acquisition -                      -                      -                      

580 Other Equipment 24,267           47,500           -                      

590 Pumping Plant & Lift Stations 42,908           40,000           40,000           

Sub-total 984,305         1,115,550     1,096,031     



176 

 

 

 

 

494900

Expenditures                                                      

Sewer Administration & General 2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Salaries & Wages

101 Full-Time Employees-Regular 61,996           90,116           90,273           

102 Full-Time Employees-Overtime 277                 574                 565                 

111 Severance Pay 140                 -                      -                      

121 PERA Contributions-Coordinated 23,704           6,759             6,770             

128 Social Security 3,517             5,587             5,597             

129 Medicare 823                 1,307             1,309             

131 Health Insurance 17,706           32,643           30,935           

132 Health Care Savings Plan 153                 -                      -                      

133 Life Insurance 108                 170                 155                 

134 Disability Insurance 229                 395                 409                 

135 Unemployment Insurance 3,332             -                      -                      

136 MSRS 182                 728                 702                 

151 Workers Compensation 113                 125                 134                 

Supplies/Services/Maintenance & Depreciation

201 Office Supplies 211                 25                   200                 

202 Printing Supplies 316                 400                 300                 

209 Computer Equipment -                      -                      -                      

221 General Supplies 1,491             -                      -                      

301 Audit/Account Services 4,758             6,750             6,750             

303 Banking Fees 6,454             7,200             12,000           

305 Engineer Fees 2,568             2,000             2,500             

308 Legal Fees 5,671             2,000             2,000             

314 Computer/Software Fees 3,493             3,700             3,000             

315 School & Conference -                      1,000             1,000             

319 Contracted Services 6,944             12,620           10,000           

321 Telephone 2,364             2,510             5,000             

322 Internet 776                 400                 850                 

323 Gopher One Call Locates 861                 1,200             900                 

325 Postage 264                 622                 450                 

331 Travel Expense 759                 960                 1,300             

351 Legal Notices Publishing 248                 -                      300                 

361 General Liability 7,136             9,537             12,878           

381 Electricity 6,790             8,000             8,500             

383 Heating Gas 1,393             2,000             4,900             

405 Computer Maintenance 20,232           19,278           22,595           

420 Depreciation Expense 515,627         556,747         525,000         

432 Bad Debts -                      -                      

434 Employee Recognition Program 74                   -                      

451 Dues & Subscriptions 50                   -                      -                      

460 Permits & Licenses -                      -                      

720 Transfer Out 67,944           56,260           57,524           

495000 Other Financing Uses

720 Transfer Out 113,545         17,500           31,750           

432500 Sewer Improvements

550 Street Improvements -                      50,950           165,000         

Total Expenditures 1,866,554     2,015,613     2,107,577     

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 354,492         (349,828)       (272,656)       



177 

 

 

 

Fund 603 – Storm Water Fund 
 

This fund accounts for the activity of managing and maintaining our storm water system. The City has a state 

permit under the MS4 (Municipal separate storm sewer system) which includes roads with drainage systems, 

municipal streets, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, or storm drains.  It is the City’s 

responsibility under this permit to monitor and maintain these elements to ensure that they are functioning 

properly and treating and capturing storm water.  The Storm water Utility Fee provides funds for this system.   

  

Objectives 

• Funds will be used to undertake new infrastructure improvements as well as to maintain the existing storm 
water system. In 2023 in addition to maintaining the existing storm water system the City plans on 
using storm water fees for the following. 
o Pay for storm water improvements while implementing the City’s Road Improvement plan  

• The Public Works Director is responsible for leading the maintenance of City owned storm water systems. 

• The Community Development Director is responsible for the inspection of private systems and the 
coordination with property owners on the upkeep of their systems. 

 

Budget Commentary 

In 2023 there is a rate increase from $7 to $8 per ERU per month. 

Transfers out are applied to debt payments in the debt service funds. The 2023 Transfers Out for debt total 
$21,000.  

Also included in the Storm Water budget are the following capital items: 

Lindahl Road Bridge = $175,000 

Hermantown Road Bridge = $104,000 (Part of project) 

Storm Water Improvements to Richard and Lindgren roads = $181,000 

  



178 

 

 

 

Budget Detail  

 
  

2021 

ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

322120 SWPP & Stormwater Mgmt. Fees 3,546       -                500            

361300 Penalties & Interest 72             -                -                  

362100 Investment Interest 1,837       -                -                  

362160 Gain(Loss) on Sale of Investment (2,661)      -                -                  

362415 Other Insurance Recoveries 191           -                -                  

372750 Stormwater Fee 413,492   410,670   451,000    

379999 Late Fee 4,552       1,500       3,000         

Total Revenues 421,029   412,170   454,500    

Expenditures

441100 Storm Water

Salaries & Wages

101 Full-Time Employees-Regular 76,562     64,487     67,129       

102 Full-Time Employees-Overtime 6,207       2,108       2,129         

103 Part-Time Employees-Regular 250           -                -                  

111 Severance Pay 140           1,762       -                  

121 PERA Contributions-Coordinated 30,496     4,974       5,173         

128 Social Security 5,026       4,221       4,276         

129 Medicare 1,188       987           1,000         

131 Health Insurance 35,001     25,229     25,436       

132 HCSP 122           -                -                  

133 Life Insurance 147           104           103            

134 Disability Insurance 341           309           335            

136 MSRS 233           514           390            

151 Workers Compensation 1,627       1,662       1,727         

*continued 



179 

 

 

 

 

  

Supplies/Services/Maintenance/Capital

2021 

ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

221 General Supplies 686           -                100            

302 Assessors Fees -                  

305 Engineer Fees 6,068       10,000     20,000       

308 Legal Fees 454           1,500       1,500         

310 Recording/Filing Fees 158           500           500            

314 Computer/Software Fees 3,118       1,500       1,500         

319 Contracted Services 15,621     30,000     30,000       

325 Postage -                500           500            

331 Travel Expenses 716           300           300            

351 Legal Notices Publishing -                -                -                  

403 Road Maintenance 36,808     11,000     11,000       

404 Equipment Maintenance 538           -                -                  

405 Computer Maintenance -                -                -                  

413 Equipment Rental 18,046     20,000     20,000       

420 Depreciation Expense 10,835     -                -                  

451 Dues & Subscriptions 1,740       2,000       2,000         

530 Improvements Other than Buildings -                200,000   279,000    

550 Street Improvements -                60,000     181,000    

580 Other Equipment -                -                -                  

720 Transfer Out 31,189     21,473     21,000       

471000 Debt Service

303 Banking Fees 2               -            -             

495000 Transfer Out

720 Transfer Out 80,076     1,496       -             

Total Expenditures 363,395   466,626   676,098    

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 57,634     (54,456) (221,598)



180 

 

 

 

Fund 605 - Street Lighting & Traffic Signalization Fund 
 

Street Lighting Fund was created to account for the activity of lighting and signalizing public streets.  The City is 

responsible for the expenditures to maintain the traffic signals to control traffic flow at the following 

intersections: Cirrus Drive & Hwy 53, Ugstad & 53, Lavaque & 53, Arrowhead & 53, Loberg Ave & 53, Haines Rd 

& Hermantown Road, Maple Grove & Loberg, and Maple Grove & Stebner.  A monthly franchise fee is charged 

through MN Power to residents at a rate of $2 per month. 

Other revenue includes a portion of the gas franchise fees paid by gas customers of MN Energy Resources. 

Forty percent of the gas franchise fee goes to the General Fund while the remaining sixty percent is budgeted in 

the Street Lighting & Traffic Signalization Fund. 

Also include in the franchise fees is Minnesota Power. 

 

Budget Detail 

 

  

2021 ACTUAL

2022 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET

2023 

APPROVED 

BUDGET

Revenues

318100 Franchise Fees          139,542          137,000          139,000 

362100 Investment Interest               3,440               1,000               1,000 

362120 Interest - Interfund             22,000             22,000             22,000 

362160 Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investments             (5,577)                        -                        - 

Total Revenues          159,405          160,000          162,000 

Expenditures

431160 Street Lighting 

227 Street Lights & Signs               5,282               5,000               5,000 

381 Electricity             29,964             28,000             38,000 

550 Street Improvements                        -             96,000                        - 

Total Expenditures 35,246           129,000         43,000           

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 124,159         31,000           119,000         



181 

 

 

 

Glossary 
 

Accrual Basis – The method of accounting under which revenues are recorded when they are earned (whether 

or not cash is received at that time) and expenditures are recorded when goods and services are received 

(whether cash disbursements are made at that time or not). 

Activity – A cost center for recording charges for services delivered or functions performed.  Each activity has 

an assigned manager who is responsible for planning and conducting the various approved objectives or 

workloads. 

Ad Valorem – In proportion to value.  A basis for levying taxes upon property. 

Adopted Budget – The financial plan of revenues and expenditures for a fiscal year as adopted by the City 

Council. 

Appropriation – An authorization made by the legislative body of a government that permits officials to incur 

obligations against and to make expenditures of governmental resources.  Appropriations are usually made for 

fixed amounts and are typically granted for a one-year period. 

Assessment – (1) The process of making the official valuation of property for taxation. (2) The valuation placed 

upon property as a result of this process. 

Assets – Property owned by a government that has monetary value. 

Balanced Budget – In a balanced budget: expenditures are exactly offset by an equal amount of resources 

including revenues and available carryover fund balances. 

Bond – A written promise to pay (debt) a specified sum of money (called principal or face value) at a specified 

future date (called the maturity date(s)) along with periodic interest paid at a specified percentage of the 

principal (interest rate).  Bonds are typically used for long-term debt. 

Bonded Indebtedness – Outstanding debt by issues of bonds, which is paid by ad valorem or other revenue. 

Budget – A plan of financial operation embodying an estimate of proposed expenditures for a given period and 

the proposed means of financing them. 

Budget Calendar – The schedule of key dates which a government follows in the preparation and adoption of 

the budget. 

Budget Message – A general discussion of the proposed budget presented in writing as a part of or supplement 

to the budget document.  The budget message explains principal budget issues against the background of 

financial experience in recent years and presents recommendations made by the City Administrator. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – A five-year plan for proposed capital improvements.  Also called Capital 

Improvement Plan.   

Capital Outlay – Purchases of fixed assets that have a value of $20,000 or more and a useful life of more than 

two years. 

Certified Levy – Total tax levy of a jurisdiction, which is certified to the County Auditor. 

City Council – The elected body of members making up the legislative arm of local government in Hermantown. 

Debt Limit – The maximum of gross or net debt, which is legally permitted. 



182 

 

 

 

Distinguished Budget Presentation Awards Program - A voluntary awards program administered by the 

Government Finance Officers Association to encourage government to prepare effective budget documents. 

Delinquent Taxes – Taxes that remain unpaid on and after the date on which a penalty for non-payment is 

attached. 

Department – Basic organizational unit of City government responsible for carrying out related functions. 

Division – An organizational unit within a department for purposes of administration and cost accounting. 

Drug Abuse Resistance Education (DARE) – The DARE program gives kids the life skills they need to avoid 

involvement with drugs, gangs, and violence.  The City has a DARE fund and one officer working at the 

Hermantown High School for DARE awareness. 

Enterprise Fund – A fund established to account for operations financed and operated in a manner similar to 

private business enterprises.  In this case, the governing body intends that costs of providing goods or services 

to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 

Expenditures – Where accounts are kept on the accrual or modified basis of accounting, the cost of goods 

received or services rendered whether cash payments have been made or not.  Where accounts are kept on a 

cash basis, expenditures are recognized only when the cash payments for the above purchases are made. 

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) – Preserves and promotes public confidence in the U.S. financial 

system by insuring deposits in banks and thrift institutions for at least $250,000. 

Fines & Forfeits – A sum of money imposed or surrendered as a penalty. 

Fiscal Year – A 12-month period to which the annual operating budget applies and at the end of which a 

government determines its financial position and the results of its operations. 

Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) – Equivalent of one employee working fulltime, or 2,080 hours per year.  An FTE can 

be filled by any number of employees whose combined hours total 2,080 per year. 

Fund – An independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and/or 

other resources together with all related liabilities, obligations, reserves, and equities which are segregated for 

the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives. 

Fund Balance – The excess of a fund’s assets over its liabilities, generally called a reserve.  A negative fund 

balance is sometimes called a deficit. 

General Fund – The fund used to account for all financial resources except those reported in another fund. 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) – Accounting rules used to prepare, present, and report 

financial statements for a wide variety of entities. 

General Obligation Bonds – When a government pledges its full faith and credit to the repayment of the bonds 

it issues, those bonds are general obligation (GO) bonds.  Sometimes the term is also used to refer to bonds 

that are to be repaid from taxes and other general revenues. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) – It is the highest source of accounting and financial 

reporting guidance for state and local governments. 

Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) – A professional association of approximately 17,500 state, 

provincial, and local government finance officers in the United States and Canada. 



183 

 

 

 

Governmental Funds – Funds used to account for the acquisition, use and balance of expendable financial 

resources and the related current liabilities-except those accounted for in proprietary funds.  Under current 

GAAP, there are four governmental fund types: general, special revenue, debt service and capital projects. 

Grant – A contribution of assets (usually cash) by one governmental unit or other organization to another.  

Typically, these contributions are made to local governments from the state and federal governments.  Grants 

are usually made for specified purposes. 

Hermantown Economic Development Authority (HEDA) – The Hermantown Economic Development Authority 

(HEDA) was established on April 6, 1992 by Resolution 92-29.  HEDA is governed by a board of commissioners 

with seven members.  All of the members of the City Council shall be board members and two public members.  

The City is financially accountable for HEDA because the City Council approves the budget for HEDA, levies 

taxes (if necessary), and must approve any debt issuances.   

Homestead Market Value Exclusion (HMVE) - Property tax relief delivered by excluding a portion of each 

qualifying home’s market value from taxation.  Homes up to $76,000 in total market value receive maximum 

exclusion.  Amount of exclusion decreases for homes valued at over $413,800.  Replaced MVHC at the end of 

2011. 

Infrastructure – The basic facilities, equipment, services and installations needed for the growth and 

functioning of a community.  Includes roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage 

systems and lighting systems. 

Intergovernmental Revenues – Revenues from other governments in the form of grants, entities, shared 

revenues or payments in lieu of taxes. 

Levy – (1) (Verb) to impose taxes, special assessments or service charges for the support of governmental 

activities.  (2) (Noun) The total amount of taxes, special assessments or service charges imposed by a 

government. 

Local Government Aid (LGA) – A state government revenue sharing program for cities and townships that is 

intended to provide an alternative to the property tax.  LGA is distributed through a formula based on tax base, 

population, population decline, age of housing, and the percent of market value classified as commercial or 

industrial. 

Major Program – The major parts of the City of Hermantown government: General Government, Public Safety, 

Streets and Highways, Recreation, Sales Tax, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Water Enterprise, Sewer 

Enterprise, Street Lighting Enterprise. 

Maturities – The dates on which the principal or stated value of investments or debt obligations mature and 

may be reclaimed. 

Municipal State Aid Street System (MSAS) – Mechanism to identify and fund a “backbone” system of collector 

and arterial streets. 

Object of Expenditure – Expenditure classification based upon the types or categories of goods and services 

purchased: 

Typical objects of expenditure include: 

- Personal services (salaries and wages); 

- Supplies;  

- Charges for service (utilities, maintenance contracts, travel); 

- Capital outlay 

- Debt service 



184 

 

 

 

- Other financing uses 

 
Objective – Serving as a goal; being the object of a course of action. 
 
Ordinance – A formal legislative enactment by the government body of a municipality. 
 
Personal Services – A level of budgetary appropriations, which includes expenses for salaries, wages, and 
related employee benefits such as the City’s share of retirement and insurance. 
 
Policy – A set of guidelines used for making decisions. 
 
Program – Group activities, operations or organizational units directed to attaining specific purposes or 
objectives. 
 
Proprietary Funds – Account for government’s ongoing organizations and activities that are similar to those 
often found in the private sector.  All assets, liabilities, equities, revenues, expenses and transfers relating to 
the government’s business and quasi-business activities are accounted for through proprietary funds. 
 
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) – PERA administers retirement plans providing defined 
benefit plan coverage to employees of local governments and school districts. 
 
Reserves – Assets kept back or saved for future use or special purpose. 
 
Retained Earnings – An equity account reflecting the accumulated earnings of the government’s proprietary 
funds (those funds where service charges will recover costs of providing those services). 
 

Revenue – What is taken in from tax and other sources, to help finance expenditures. 

 
Special Assessment – A compulsory levy made against certain properties to defray part or all of the cost of a 

specific improvement or service deemed to primarily benefit those properties. 

Special Revenue Fund – A fund used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that 

are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. 

Storm Water Pollution Prevention (SWPP) – Defines and controls the handling of storm water runoff from a 

construction site. 

Supplies – A level of budgetary appropriations, which includes expenses for commodities that are used, such as 

office supplies, operating supplies, repair and maintenance supplies. 

Tax Capacity – A valuation set upon real estate and certain personal property by the County Assessor as a basis 

for levying property taxes.  The assessor determines the estimated market (resale) value of the property.  This 

value is converted to tax capacity by a formula specified in state law. To be noted: HMVE reduces tax capacity.   

Tax Increment Financing (TIF) – Financing tool originally intended to combat severe blight in areas which would 

not be redeveloped “but for” the availability of government subsidies derived from locally generated property 

tax revenues. 

Tax Levy – The total amount to be raised by general property taxes for the purposes stated in the resolution 

certified to the County Auditor. 

Taxes – Compulsory charges levied by a government to finance services performed for the common benefit. 

 



185 

 

 

 

 

Acronyms 
 

ACFR  Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

CD  Certificate of Deposit 

CIP  Capital Improvement Plan 

CPI   Consumer Price Index 

DCA  Dollar Cost Averaging 

DARE                     Drug Abuse Resistance Education  

EFT  Electronic Fund Transfer 

FDIC                       Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 

FMP  Financial Management Plan 

FNLB  Federal Home Loan Bank 

FNMA                   Federal National Mortgage Association 

FTE  Full Time Equivalent 

GAAP  Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

GASB  Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

GFOA  Government Finance Officers Association 

GL  General Ledger 

GO  General Obligation 

HEDA  Hermantown Economic Development Authority 

I & I   Inflow & Infiltration 

LGA  Local Government Aid 

MSAS                      Municipal State Aid Street System  

MSI  Multiple Streams of Income 

PERA  Public Employee Retirement Association 

SAC  Sewer Availability Charge 

SIPC                       Securities Investor Protection Corporation  

SWPP  Storm Water Protection Prevention 

TIF  Tax Increment Financing 

UA  Unitary Authority 

WAC  Water Availability Charge 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

.  

5105 Maple Grove Road • Hermantown, MN  55811 

Ph:  218-729-3600 Fax:  218-729-3620 

www.hermantownmn.com 



City Council Agenda Report  Pre-Agenda Presentation 
November 21, 2022  Agenda Item: 7B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  Eric Johnson, Community 

Development Director 
 

DATE: November 16, 2022 Meeting Date: 11/21/2022 
 

 

SUBJECT: Furniture along Boulder Trail Agenda Item:  7B  
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Discuss the installation of benches, trash receptacles, bike racks and picnic tables along Boulder Trail. 

 
BACKGROUND 
City staff has been discussing the purchase and installation of trail furniture (benches, trash receptacles, bike 
racks and picnic tables) for Boulder Trail.  Staff has contacted the supplier who previously provided the 
furniture for the Stebner Park trail segment for updated quotes for these items.  The prices are as follows: 
 

• Bench with back: $775.00 
• Bench without back: $575.00 
• Picnic table: $1,050.00 
• Trash receptacle: $550.00 
• Bike Rack: $425.00 

 
The installation of these items will require a concrete pad.  Estimated costs for a bench/trash receptacle pad of 
5’ x 12’ is $1,500-2,000 and for a picnic table/trash receptacle pad of 14’ x 16’ is $5,500-7,500. 
 
There have been two inquiries from residents about purchasing a bench for dedication purposes.  An option 
for this would be Detail 1 (attached) with an estimated price of $3,500-4,000 dependent upon the cost of the 
concrete pad.  This amount would be sufficient to cover City costs associated with the assembly and installation 
of the bench and trash receptacle.  A small plaque (approximately 4”x6”) would be installed on the bench for 
the dedication. 
 
Detail 2 reflects the installation of a picnic table, trash receptacle and concrete pad with an estimated cost of 
$8,000 -10,000 dependent upon the cost of the concrete pad.  This amount would be sufficient to cover City 
costs associated with the assembly and installation of the picnic table and trash receptacle. 
 
It is envisioned that bike racks be installed at trailhead locations once those are established. 
 
This information was discussed with the Park Board at the November 15, 2022 meeting.  The Board was 
receptive to the idea with their two questions being as follows: 
 
Does the City install the furniture now and reimburse itself later with donation money as it comes in? 
Does the City cover the cost of the concrete pads and only charge for the furniture? 
 



City Council Agenda Report  Pre-Agenda Presentation 
November 21, 2022  Agenda Item: 7B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
 
Park Dedication and/or Resident Donations 
Community Recreation Initiative Funds 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Detail 1 – Bench and Trash Receptacle 
Detail 2 – Picnic Table and Trash Receptacle 



AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH RECEPTACLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH WITH BACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' X 12' CONCRETE PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH RECEPTACLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' BENCH - COLOR TO MATCH EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY COSTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' BENCH WITH BACK: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH RECEPTACLE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
$775

AutoCAD SHX Text
$550

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' x 12' CONCRETE PAD: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
$1,500 - $2,000

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAIL FURNITURE - DETAIL 1



AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH RECEPTACLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
14' X 16' CONCRETE PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH RECEPTACLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' ADA PICNIC TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-0" CLEARANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-0" CLEARANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PICNIC TABLE - END VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PICNIC TABLE - SIDE VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY COSTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PICNIC TABLE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH RECEPTACLE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
$1,050

AutoCAD SHX Text
$550

AutoCAD SHX Text
14' x 16' CONCRETE PAD: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
$5,500 - $7,500

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAIL FURNITURE - DETAIL 2



CITY OF HERMANTOWN 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
November 7, 2022 
6:30 p.m. 
 

MEETING CONDUCTED IN PERSON & VIA ZOOM 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL:  Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Mayor Boucher 
 
CITY STAFF: John Mulder, City Administrator; Joe Wicklund, Communications Manager; 

Gunnar Johnson, City Attorney 
 
ABSENT:  
 
VISITORS: 3  
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Communications 22-115 was read and placed on file. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
Kevin Orme, Director of Finance & Administration, presented the third quarter financials. 
 
Kevin Orme, Director of Finance & Administration, presented the Utility Rate Study. 
 
Joe Wicklund, Communications and Community Engagement Director, presented information on the 
Community Recreation Initiative Efforts. 
 
PUBLIC DISCUSSION 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion made by Councilor Nelson, seconded by Councilor Geissler, to approve the Consent Agenda 
which includes the following items: 
 

A. Approve October 17, 2022 City Council Continuation Minutes  
 

 B. Approve general city warrants from October 16, 2022 through October 31, 2022 in 
      the amount of $599,178.75 

 
Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
MOTIONS 
 



 
City Council Continuation Meeting 
November 7, 2022 
Page | 2 
 
Motion made by Councilor Hauschild, seconded by Councilor Geissler to appoint James Nelson to the 
Park Board for a three-year term ending on December 31, 2025. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, 
Hauschild, Nelson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
ORDINANCES 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
2022-123 Resolution Approving St. Louis County’s SAP 069-030-059, CP 0048 County State-Aid 

Highway No. 48 (Lavaque Road) From Morris Thomas Road To TH 53 Within The City 
Of Hermantown Corporate Limits 

 
Motion made by Councilor Geissler, seconded by Councilor Nelson, to adopt Resolution 2022-123 
Resolution Approving St. Louis County’s SAP 069-030-059, CP 0048 County State-Aid Highway No. 48 
(Lavaque Road) From Morris Thomas Road To TH 53 Within The City Of Hermantown Corporate 
Limits. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
2022-124 Resolution Authorizing And Directing The Mayor And City Clerk To Execute And 

Deliver A Cooperative Agreement Between St. Louis County And The City Of 
Hermantown For 2023 Crack Sealing Cp 0000-401121 

 
Motion made by Councilor Hauschild, seconded by Councilor Nelson, to adopt Resolution 2022-124 
Resolution Authorizing And Directing The Mayor And City Clerk To Execute And Deliver A 
Cooperative Agreement Between St. Louis County And The City Of Hermantown For 2023 Crack 
Sealing Cp 0000-401121. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Mayor Boucher, aye. 
Motion carried. 
 
2022-125 Resolution Approving Final Plans And Specifications And Ordering Advertisement For 

Bids For Road Improvement District No. 534 (Ugstad Road) 
 
Motion made by Councilor Geissler, seconded by Councilor Hauschild, to adopt Resolution 2022-125, 
Resolution Approving Final Plans And Specifications And Ordering Advertisement For Bids For Road 
Improvement District No. 534 (Ugstad Road). Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Mayor 
Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
2022-126 Resolution Directing Preparation Of Assessment Roll For Delinquent Water And Sewer 

Use, Hookup, Permit And Availability Charges, And Stormwater Charges And 
Directing Notice Of Such Assessment Be Given 

 
Motion made by Councilor Hauschild, seconded by Councilor Nelson, to adopt Resolution 2022-126, 
Resolution Directing Preparation Of Assessment Roll For Delinquent Water And Sewer Use, Hookup, 
Permit And Availability Charges, And Stormwater Charges And Directing Notice Of Such Assessment 
Be Given. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
2022-127 Resolution Awarding Contract For A Zero Turn Mower To Milaca General Rental 

Center, Inc. In the Amount Of $23,499   
 
Motion made by Councilor Nelson, seconded by Councilor Geissler, to adopt Resolution 2022-127, 
Resolution Awarding Contract For A Zero Turn Mower To Milaca General Rental Center, Inc. In the 



 
City Council Continuation Meeting 
November 7, 2022 
Page | 3 
 
Amount Of $23,499. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Hauschild, Nelson, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion 
carried. 
 
Motion made by Councilor Hauschild, seconded by Councilor Nelson, to recess the meeting at 6:44 p.m. 
Motion carried. 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
         Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________   
City Clerk 
 

 



PAYROLL CHECKS 

Electronic Checks - #-68674-68717 $78,635.77

LIABILITY CHECKS 

Electronic Checks - #-68718-68719 $77,186.35

Electronic Checks - #-68669-68673 $59,626.07

Checks - #69349-69350 $2,149.96

PAYROLL EXPENSE TOTAL $217,598.15

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Checks - #69351-69382 $103,710.42

Electronic Payments #-99603-99623 $89,616.95

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE TOTAL $193,327.37

TOTAL $410,925.52

CITY OF HERMANTOWN

CHECKS #-69349-69382

11/01/2022-11/15/2022



CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MN 11/01/2022-11/15/2022
Check # is between 69351 and 69382 or Check # is between -99623 and -99603

11/14/2022 Page 1

Fund Account Department Vendor Name Description Amount Check #

101 421100 Police Administration NORTHEAST SERVICE COOPERATIVE Health Ins Nov-Inactives       3,396.97  -99623
101 134000 Retiree Insurance/Telephone Reimb. NORTHEAST SERVICE COOPERATIVE Health Ins Nov-Inactives       1,095.97  -99623
101 134000 Retiree Insurance/Telephone Reimb. NORTHEAST SERVICE COOPERATIVE Dental Ins Nov Inact-Rich         110.00  -99622
101 134000 Retiree Insurance/Telephone Reimb. NORTHEAST SERVICE COOPERATIVE Dental Ins Nov Inact-Volk          42.00  -99622
101 414100 Elections WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022          25.50  -99621
101 415300 Administration & Finance WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022       4,367.75  -99621
101 419100 Community Development WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022       1,250.00  -99621
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022         812.50  -99621
101 421100 Police Administration WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022      21,250.00  -99621
101 422901 Firehall #1  Maple Grove Road WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022         250.00  -99621
101 424100 Building Inspection WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022       1,437.50  -99621
101 431100 Street Department WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022       3,787.50  -99621
101 431901 City Garage WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022         250.00  -99621
101 452100 Parks WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022         250.00  -99621
260 456101 Cable WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022          37.50  -99621
230 465100 HEDA WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022         200.50  -99621
101 490100 Cemetery WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022          25.00  -99621
601 494300 Water Distribution WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022       3,083.34  -99621
601 494400 Water Administration and General WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022       1,250.00  -99621
602 494500 Sewer Maintenance WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022       1,812.50  -99621
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022         837.50  -99621
101 452200 Community Building WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022         125.00  -99621
603 441100 Storm Water WEX HEALTH INC 4th Qtr VEBA 2022       2,089.58  -99621
101 415300 Administration & Finance AT&T MOBILITY Cell Phones/Tablets-PW/CH         447.67  -99620
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance AT&T MOBILITY Cell Phones/Tablets-PW/CH         134.62  -99620
101 421100 Police Administration AT&T MOBILITY Cell Phones PD       1,366.87  -99620
101 431100 Street Department AT&T MOBILITY Cell Phones/Tablets-PW/CH         471.21  -99620
601 494400 Water Administration and General AT&T MOBILITY Cell Phones/Tablets-PW/CH        -339.96  -99620
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General AT&T MOBILITY Cell Phones/Tablets-PW/CH        -469.81  -99620
101 415300 Administration & Finance GREATAMERICA FINANCIAL SERVICES Copier Lease/Konica Nov          96.00  -99619
101 431901 City Garage MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas Lightning Dr         135.38  -99618
101 431901 City Garage MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas old CH          22.05  -99618
601 494400 Water Administration and General MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas Lightning Dr         154.72  -99618
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas Lightning Dr          96.70  -99618
101 452200 Community Building MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP Natural Gas old CH         198.40  -99618
101 415300 Administration & Finance WEX HEALTH INC Monthly Participant Fee Sept          22.00  -99617
101 415300 Administration & Finance WEX HEALTH INC Monthly Participant/Cobra Oct          57.31  -99617
101 419100 Community Development WEX HEALTH INC Monthly Participant/Cobra Oct           7.18  -99617



CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MN 11/01/2022-11/15/2022
Check # is between 69351 and 69382 or Check # is between -99623 and -99603

11/14/2022 Page 2

Fund Account Department Vendor Name Description Amount Check #

101 419100 Community Development WEX HEALTH INC Monthly Participant Fee Sept           2.75  -99617
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance WEX HEALTH INC Monthly Participant/Cobra Oct           7.18  -99617
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance WEX HEALTH INC Monthly Participant Fee Sept           2.75  -99617
101 421100 Police Administration WEX HEALTH INC Monthly Participant Fee Sept          52.25  -99617
101 421100 Police Administration WEX HEALTH INC Monthly Participant/Cobra Oct         141.11  -99617
101 431100 Street Department WEX HEALTH INC Monthly Participant Fee Sept           8.25  -99617
101 431100 Street Department WEX HEALTH INC Monthly Participant/Cobra Oct          21.49  -99617
601 494400 Water Administration and General WEX HEALTH INC Monthly Participant/Cobra Oct          21.49  -99617
601 494400 Water Administration and General WEX HEALTH INC Monthly Participant Fee Sept           8.25  -99617
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General WEX HEALTH INC Monthly Participant Fee Sept           8.25  -99617
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General WEX HEALTH INC Monthly Participant/Cobra Oct          21.49  -99617
101 217450 Employee Flexplan WEX HEALTH INC Claim Reimbursement         200.00  -99617
101 217450 Employee Flexplan WEX HEALTH INC Claim Reimbursement         771.93  -99617
101 217450 Employee Flexplan WEX HEALTH INC Claim Reimbursement       3,436.93  -99617
101 414100 Elections PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER Refill Postage Meter 4745753         943.13  -99616
101 415300 Administration & Finance PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER Refill Postage Meter 4745753         409.79  -99616
101 419100 Community Development PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER Refill Postage Meter 4745753         198.35  -99616
101 421100 Police Administration PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER Refill Postage Meter 4745753         873.51  -99616
101 424100 Building Inspection PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER Refill Postage Meter 4745753          95.29  -99616
101 452100 Parks PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER Refill Postage Meter 4745753          11.71  -99616
601 494400 Water Administration and General PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER Refill Postage Meter 4745753         110.89  -99616
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER Refill Postage Meter 4745753          82.26  -99616
603 441100 Storm Water PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER Refill Postage Meter 4745753           0.57  -99616
101 452100 Parks BRENT'S SEPTIC SERVICE LLC Portable Toilets       1,225.00  -99615
601 494400 Water Administration and General GOPHER STATE ONE-CALL INC Oct 22 Locates         116.64  -99614
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General GOPHER STATE ONE-CALL INC Oct 22 Locates          77.76  -99614
602 494500 Sewer Maintenance GREAT LAKES PIPE SERVICE INC Clean Lift Stations       3,260.00  -99613
602 494500 Sewer Maintenance GREAT LAKES PIPE SERVICE INC Clean Sewer @Twin Pines/Aery/U       2,920.00  -99613
230 465100 HEDA HTB PROJECT NAVIGATION, LLC Proposed Hermantown Business P         562.50  -99612
101 431100 Street Department INTER CITY OIL CO INC Fuel       1,053.81  -99611
101 431100 Street Department INTER CITY OIL CO INC Fuel       1,276.29  -99611
101 431100 Street Department INTER CITY OIL CO INC Fuel       1,433.32  -99611
603 441100 Storm Water LHB INC Predesign & Survey-HTRockyRunB         915.75  -99610
101 431100 Street Department NORTHERN ENGINE & SUPPLY INC Air System Truck Repair Parts          88.80  -99609
101 419100 Community Development NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. Getchell - Radar Rd Developmen         240.00  -99608
402 431150 Street Improvements NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. Ugstad Rd - SP 202-101-014         960.00  -99608
603 441100 Storm Water NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. PO 2312 - Bridge Inspection         595.00  -99608
603 441100 Storm Water NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. Lindahl Rd Bridge Removal       2,273.00  -99608



CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MN 11/01/2022-11/15/2022
Check # is between 69351 and 69382 or Check # is between -99623 and -99603

11/14/2022 Page 3

Fund Account Department Vendor Name Description Amount Check #

603 441100 Storm Water NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. Rocky Run Bridge Replacement         480.00  -99608
101 431130 City Engineer NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. Four Square         400.00  -99608
240 432510 Trunk Sewer Construction NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. Oak Ridge Dr. Sanitary Sewer E       1,395.50  -99608
101 214500 Escrow Deposits Payable NORTHLAND CONSULTING ENGINEERS L.L.P. Peyton Property Development         640.00  -99608
101 416100 City Attorney OVEROM LAW, PLLC Data Practices Requests         253.00  -99607
101 416100 City Attorney OVEROM LAW, PLLC General Matters/Retainer       1,900.00  -99607
101 416100 City Attorney OVEROM LAW, PLLC Data Practices Procedures -202         231.00  -99607
101 416100 City Attorney OVEROM LAW, PLLC Nuisance Ordinance          99.00  -99607
101 416100 City Attorney OVEROM LAW, PLLC Paul Senst Accident Claim         189.00  -99607
101 416100 City Attorney OVEROM LAW, PLLC Tim Costley Driveway Issue - L         236.00  -99607
101 416100 City Attorney OVEROM LAW, PLLC Fire Protection District          77.00  -99607
101 419100 Community Development OVEROM LAW, PLLC Planning & Zoning Commission          88.00  -99607
101 419100 Community Development OVEROM LAW, PLLC 2022 Sign Ordinance Amendments          66.00  -99607
101 421100 Police Administration OVEROM LAW, PLLC Prosecution Contract Matters          33.00  -99607
101 421100 Police Administration OVEROM LAW, PLLC Police Dept Personnel Matters         242.00  -99607
101 421100 Police Administration OVEROM LAW, PLLC Edible Cannabinoids          33.00  -99607
101 421100 Police Administration OVEROM LAW, PLLC Complaint Against Officer - 20         374.00  -99607
230 465100 HEDA OVEROM LAW, PLLC 2021 Recreation Facility         140.00  -99607
230 465100 HEDA OVEROM LAW, PLLC HEDA Agenda Matters         336.00  -99607
601 494400 Water Administration and General OVEROM LAW, PLLC Utility Commission          44.00  -99607
601 494400 Water Administration and General OVEROM LAW, PLLC Delinquent Utility Charges Aut          60.50  -99607
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General OVEROM LAW, PLLC Utility Commission          44.00  -99607
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General OVEROM LAW, PLLC Delinquent Utility Charges Aut          60.50  -99607
475 431150 Street Improvements OVEROM LAW, PLLC Richard Avenue-Lindgren Rd MN          44.00  -99607
415 465200 Community Development OVEROM LAW, PLLC Naming Rights Agreement Matter         672.00  -99607
240 432510 Trunk Sewer Construction OVEROM LAW, PLLC Okerstrom Sewer & RD Project N          38.00  -99607
101 214500 Escrow Deposits Payable OVEROM LAW, PLLC Peyton Acres Development Matte          42.00  -99607
230 214500 Escrow Deposits Payable OVEROM LAW, PLLC Oppidan Development         103.00  -99607
230 214500 Escrow Deposits Payable OVEROM LAW, PLLC P&R Properties Tax Increment M       3,765.00  -99607
245 456201 Broadband OVEROM LAW, PLLC Broadband Expansion          98.00  -99607
602 494500 Sewer Maintenance SJE-RHOMBUS, INC. SCADA Monitoring Oct-Dec 2022       1,264.50  -99606
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance TELCOLOGIX Nov 2022 Maintenance         237.85  -99605
101 422901 Firehall #1  Maple Grove Road TELCOLOGIX Nov 2022 Maintenance          70.35  -99605
101 431100 Street Department TELCOLOGIX Nov 2022 Maintenance          16.75  -99605
101 452200 Community Building TELCOLOGIX Nov 2022 Maintenance          10.05  -99605
101 421100 Police Administration TIMECLOCK PLUS, LLC SchAnywhereLicense 11/22-11/23         432.00  -99604
101 421100 Police Administration VC3 Configure Axon Body Cameras         787.51  -99603
101 134000 Retiree Insurance/Telephone Reimb. MN LIFE Rich - Inactive Oct          21.51   69351



CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MN 11/01/2022-11/15/2022
Check # is between 69351 and 69382 or Check # is between -99623 and -99603

11/14/2022 Page 4

Fund Account Department Vendor Name Description Amount Check #

101 134000 Retiree Insurance/Telephone Reimb. MN LIFE Vatne - Inactive Oct           5.31   69351
101 134000 Retiree Insurance/Telephone Reimb. MN LIFE Volk - Inactive Oct          44.41   69351
101 431100 Street Department A & S TRUCK AND TRAILER REPAIR DOT & Oil - H4         424.70   69352
101 419100 Community Development ARROWHEAD ABSTRACT & TITLE CO. O-309368 - O&E Soumis Construc          75.00   69353
230 465100 HEDA BRAUN INTERTEC CORPORATION HWY 53 Business Park Developme       6,016.25   69354
603 441100 Storm Water BRAUN INTERTEC CORPORATION Rocky Run Bridge Replacement       7,563.00   69354
101 421100 Police Administration CARSTAR AUTO CARE COLLISION CENTER, INC. Deductible - Body Repair SQD 1       1,000.00   69355
101 431100 Street Department CENTRAL PENSION FUND Training Per Contract          44.52   69356
601 494300 Water Distribution CENTRAL PENSION FUND Training Per Contract          44.52   69356
602 494500 Sewer Maintenance CENTRAL PENSION FUND Training Per Contract          44.51   69356
101 422902 Firehall #2  Morris Thomas Road CENTURYLINK Internet FH2 10/28/22-11/27/22          79.98   69357
101 422903 Firehall #3  Midway Road CENTURYLINK Internet FH3 10/22/22-11/21/22          79.98   69357
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance CINTAS CORPORATION Mats at CH           8.88   69358
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance CINTAS CORPORATION Mats at FD/PD          30.72   69358
101 431100 Street Department CINTAS CORPORATION Uniforms          26.93   69358
101 431100 Street Department CINTAS CORPORATION Uniforms           9.72   69358
101 431901 City Garage CINTAS CORPORATION Supplies          37.50   69358
101 431901 City Garage CINTAS CORPORATION Mats at PW          30.03   69358
101 431100 Street Department COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA Winter Road Salt       4,683.48   69359
601 494300 Water Distribution COONS AGGREGATE SUPPLY CO 3/4" Rock for Water Breaks         696.78   69360
601 494300 Water Distribution CORE & MAIN LP Meter Setters       1,178.81   69361
230 465100 HEDA CREATIVE ARCADE Website Monthly Maintenance         250.03   69362
101 431100 Street Department CRYSTEEL TRUCK EQUIPMENT Pump & Bracket - H4         467.95   69363
101 431100 Street Department CRYSTEEL TRUCK EQUIPMENT Brine Pump - H4       1,022.73   69363
601 494300 Water Distribution FERGUSON WATERWORKS #2516 Water Corps for Services         275.34   69364
601 494300 Water Distribution FERGUSON WATERWORKS #2516 Water Service Stock         838.72   69364
601 494300 Water Distribution FERGUSON WATERWORKS #2516 Curb Box         441.60   69364
101 414100 Elections HERMANTOWN STAR LLC Gen Elect & Sample Ballot         618.75   69365
101 414100 Elections HERMANTOWN STAR LLC Accuracy Test          20.62   69365
101 421100 Police Administration HOLIDAY COMPANIES Oct Car Washes          10.00   69366
101 419901 City Hall  & Police Building Maintenance KWIK TRIP EXTENDED NETWORK Gas Building          63.74   69367
101 421100 Police Administration KWIK TRIP EXTENDED NETWORK Gas PD       4,456.34   69367
101 421100 Police Administration KWIK TRIP EXTENDED NETWORK Car Wash PD         207.00   69367
101 431100 Street Department KWIK TRIP EXTENDED NETWORK Gas Street         341.12   69367
101 431100 Street Department KWIK TRIP EXTENDED NETWORK Car Wash PW          11.00   69367
601 494300 Water Distribution KWIK TRIP EXTENDED NETWORK Gas Utility         610.76   69367
602 494500 Sewer Maintenance KWIK TRIP EXTENDED NETWORK Gas Utility         407.17   69367
101 431100 Street Department LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC. CylRnt/SafeEnvFee9/20-10/20/22          66.64   69368



CITY OF HERMANTOWN, MN 11/01/2022-11/15/2022
Check # is between 69351 and 69382 or Check # is between -99623 and -99603

11/14/2022 Page 5

Fund Account Department Vendor Name Description Amount Check #

230 465100 HEDA MAMMOTH SPORTS CONSTRUCTION, LLC Stebner Farms      15,000.00   69369
101 422903 Firehall #3  Midway Road MENARD INC Cleaning Supplies-FH3          55.92   69370
101 431100 Street Department MENARD INC Drill Bits          14.98   69370
601 494300 Water Distribution MENARD INC Water Test Materials          75.06   69370
101 431100 Street Department NAPA AUTO PARTS Oil Filters          63.99   69371
101 431100 Street Department NAPA AUTO PARTS Grease Coupling Vac Trailer          58.94   69371
101 431100 Street Department NAPA AUTO PARTS Elec Coupling Vac Trailer           5.33   69371
101 421100 Police Administration NORTHSTAR FORD Repair Battery Warning Light -         340.07   69372
101 411100 Council ORME, KEVIN Cord & Charger - Councilor Pet          58.99   69373
601 494300 Water Distribution POLLARD WATER Hyd Director Diff          59.15   69374
601 494300 Water Distribution POLLARD WATER Hydrant Pro Plug         411.59   69374
230 465100 HEDA REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA Research LOST       3,000.00   69375
101 424100 Building Inspection SCHMINSKI, ADAM MN Dept. Labor & Industry Regi          85.00   69376
101 421100 Police Administration STREICHER'S Uniform - Prouse         195.00   69377
101 421100 Police Administration STREICHER'S Uniform- Solem         195.00   69377
101 431100 Street Department TERHAAR, JERRIE Reimburse Safety Boots         119.25   69378
601 494300 Water Distribution TERHAAR, JERRIE Reimburse Safety Boots          59.62   69378
601 494300 Water Distribution TERHAAR, JERRIE Reimburse Milage          90.63   69378
602 494500 Sewer Maintenance TERHAAR, JERRIE Reimburse Safety Boots          59.62   69378
602 494500 Sewer Maintenance TERHAAR, JERRIE Reimburse Milage          90.62   69378
101 415300 Administration & Finance TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES Copier Lease Toshiba         145.57   69379
101 421100 Police Administration TROY'S BP AMOCO INC Oil & Filter/Tires - SQD 18         275.91   69380
101 421100 Police Administration TROY'S BP AMOCO INC Oil & Filter/Tires - SQD 18         371.32   69380
101 421100 Police Administration TROY'S BP AMOCO INC Vehicle Repair - SQD 21       1,231.58   69380
101 421100 Police Administration TROY'S BP AMOCO INC Oil & Filter - SQD 14         157.85   69380
601 494400 Water Administration and General VALLI INFORMATION SYSTEMS, INC Oct 2022 Bill Print         533.80   69381
602 494900 Sewer Administration and General VALLI INFORMATION SYSTEMS, INC Oct 2022 Bill Print         533.79   69381
603 441100 Storm Water VALLI INFORMATION SYSTEMS, INC Oct 2022 Bill Print         533.79   69381
602 494500 Sewer Maintenance WLSSD Wastewater Charges      47,632.00   69382

Totals: 181 records printed     193,327.37 



City Council Agenda Report Agenda Item:  12-A 
November 21, 2022 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: City Council Members 

FROM: Paul Senst, Public Works 
Director  

DATE: November 15th, 2022 Meeting Date: 11/21/2022 

SUBJECT: Utility System Policy Updates Agenda Item:  12-A Resolution:  2022-128 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Approve changes to our Utility Policy for water and Sewer hookups. 

BACKGROUND 

The City of Hermantown has grown over the last 20 years, along with our utility system needs.  To 
accommodate the growing needs with limited staff, we are asking for the attached changes to our policy to 
become effective January 1, 2023. 

SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 

N/A 

ATTACHMENTS 

Resolution 
Policy 



 

Resolution No. 2022-128 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY OF HERMANTOWN POLICY  
FOR CONTRACTOR WATER AND SEWER HOOKUP PROCESS AND  

REPAIRS TO LATERAL LINES 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Hermantown (“City”) desires to adopt a policy 
to guide contractors repairing a property owner’s lateral line or contractors wanting to connect to 
City-owned watermains, sewers and meters through the use of effective communication channels 
and the required performance standards; and 

 
WHEREAS, City staff have prepared a proposed Contractor Water and Sewer Hookup 

Process and Repairs to Lateral Lines (“Utility Policy”) attached hereto as Exhibit A; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has duly considered the Utility Policy and believes it is in 

the best interest of the City of Hermantown to approve the Utility Policy.   
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 
Minnesota, as follows: 
 

1. The City of Hermantown Contractor Water and Sewer Hookup Process and Repairs 
to Lateral Lines is hereby approved effective immediately. 

 
2. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to insert the Contractor Water and 

Sewer Hookup Process and Repairs to Lateral Lines in the appropriate location of the City’s Policy 
and Procedure manual.  
 

Councilor ____________________ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its 
adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor 
____________________ and, upon a vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor 
thereof: 
 
 

And the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 

 
 WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted November 21, 
2022. 
 
 
  



 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 



Policy & 
Procedure 

Water and Water Utility Services 

Supersedes: N/A Date 
Approved: November 21, 2022 

Contractor Water and Sewer Hookup Process and Repairs 
to Lateral Lines  Page 1 of 3 

 
Section 1. Purpose 
The purpose of this policy is to establish clear, concise, consistent methods of communications, 
performance and services between the City of Hermantown and contractors desiring to connect to 
City watermains, sewers and meters as well as contractors repairing a property owner’s lateral 
lines pursuant to Hermantown City Code Chapter 9.  
 
Section 2. Definitions. 
The following phrases and words have special meanings as used in this policy: 
 
2.1 “Commission” shall mean the City Utility Commission.       
 
2.2 “Lateral Line” shall mean the line from the main to the residence.  
 
2.3 “Service installation” shall mean installation of a water service line from the water main 

to a curb stop and box (shutoff valve).       
 
2.4 “Sewer Service” shall mean sewer furnished by the Department.  
 
2.5 “Sewer Utility” shall mean the sewer works owned by the City and declared to be and to 

constitute a public utility of the City, owned, operated, maintained, improved and 
administered as an undertaking.  

 
2.6 “Utility Department” or “Department” shall mean the Utility Department in the City. 
 
2.7 “Water service” shall mean water furnished by the Department. 
 
2.8 “Water Utility” shall mean the waterworks owned by the City are declared to be and to 

constitute a public utility of the City, owned, operated, maintained, improved, extended 
and administered as an undertaking. 

 
Section 3. Connections to Water Utility.  
All applications for water service installation or transfer of water service shall be made to the 
Utility Department utilizing the appropriate form. Upon approval and collection of any assessment, 
fees or deposits owed by the applicant, a permit shall be obtained by an approved, licensed 
contractor through the City.  
 
3.1. Contractors must schedule an appointment for all services with the City to connect with a 

Water Utility pursuant to the following: 
 



Policy & 
Procedure 

Water and Water Utility Services 

Supersedes: N/A Date 
Approved: November 21, 2022 

Contractor Water and Sewer Hookup Process and Repairs 
to Lateral Lines  Page 2 of 3 

 
3.1.1. Email utility@hermantownmn.com with the following information: 

 
3.1.1.1. Contractor Name 

 
3.1.1.2. Jobsite Address 

 
3.1.1.3. Service Needed  

 
3.1.1.4. Onsite contact name and phone number 

 
3.2. The City will reply with an email confirming your appointment time and date. 

 
3.3. There will be NO service hookups performed on Fridays. 

 
3.4. A Water Utility will NOT be turned on during Fridays. 

 
3.5. Minimum 24-hour notice is needed to schedule any service installation.  

 
3.6. Testing of any Water Utility is required to be completed prior to 3:30 p.m., Monday through 

Thursday. 
 

3.7. Any fees that are required at time of testing will be applied pursuant or fees will be applied 
per City Ordinance as necessary and appropriate. 
 

Section 4. Connections to Sewer Utility.  
All applications for sewer service installation or transfer of sewer service shall be made to the 
Utility Department utilizing the appropriate form. Upon approval and collection of any assessment, 
fees or deposits owed by the applicant, a permit shall be obtained by an approved, licensed 
contractor through the City.  
 
4.1. Contractors must schedule an appointment for all services with the City to connect with a 

Sewer Utility pursuant to the following: 
 
4.1.1. Email utility@hermantownmn.com with the following information: 

 
4.1.1.1. Contractor Name 

 
4.1.1.2. Jobsite Address 

 
4.1.1.3. Service Needed  



Policy & 
Procedure 

Water and Water Utility Services 

Supersedes: N/A Date 
Approved: November 21, 2022 

Contractor Water and Sewer Hookup Process and Repairs 
to Lateral Lines  Page 3 of 3 

 
 

4.1.1.4. Onsite contact name and phone number 
 

4.2. The City will reply with an email confirming your appointment time and date. 
 

4.3. There will be NO service hookups performed on Fridays. 
 

4.4. A Sewer Utility will NOT be turned on during Fridays. 
 

4.5. Minimum 24-hour notice is needed to schedule any service installation.  
 

4.6. Testing of any Sewer Utility is required to be completed prior to 3:30 p.m., Monday 
through Thursday. 
 

4.7. Any fees that are required at time of testing will be applied pursuant or fees will be applied 
per City Ordinance as necessary and appropriate. 

 
Section 5. Repairs to Lateral Lines. 
Any repairs made to sewer or water lateral lines which require an excavating permit and prior 
notice of such work shall be given to the City at utility@hermantownmn.com.  
 
 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolution 2022-129 
November 21, 2022  Agenda Item: 12-B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  Paul Senst 

DATE: November 14th, 2022 Meeting Date:  11/21/2022 
 

 

SUBJECT: Upfit Westernstar Chasis w/ 
Plow Equipment 

Agenda Item: 12-B Resolution 2022-129 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
 
Approve Towmaster for Western Star Chassis upfit w/Dumpbox and plowing equipment    

 
BACKGROUND 
 
As part of our 2023 Capital improvement plan, the Hermantown Public Works has asked to purchase a plow 
truck package from Towmaster Truck Equipment. This equipment will be placed on the 2023 Western Star 
Chassis that was approved for purchase in March of 2022 (Resolution 2022-35). We are asking for approval 
to spend 2023 monies in 2022 to avoid a 10-15% price increase after November 30th of 2022.  
 
We recommend awarding the purchase of this equipment to Towmaster Truck Equipment of Litchfield, 
MN in the amount of $175,248.00+ applicable state/federal taxes and fees. 
 
This is a purchase thru Towmaster as part of the MN State Bid process. 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
 
2023 CIP Plan 
401-431100-543 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Resolution 
Towmaster Quote    



 

Resolution No. 2022-129 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR A PLOW TRUCK PACKAGE FROM 
TOWMASTER TRUCK EQUIPMENT NOT TO EXCEED $175,248 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hermantown City Council approved the purchase a 2023 Western Star 
Chasis plow truck in March of 2022 by adopting Resolution 2022-35; and 
 
 WHEREAS, cost of the plow package was not purchased or ordered at that time because it would 
be included in the 2023 Budget,” and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has included the cost of the plow truck package in the 2023 Proposed 
budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hermantown desires to purchase a plow truck package for the Western 
Star Chasis, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the ordering the equipment at this time, can save money on the purchase price of the 
plow truck package, and 
 

WHEREAS, after fully considering this matter, the City Council of the City of Hermantown 
believes that it is in the best interest of the City of Hermantown to award the contract for the plow truck 
package from Towmaster Truck Equipment.  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Hermantown as 

follows: 
 

1. Towmaster Truck Equipment is hereby determined to be able to provide the plow truck  
 package to the City pursuant to the State Contract. 
 
2. The price of the plow truck package of $175,248 is included in the Proposed 2023 Budget  
 and in accordance with the State Contract is hereby accepted. 
 
3. Per the CIP the funds for the payment of the plow truck package be paid from Fund No. 401  
 and expensed to 401-431100-543. 

 
 Councilor _____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor _____ and, upon a 
vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
  
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
  
  

 
WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted November 21, 2022. 
 



TRKQT3

Ship To:               Cust:                Phone: Bill To: Phone:

ATTN:

Reference No.

Accepted by Date

PO# Salesman Created Last Revised Appx CompTerms

Serial No.

Price:

Total Discounts:

Net Cost:

Freight

Total:

HERMANTOWN, CITY OF
5105 MAPLE GROVE ROAD

HERMANTOWN

HERMANTOWN, CITY OF
5105 MAPLE GROVE ROAD

HERMANTOWN

PAUL SENST

TIM ERICKSON

QT   65011

NET 30 DAYS 5/04/21 10/27/22

3327

 Order Comments: **STATE OF MN CONTRACT

#212541**

 Build Instructions  F.O.B. LITCHFIELD, MN -OR- CUSTOMER LOCATION W/FUEL CHARGES ADDED

 Qty  Part No. Description    Price Ea.   Net Amt.

   1 9900094 - Body 146EDGE-SS/CS130-56-36-46 56" 7 ga Stainless Front,   $27,950.00   $27,950.00

36" 7 ga Stainless Sides w/Board Pockets,

46" 7 ga Stainless Tailgate w/Hardox-450 face, 1/4" Hardox-450 Floor,

8" I-Beam Longsills, Air-trip ready linkage, Underside painted gloss

black

   1 9901701 - Installation of Dump Body to hoist    $2,036.00    $2,036.00

   1 9900145 - Body acc'y TMTE Air trip kit, w/solenoid valve, $456.00 $456.00

   1 9901702 - Installation of air operated tailgate latch kit, with $395.00 $395.00

solenoid valve in hydraulic valve enclosure.

   1 9900147 - Body acc Box Vibrator - Cougar model DC3200 $784.00 $784.00

   1 9901703 - Installation of Box Vibrator, with solenoid located in $461.00 $461.00

hydraulic valve enclosure.

   1 9900156 - Cabshield, 1/2 type Stationary Free-Standing style,w/plain    $4,579.00    $4,579.00

STAINLESS STEEL canopy, Hot-Dipped Galvanized

tubing construction support stand, Slotted Center Viewing Window, (2)

shovel holders, & reservior mounts, Installed.

   1 9900207 - Ladder Flip-A-Way Access ladder (STAINLESS STEEL) Including $704.00 $704.00

Grab Handle above, and Interior Step, ea, Installed

SPECIFY LOCATION HERE: LH FRONT AREA OF SIDE PANEL

   1 9900211 - Body acc'y  Dual "split" sander manifolds in rear corner $485.00 $485.00

posts

  *--- Continued ---*

MN 55811 USA MN   55811

0/00/00

**  QUOTATION  **

REVISION I - - 10/27/22

terickson
Highlight

terickson
Highlight



TRKQT3

Ship To:               Cust:                          Phone: Bill To:                                     Phone:

ATTN:

Reference No.

Accepted by                                 Date

PO# Salesman Created Last Revised Appx CompTerms

Serial No.

Price:

Total Discounts:

Net Cost:

Freight

Total:

HERMANTOWN, CITY OF
5105 MAPLE GROVE ROAD

HERMANTOWN

HERMANTOWN, CITY OF
5105 MAPLE GROVE ROAD

HERMANTOWN

PAUL SENST

TIM ERICKSON

QT   65011

NET 30 DAYS 5/04/21 10/27/22

3327

   1 9904246 - Light Warning TMTE1SS-3 PKG: (2) STAINLESS STEEL 23H    $4,709.00    $4,709.00

     3-light LED Micro-Edge, (2) 5M-400 Super-LED, (2) Side TIR3 LED, (2

     ) 400 Max B-T-T LED, & (2) 400 LED BU Lights, in Stainless M

     Housings, (1) TIR3 LED Wing light, and (2) 4" LED work lights

     Installed

   2 9903685 - Light, Warning, Whelen WIONSMA, Amber LED, surface mount,      $470.00      $940.00

     Each, Installed

     **NOTE: INSTALLED IN FRONT GRILL, WIRED TO OEM DASH SWITCH

   1 9905778 - Light, Mirror Mounted ABL 3800 LED HEAD LAMP PLOW LIGHTS    $1,325.00    $1,325.00

     W/ICE MELTING TECHNOLOGY Installed

   1 9900267 - Fender set Minimizer M400, for Tandem Axle, black Poly,    $1,685.00    $1,685.00

     Installed

   1 9904691 - INSTALLATION of (Initial) Single camera system      $396.00      $396.00

     **NOTE: LOCATED ON RH MICRO-EDGE STROBE TUBE, AIMED FOR REAR WING

     OPERATION VIEWING, WIRED AS DEFAULT CAMERA.

   2 9904692 - Camera System option, NORTECH 9100-2HC 120 degree night      $182.00      $364.00

     vision CCD weather-proof HEATED camera, only   GEN 5 6100

   2 9904693 - Camera System option, NORTECH 9100-4 Harness, 65'      $118.00      $236.00

     Waterproof GEN 5 6100

   1 9904694 - INSTALLATION of Camera, & Harness GEN 5 6100      $197.00      $197.00

     **NOTE: MOUNTED ON RH REAR CORNERPOST, FLUSH WITH REAR FACE OF POST

     IN PROTECTIVE GUARD.  WIRED TO QUE UP ON REVERSE SIGNAL FOR BACKUP

     OPERATIONS. ENABLE MANUAL DUAL CAMERA FEATURE IN CONFIG SETTINGS.

   1 1941405 - Camera Guard, SS, Bolt-On       $42.00       $42.00

  *--- Continued ---*

MN 55811      USA MN   55811

0/00/00

**  QUOTATION  **



TRKQT3

Ship To:               Cust:                          Phone: Bill To:                                     Phone:

ATTN:

Reference No.

Accepted by                                 Date

PO# Salesman Created Last Revised Appx CompTerms

Serial No.

Price:

Total Discounts:

Net Cost:

Freight

Total:

HERMANTOWN, CITY OF
5105 MAPLE GROVE ROAD

HERMANTOWN

HERMANTOWN, CITY OF
5105 MAPLE GROVE ROAD

HERMANTOWN

PAUL SENST

TIM ERICKSON

QT   65011

NET 30 DAYS 5/04/21 10/27/22

3327

   1 9905502 - PreCise ARC Sensor Mount #1126929, only  GEN 5 6100       $50.00       $50.00

   1 9905835 - PreCise ARC Sensor #1117640, only, for Wireless GEN 5      $680.00      $680.00

     CONTROLLER Applications (LESS MTG BRKT), installed

     INSTALLED

   1 9900317 - Hoist Towmaster/MAILHOT CS130-5.5-3 DOUBLE ACTING    $4,891.00    $4,891.00

   1 9901711 - Installation of Telescopic DOUBLE  acting hoist    $1,209.00    $1,209.00

   1 9900311 - Hoist TMTE 48" Stabilizer    $2,555.00    $2,555.00

   1 9902503 - Installation of TMTE Stabilizer & Safety Props    $1,339.00    $1,339.00

   1 9902983 - Wing Falls RHTDL10A/FM-HYDPB  Primed LESS CUTTING EDGES   $12,048.00   $12,048.00

   1 9904688 - Wing Falls POST-LESS Toe Lift in lieu of Std Front

     post/slide system

   1 9900433 - Installation Falls TDL/FM Wing - w/Bulkhead Couplers    $4,082.00    $4,082.00

   1 9900479 - Wing Falls Gloss Black - Paint Moldboard      $395.00      $395.00

   1 9900393 - Wing Falls Hyd front post side-shift (no valving)      $767.00      $767.00

   1 9900567 - Plow Hitch Falls 46XB2/STD/STD/SA/SPR-RET/HITCH    $2,825.00    $2,825.00

   1 9900589 - Installation Falls Plow Hitch - 40 Series 3Line/STDBLKHD    $2,202.00    $2,202.00

   1 9903057 - Plow Falls PR1243/SPR-TRP/NOSHU/PRI-E1/10GA LESS CUTTING    $8,281.00    $8,281.00

     EDGES

  *--- Continued ---*

MN 55811      USA MN   55811

0/00/00

**  QUOTATION  **



TRKQT3

Ship To:               Cust:                          Phone: Bill To:                                     Phone:

ATTN:

Reference No.

Accepted by                                 Date

PO# Salesman Created Last Revised Appx CompTerms

Serial No.

Price:

Total Discounts:

Net Cost:

Freight

Total:

HERMANTOWN, CITY OF
5105 MAPLE GROVE ROAD

HERMANTOWN

HERMANTOWN, CITY OF
5105 MAPLE GROVE ROAD

HERMANTOWN

PAUL SENST

TIM ERICKSON

QT   65011

NET 30 DAYS 5/04/21 10/27/22

3327

   1 9900619 - Plow Push Unit Falls 20/26/40/46 Series Std    $1,037.00    $1,037.00

   1 9900637 - Plow Falls High Visibility Marker Set      $131.00      $131.00

   1 9900639 - Plow Falls Rubber Belt Deflector Kit - Installed      $433.00      $433.00

   1 9900681 - Plow Falls Gloss Black Paint, Rev Plow, w/installation      $524.00      $524.00

   1 9900730 - Plow Falls SCR-ADJ/SHOE/REV-PLW/STD      $781.00      $781.00

   1 9900757 - Hitch TMTE Heavy Duty plate assembly,      $738.00      $738.00

   1 9901716 - Hitch Installation of Pup Hitch (weld in style)    $1,051.00    $1,051.00

     **NOTE: HITCH PLATE FACE TO BE LOCATED:

     ____________________________________ IN REFERENCE TO REAR TIRE FACE.

   1 9900764 - Hitch PREMIER 2300 Air Cushion Pintle, installed    $1,113.00    $1,113.00

   1 9902493 - Hitch 7 contact Standard Round Pin Std socket installed      $154.00      $154.00

   1 9903207 - Sander Swenson AUGER STYLE EVA100-14-54 STAINLESS STEEL   $24,351.00   $24,351.00

     V-Box Complete

   1 9903213 - Sander Swenson UP CHARGE SINGLE AUGER TO DUAL AUGER    $2,220.00    $2,220.00

   1 9904206 - Sander Swenson SS 2-225 GAL V-BOX TANK OPTIONS    $2,799.00    $2,799.00

   1 9904996 - Sander Swenson HYDRAULIC SPRAY SYSTEM FOR V-BOX TANKS AND    $3,192.00    $3,192.00

     MOUNTING NOT ICLUDED

   1 9904208 - Sander Swenson 2 V-BOX TANK  SYSTEM FACTORY INSTALLED      $430.00      $430.00

  *--- Continued ---*

MN 55811      USA MN   55811

0/00/00

**  QUOTATION  **



TRKQT3

Ship To:               Cust:                          Phone: Bill To:                                     Phone:

ATTN:

Reference No.

Accepted by                                 Date

PO# Salesman Created Last Revised Appx CompTerms

Serial No.

Price:

Total Discounts:

Net Cost:

Freight

Total:

HERMANTOWN, CITY OF
5105 MAPLE GROVE ROAD

HERMANTOWN

HERMANTOWN, CITY OF
5105 MAPLE GROVE ROAD

HERMANTOWN

PAUL SENST

TIM ERICKSON

QT   65011

NET 30 DAYS 5/04/21 10/27/22

3327

   1 9901732 - Sander Install V-Box (as Slide-In) into Dump Body    $2,490.00    $2,490.00

   1 9900852 - Valve System, Force Add-A-Fold MCV-ISO Valve 10 Functions ,   $17,794.00   $17,794.00

     INSTALLED

     **NOTE: BOX HOIST, PLOW LIFT, PLOW ANGLE, WING TOE, WING HEEL, WING

     PUSH-BAR, WING FRT POST SIDE SHIFT, SANDER AUGERS, SANDER SPINNER, &

     PRE-WET PUMP.

   1 9902497 - Control System Force ULTRA-4-6100 Commander control,   $13,781.00   $13,781.00

     Installed

   1 9904952 - Control Add-on Force 5100/6100 Pre-wet Feedback Harness Kit      $203.00      $203.00

   1 9900882 - Reservoir TMTE Cabshield mt  (stainless steel) w/intank    $3,975.00    $3,975.00

     filter INCLUDED,  installed

   1 9900888 - Pump Force FASD45L LS (6 ci)  installed    $5,824.00    $5,824.00

   1 9900893 - Valve Force Cable pull-off (for use w/telescopic hoist)      $675.00      $675.00

     installed

   1 9900871 - Switch TMTE BODY UP Installed (electric controls only)      $248.00      $248.00

   1 9900884 - Sensor Force Low oil indicator system, SLIM-LINE AND      $366.00      $366.00

     CABSHIELD MOUNTED w/light mounted in cab, installed

   1 9905014 - Hydraulic Valve Hose Guard installed      $372.00      $372.00

   1 9900927 - Air Bag Canadian Load-Share  kit, manual adj., Western Star    $1,498.00    $1,498.00

     and Mack

   1 WARRANTY - TOWMASTER EXCLUSIVE WARRANTY: 5 yr Steel/Stainless Steel

     Body Structure; 5 yr Whelen LED Light Systems; 3 yr Palfinger

  *--- Continued ---*

MN 55811      USA MN   55811

0/00/00

**  QUOTATION  **



TRKQT3

Ship To:               Cust:                          Phone: Bill To:                                     Phone:

ATTN:

Reference No.

Accepted by                                 Date

PO# Salesman Created Last Revised Appx CompTerms

Serial No.

Price:

Total Discounts:

Net Cost:

Freight

Total:

HERMANTOWN, CITY OF
5105 MAPLE GROVE ROAD

HERMANTOWN

HERMANTOWN, CITY OF
5105 MAPLE GROVE ROAD

HERMANTOWN

PAUL SENST

TIM ERICKSON

QT   65011

NET 30 DAYS 5/04/21 10/27/22

3327

$175,248.00

     Hoists; 4 yr SwapLoader Hoists; 1 year Swenson Spreaders, 2 yr Hyd,

     FALLS Snow Equip, Tele Hoists, and all other items.

$175,248.00

$175,248.00

MN 55811      USA MN   55811

0/00/00

**  QUOTATION  **

terickson
Sign Here



Resolution No. 2022-130 
 
 RESOLUTION ADOPTING ASSESSMENT ROLL  
 FOR DELINQUENT UTILITY CHARGES FOR 2022 
  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Hermantown City Ordinance Sections 910.11, 920.06.3 and 940.10     
the City Clerk has prepared an Assessment Roll for delinquent Utility charges through September 30, 
2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, the individuals responsible for the payment of such accounts have been duly notified 
of the intent of the City to certify such accounts to the County Auditor to be paid with the real estate taxes 
on the property served payable in 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has met, heard and passed upon all objections to the proposed 
assessment roll for the delinquent Utility charges for 2022, and made amendments to the assessment roll 
as it deemed just and reasonable under the circumstances. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 
Minnesota, as follows: 
 

1. Such proposed assessment, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, is 
hereby accepted and shall constitute an assessment against the lands named therein. 
 

2. Such assessments shall be paid in full with general taxes for the year 2022, collectable 
with the taxes of 2023. 
 

3. The City Clerk shall forthwith transmit a certified duplicate copy of this assessment to the 
County Auditor to be extended on the tax list of the County. 
 

Councilor _____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 

The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor _____ and, upon a 
vote being taken thereon the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
  
 

WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted November 21, 2022. 



Account Name
Certification 
Amount 

0416-00 AMELIA SCHILLA MONTHLY $5,175.15
1001-00 GR LAKES ALARM & SEC PRODUCTS INC MONTHLY $132.76
1045-00 GARY & SAMANTHA SUMMERS MONTHLY $250.45
1069-00 JON & LISA KAMP MONTHLY $211.90
1184-00 DAVID JOHNSON MONTHLY $136.87
1252-00 DAMON WALKER MONTHLY $229.91
1461-00 AARON RESBERG MONTHLY $338.67
2222-00 BARRY FERNHOLZ MONTHLY $183.42
3206-00 GREGORY & KIMBERLY BILLMAN SEMI-ANNUAL $129.25
2462-00 PAUL & SHALEA JOHNSON SEMI-ANNUAL $146.20
2486-00 CODY & MELISSA RENNE SEMI-ANNUAL $146.20
2528-00 TERRI KRAGSETH SEMI-ANNUAL $146.20
2549-00 BRIAN LAMPHIER SEMI-ANNUAL $146.20
2711-00 ADAM & BRIDGET STEVENS SEMI-ANNUAL $146.20
2717-00 AMANDA STARK SEMI-ANNUAL $146.20
2739-00 TITAN PREMIER INVESTMENTS LLC SEMI-ANNUAL $146.20
2866-00 ADAM & ELIZABETH CARLSON SEMI-ANNUAL $146.20
2891-00 KEVIN BOOTH SEMI-ANNUAL $146.20
3215-00 AARON HALLER SEMI-ANNUAL $146.20
3288-00 JOSHUA BELANGER SEMI-ANNUAL $146.20
3298-00 GARY I CARLSON JR. SEMI-ANNUAL $146.20
3387-00 SARAH WINTER SEMI-ANNUAL $146.20
3140-00 PAUL & HEIDI PEDERSEN SEMI-ANNUAL $150.40
3172-00 BRUCE & CHRISTINA WASBOTTEN SEMI-ANNUAL $150.40
3264-00 LINDA KLINT SEMI-ANNUAL $150.40
3429-00 LUCZAK TRAVIS SEMI-ANNUAL $169.89
2875-00 CADE JOHN RAUKAR SEMI-ANNUAL $171.27
2579-00 TODD LEPAGE SEMI-ANNUAL $184.04
2385-00 GERALD ANDERSON SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2467-00 SUSAN & BRUCE HAUGDAHL SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2500-00 TODD JOHNSON SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2534-00 PAUL & JAIME PEARSON SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2545-00 GREGORY  ANDERSON SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2571-00 ROBERT & BRENDA HANNINEN SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2599-00 ROBERT HOOVER SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2625-00 TIM & LAURA STROIK SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2628-00 MIKE MARCZAK SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2629-00 ALAN & DIANE SELINE SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2632-00 JONATHAN & MIRANDA CHAMBERS SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2671-00 JAMIE KEYE SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2708-00 SHANNON MARTINDALE SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2733-00 JAMIE GLITSOS SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2764-00 PATRICK PAITRICK SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2770-00 TIMOTHY & KATHY RESBERG SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2774-00 MIKE GIDDINGS SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40



Account Name
Certification 
Amount 

2782-00 STEVEN & DEBRA INMAN SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2805-00 DENNETTE ABSHER SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2808-00 BRADLEY NELSON SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2824-00 MIKE GIDDINGS SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2838-00 ZACHARY SHAW SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2872-00 COREY STEBNER SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2874-00 CHARLES & VIRGINIA NOFFSINGER SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2878-00 MARSHALL DIEHL SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2885-00 CINDY BAKER SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2889-00 BRANDON JENNY SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2900-00 TAMI MCKEAN SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2912-00 KEITH & ANGELA GUSTAFSON SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2914-00 BRANDON WIETMAN SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2935-00 BRIAN KINNEY SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2953-00 DUSTIN & MANDY BIRKLAND SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2954-00 DAVID FREAR SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2961-00 TITAN PREMIER INVESTMENTS LLC SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2989-00 DANIEL & RACHELL COOK SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
3159-00 HOWARD SHAW SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
3165-00 MICHAEL & CHRISTINE SAWYER SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
3174-00 SCOTT WATERS SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
3177-00 ADAM WALLGREN SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
3178-00 CHRISTOPHER KEMPER SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
3186-00 RUTH NORLUND SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
3225-00 EDWIN MONTGOMERY SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
3247-00 DAVID SOLBERG SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
3250-00 ROSS & JILL JUDNICK SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
3254-00 TRICIA NEUBARTH SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
3293-00 KEVIN WHITE SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
3297-00 RUE VAN TRAN SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
3309-00 KARL DIETER KUNZ JR SEMI-ANNUAL $192.40
2862-00 ALLEN KOIVISTO SEMI-ANNUAL $196.60
2865-00 EDWARD KOPIC SEMI-ANNUAL $196.60
2419-00 SUSAN K. WAGNER-THOMAS SEMI-ANNUAL $377.20

TOTAL AMOUNT CERTIFIED  $19,670.98
TOTAL MONTHLY ACCOUNTS 8
TOTAL SEMI-ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 71



City Council Agenda Report Resolution 2022-131 
November 21, 2022 Agenda Item: 12-D 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: John Mulder, City Administrator 

DATE: November 17, 2022 Meeting Date: 11/21/22 

SUBJECT: Amended Proposal for 
Engineering Services – Oak 
Ridge Sanitary Sewer Trunkline 
Spur 

Agenda Item: 12-D Resolution: 2022-131 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Accept amended proposal from Northland Consulting Engineers for engineering services for design and 
construction engineering for the Oak Ridge Sanitary Sewer Trunkline Spur 

BACKGROUND 

In on August 1, 2022, the City Council accepted a proposal from Northland Consulting Engineers to design 
and construct a sanitary sewer from the lift station at the east end of Oak Ridge Drive to the Section 24 
Sewer Trunkline.  As part of the initial work, City Staff met with the landowners along Okerstrom Road 
north of Anderson Road.  Those residents currently do not have sewer service and would like to have City 
sewer.   The City at some point in time in the future would like to extend Okerstrom Road to the north to 
facilitate development within Section 24.   

Based on those discussion, it is now recommended to extend the sewer at the intersection of Anderson and 
Okerstrom Road to the north, to connect to the sewer at the lift station.  This will allow the City to eliminate 
the lift station.  In effect, instead of building the sewer directly east and connecting to the trunk line in the 
interior of Section 24, the sewer line would go south and connect at Anderson Road.  The City would at the 
same time re-construct approximately a quarter of a mile of Okerstrom Road to an urban street design.   

SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 

240-432510-305 Project 451

ATTACHMENTS 

Resolution 
Proposal 



 

Resolution No. 2022-131 
 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AN AMENDED PROPOSAL FROM NORTHLAND CONSULTING 
ENGINEERS FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCT ENGINEERING 

FOR THE SANITARY SEWER TRUNKLINE SPUR FROM OAK RIDGE DRIVE TO THE 
TRUNKLINE UNDER THE CITY ENGINEERS CONTRACT WITH THE CITY 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hermantown (“City’) has a contract(“Agreement”) with Northland Consulting 
Engineers (“Engineer”) to provide engineering services, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hermantown (“City”) desires to construct a sanitary sewer Trunkline spur from 
Oak Ridge Drive to the Section 24 Trunkline (“Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council previously approved a proposal to connect Oak Ridge Drive to the Section 
24 Trunkline 
 
 WHEREAS, the Engineer has met with land owners along Okerstrom Road north of Anderson Road 
and they want sewer service along Okerstrom Road north of Anderson Road, 
 

WHEREAS, the Engineer has begun revising the plan to build the sewer and a new Okerstrom road 
north of Anderson road, and  

WHEREAS, the (“Engineer”) submitted an amended proposal reflecting the change in the plan as shown 
on Exhibit A attached hereto to the City to provide such services and 

 
WHEREAS, the Engineering work for the project will be performed under the terms of the Contract 

with Northland Consulting Engineers    City and Engineer desire to enter into an Agreement for Engineering 
Services (“Agreement”) in which Engineer provides engineering to City pursuant to these terms of the 
Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council believes that it is in the best interests of the City of Hermantown to accept 
the proposal and authorize the City Engineer to proceed on the “Project” and direct the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute and deliver it on behalf of the City of Hermantown. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, Minnesota 
as follows: 

 
1. The proposal from the Engineer is hereby accepted and the Engineer is authorized to proceed  

on the “Project”   
 
2. The source of payment for the consultant services will by Sales Tax City Fund No. 240- 

494500-530. 
 
 Councilor _____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor _____ and upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
  
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
  
 WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted November 21, 2022.  



102 South 21st Avenue West, Suite 1  Duluth, Minnesota 55806 | 218-727-5995 | www.nce-engineers.com

Civil Engineering Fee Proposal

November 8, 2022 Proposal #: P1108

Project Title: Okerstrom Road Reconstruction

Project Location: Hermantown, MN
Company: City of Hermantown Client Email: jmulder@hermantownmn.com

Client Contact: John Mulder Office Phone: 218-729-3600
Full Address: 5105 Maple Grove Road, Hermantown, MN 55811 Cell Phone:

Project Description Scope of Civil Engineering Services
Northland Consulting Engineer's understands a desire to reconstruct a
segment of Okerstrom Road in the city of Hermantown. The project is
approximately 1500 LF from Anderson Road south to Hermantown Road.
This proposal includes boundary and topographic survey, as well as site
planning, utility planning, and stormwater management.

1. Meetings and communications.
2. Boundary and Topographic Survey
3. Site plan, grading plan, and utility plan.
4. Stormwater management (During Construction and Permanent)
5. Construction Inspection and Communications.

Proposed Fee Calculation Table
Estimated Hours / Hourly Rates

Principal PE Tech. Clerical Other
Design Engineering $180.00 $140.00 $85.00 $50.00 Extended Cost
Meetings and Discussions with City Staff 16 16 $ 5,120.00
Amendment to Feasibility Study 2 2 4 $ 980.00
Public Meetings (2) 4 4 4 $ 1,620.00
Easement Acquisition 16 8 4 $ 4,340.00
Permitting - Sanitary Sewer, MPCA StormWater and MDH WaterMain 2 8 8 $ 2,160.00
Review Survey and Prepare Existing Conditions and Removals Plan 4 16 32 $ 5,680.00
Roadway Plan and Profile 24 48 120 $ 21,240.00
Utility Plan - Storm, Sanitary, and Water 16 40 80 $ 15,280.00
Stormwater Management and Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 4 16 40 $ 6,360.00
General Notes, Details, and Specifications 8 24 32 24 $ 8,720.00

Design Engineering Subtotal $ 71,500.00

Boundary and Topographic Survey (Alta Land Survey Company) Surveying Subtotal $ 5,500.00

Construction Engineering $180.00 $140.00 $85.00 $50.00 Extended Cost
Communications and Construction Meetings 16 16 $ 5,120.00
Construction Inspection - Based on 15 weeks of construction 40 80 600 $ 69,400.00
Record Drawing Preparation 8 24 $ 3,160.00

Construction Engineering Subtotal $ 77,680.00

Total NCE Engineering Fees $ 154,680.00

Assumptions
1. Compensation for limited services described above will be performed on a Lump-Sum-Fee basis based on the overall project description and limited
scope of services listed above.
2. Additional Services may be required.  Additional services will be performed only upon written approval by the client and billed on an hourly rate basis
in accordance with NCE current rate schedule.
3.  If acceptable, this proposal along with the attached terms and conditions sheet will serve as our contract for the project.

We understand that this proposal including the attached terms and conditions will serve as our contract for this project.

Submitted By Accepted By

Signature Date Signature Date

David Bolf, P.E. Printed Name
Principal Partner - Civil Department Manager Title
Northland Consulting Engineers LLP Representing

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

11/8/22

mailto:jmulder@hermantownmn.com

	Pre-Agenda.Boulder Trail Furniture.pdf
	Trail Furniture Detail 1- Bench and Trash.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Trail Furniture Detail 2 - Picnic Table.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	2022-128 Policy.Utility.pdf
	2022-128 Utility Approving Hookup Process and Lateral Lines Repair Policy.pdf
	Councilor ____________________ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption.


	2022-130 Delinquent Utilities.pdf
	Resolution No. 2022-130
	Delinquent Utilities List for Council 2022.pdf
	Sheet1


	2022-131 Oak Ridge Sewer.pdf
	Res 131 attachment Proposal - Engineering Services Oak Ridge Sewer 2022-11-08.pdf
	Worksheets
	General CE Proposal



	2022-128 Policy.Utility.pdf
	2022-128 Utility Approving Hookup Process and Lateral Lines Repair Policy.pdf
	Councilor ____________________ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption.

	2022-128 Utility Approving Hookup Process and Lateral Lines Repair Policy.pdf
	Councilor ____________________ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption.





